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 Board Meeting Agenda 

Minutes will be recorded for these formal meetings 

Tuesday, September 12, 2023 
 

8:30 am Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Call to order by the Chairman  
 
Approval of the agenda 
 

Consent Agenda -  
Review & Sign the following documents: 
 
Minutes:   

a) August 22 (pgs 4-8) 
Resolutions: 

b) 2023-93: Payroll (pg 9) 
c) 2023-94: Special Payroll (pg 10) 
d) 2023-95: Amend Resolution 2022-141 – Observed Holidays for 2023 (pg 11) 
e) 2023-96: Payment of Warrants (pg 12) 
f) 2023-97: Voided Warrants for the month of September (pg 13) 

Contracts & Reports: 
g) Final payment letter for Road Paving (pg 15 
h) Striping contract w/Stripe-a-Lot (pgs 16-20) 
i) Department of Human Services Core Services Program – Mental Health Services contract  

w/: 
 Baker Neuropsychology and Learning Center (pgs 21-24) 
 Liz Smith Counseling (pgs 25 & 26) 

j) Department of Human Services Core Services Program – Substance Abuse Treatment Services 
contract w/Reflect, Resolve, Recover, LLC (pgs 27-30) 

k) Treasurer’s Report (pgs 31 & 32) 
l) Electronic Recording Technology grant award letter (pgs 34-43) 
m)   RTU Replacement contract w/Masterworks (pgs 44-50) 
n) Propane gas agreement (pg 51) 
o) Department of Public Health Memo of Understanding w/Colorado Department of Public Health 

& Environment for Vaccine Storage (pgs 52-55) 
 

 
 

 

MOFFAT COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
1198 W Victory Way Craig, Colorado 81625  

(970) 824-5517   
 

Tony Bohrer    Melody Villard    Donald Broom 
              District 1                   District 2         District 3 

 

Please note that the Board may discuss any topic relevant to County business, whether or not the topic has been specifically 
noted on this agenda 



  

10:10 AM9/11/2023 
 

Public Comment/General Discussion 
 
BOCC 
1) Daughters of the American Revolution - Constitution Week Proclamation (pg 56) 
 
Public Hearing: 
8:45 am 
 
2) Planning & Zoning – Candace Miller  
 - Resolution 2023-82: Adopt 2018 International Property Maintenance Code (pgs 57-59) 
 - Coyote FED Temporary Use Permit – T-23-02 (pgs 60-66) 
   
Staff Reports: 
 
3) Planning & Zoning – Candace Miller 
 - Lewis Variance Request  
 
4) Office of Development Services – Candace Miller 
 - Library carpeting replacement bid recommendation (pg 67) 
 
5) Office of Development Services – Roy Tipton 
 - Old Courthouse demolition bid recommendation & contract award (pgs 68-76) 
 - BHI change order #8 (pgs 77-86) 
 
6) Natural Resources Department – Jeff Comstock 
 - Memo(s) of Understanding w/: 

 The Juniper Water Conservancy District (pgs 87-89) 
 The Great Northern Water Conservancy District (pgs 90-92) 

 
7) Clerk & Recorders Office – Stacy Morgan & Elections Office – Sarah Colding 
 - Election Materials print vendor bid recommendation revision (pgs 93-95) 
 - Ballot Print and Mail Services agreement w/Fort Orange Press (pgs 96-105) 
  
Presentation:  
 
8) McMahon & Associates – Paul Backes (ZOOM) 

- Present Audited Financials (pgs 106-209) 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

Adjournment 
 

The next scheduled BOCC meeting will be Tuesday, September 26, 2023 - 8:30 am 



  

10:10 AM9/11/2023 
 

 
** Agenda is Subject to Change until 24 hours before scheduled Hearings** 

The Board may alter the times of the meetings throughout the day, or cancel or reschedule noticed meetings  

Moffat County’s YouTube link to view meeting: 
 

https://youtube.com/live/vFHakS_labw 
 

OR 
 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC0d8avRo294jia2irOdSXzQ 
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Moffac County Board of County Commissioners
ll98 W VictoryWay Ste 104 Craig, CO 81625

August 22,2023

ln attendance: Tony Bohrer, Chair; Melody Villard, Vice-Chair; Donald Broom, Board Member; Erin Miller,
Deputy Clerk Ns Recorder; Candace Miller; Tom Kleinschnitz;Jeff Comstock; Rebecca Tyree; Ashley Dishman;
Glenda Beiiio; Kenleigh Pubanz; Ruby Short; Megan Neton, Todd Wheeler; Heather Fross; Megan Stetson; Dan
Haskins;Allison Adair;Stacy Morgan; Heidi Rogers;Sarah Colding; Steve Hinkemeyer;Kacey Green;Jim
Howell; Bruce White; KC Hume; Chip Mclnry're; Kate Nowack; Jennifer Bruen

Call to Order
Pledge o[Allegiance

Commissioner Bohrer called the meeting Eo order at 8:30 am

Bohrer made a motion to approve the agenda as presented. Villard seconded the motion. Motion carried 3-0

Consent Agenda -

Review & Sgn the following documents: (see attached)

Minutes:
a) August 8;August I - Executive Session;August I - CBOE Hearings

Resolutions:
b) 2023-88: Resolution Correction
c) 2023-89: Payment of Warrants
d) 2023-90:Payroll
e) 2023-91:P-Cards

Contracts da Reports:
l) Library Educational Grant application

Bohrer made a morion Eo approve the consent agenda items A-F. Broom seconded the motion. Motion carried

3-0.

Please note that the Board may discuss any topic relevant to County business, whether or not the topic has been specifically noted on

this agenda

Public Comment/General Discussion:

Glenda Bellio feels that rhe Properry Maintenance Code interferes with personai properry rights.

Dan Haskins played an audio clip regarfing government ovemeach and stated that he was against the adopting

of any codes that take away liberties.

Tracy Winder stated that rumor has it that mask mandates and lockdowns will be reinstiruted and urged the

BCC to say no and noE participaEe.
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Commissioner Bohrer spoke about the Space Business Roundtable meeting that will be going on today and
tomorrow in Moffat Counry.

Staff Reports:

Office of Development Services - Candace Miller
- Bid recommendation 6s award: Public Safery Center RTU's (see attached)

One bid was received from Masterworks Mechanical for $58,000 to replace four of the oldest Roof Top Units at
the Public Safery Center. Miller recommended awarding the bid to Masterworks Mechanical for g58,O0O to
replace four RTU's ar rhe Public Safery Center.

Broom moved to award the bid to Masterworks Mechanical for $58,000. Viltard seconded the bid. Motion
carried 3-0.
Everyone agreed that while it would have been nice to have other bids to choose from, ir is good that the only
bid is from a local business.

Present real estate contract for 595 Breeze Street for consideration

A previous l.ower offer had been received from Raftopoulos Rentals l, LLC on this properEy and a counter bid
was issued for $450,000. The counter was accepted.

Villard moved to accept the offer from Raftopoulos Rentals l, LLC for $450,000 for 595 Breeze Srreet. Broom
seconded the motion. Motion carried 3-0.

- Present real estate contract for 539 Barclay Srreet for consideration

A tirst offer of $325,000 has been received from Raftopoulos Rentals 1, LLC for 539 Barclay Srreer, which is
listed at $399,900. Bohrer commented that real esmttis still moving forward in our communiry and that rhe
board should counter the offer ar 9375,000.

Bohrer moved to counter the offer for 539 Barclay Srreet the amount of $375,000 to Raftopoulos Rentals l, LLC
Villard seconded the motion. Motion carried 3-0.

- FANNrport Grant Agreement 6s Construction Agreement

Theairport had applied for a grant for the alrport runway projecc, which has been approved. The grant award
fo-r the project is a not to exceed amount of $O,OZa,OS 2.75.Th;projecr is renEarivety siheauted to 6egin August
of 2o24,and includes resurfacing the runways, redoing the lighiing and the srriping.

Villard moved Eo approvethe grant agreement with the Federal Aviation Administration Airport Improvement
program. Broom seconded the motion. Motion carried 3-0.

Villard moved ro approve Task Order B - Professional Services Agreement for Engineering with Armsrrong
Consultants for a not to exceed amount of $3L4.77U Broom .econd.d the motion.-lvtotion-carried 3-0.

Villard moved to award Oldcastle SW Group, Inc- dba Uniced Companies rhe paving conrract for the airporr
runway contract for $6,628, 052.75. Broom seconded the motion. Motion canied 3-0.
Everyone agreed that because this is such a large amount, they were glad that we are getting assistance with
this project.
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Resolution 2023-82:2018 International Property Maintenance Code Adoption (see attached)

Miller reiterated that this is just an updated version of the 2000 version of the IPMC, that Moffat County has
been using since 2013. She read and explained the amendments that are attached to the 2018 version, and
emphasized that this is not an ordinance. Villard asked if there were any exemptions based on properry size or
zoning? Miller said no, but it does provide some more protections and updated language for both property
owners and enforcers. Villard clarified that the regional building inspector has already been working under the
2018 IPMC, and now we will all be on the same "page". Villard also asked since this was adopted in 2000, what
issues have we seen? Any litigation against any private property owners? lr4iller stated that no, and usually it is
just for a reference point, there's not a lot of teeth. The IPMC works hand in hand with the building code,
setting a criteria for each propeffy to be addressed in the same way. Bohrer stated that life without ruIes wouid
be chaos;liberties come with rules. We are not trying to tie someone's hands, we are rrying to make Moffat
Counry a desirable place and make neighbors be neighbor\. Miller also emphasized that while we share the
building in.spector with the City of Craig, we do not have Code Enforcement Deparrment/Officers that drive
around looking for code violations, we only refer back to this in extreme cases.

Broom moved to approve Resolution 2023-82:2018 International Properry N{aintenance Code Adoption.
Villard seconded the motion. ]r,,Iotion carried 3-0.

Road da Bridge Department - Bruce White
- Bid recommendation: Pavement Striping (see attached)

White explained that the Road 6s Bridge Department had advertised for bids for 10.3 miles (with the
\, possibiliry of adding more, depending on curent pricing) of road striping, which is our hazardous materials

routes. The one and only bid was received from Stripe -a-Lotfor $34,957. The bid of $34,957.00 leaves

$65,043.00 in the budget for additional miles. With the remaining funding available, the Road & Bridge
Department would like to paint an additional26.9 miles of road with center line paint only. The additional miles
would be done at $1,450.00 per mile, adding $39,005.00 to the original cost bringing the total to $73,962.00.
This will help to bring the road maintenance process into an organized3-year cycle that we can use to help keep

the asphalt painting program up to date. Moffat County has approximately 100 miles of asphalt roads that
require paint striping. Total expenditures will be $26,038.00 under the budgeted amount of $100,000.00.

Villard moved to approve the bid from Stripe-a-Lot for $73,962 for highway striping. Broom seconded the

motion. Motion carried 3-0.

Moffat County Sheriff's Office - KC Hume da County Attorney - Rebecca Tyree
- Fire Restriction Ordinance 2023-0822 - First Reading (see attached)

This ordinance is to update the open fire and open burning resrrictions in N{offat County. It aligns/cleans-up
language across the wildland fire suppression communiry (Ioca1/state/federal), so they can work together more

seamlessly when time is of the essence. This is the first reading of this ordinance; the second and final rea&ng
for adoption willbe at the October t0 BCC meeting.

Broom moved to approve the first reading of the Moffat County Open Fire 6s Open Burning Resrriction
Ordinance. Villard seconded the motion. N{otion carried 3-0.
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County Clerk's Office/Elections - Stacy Morgan & Sarah Colding
- Review 6s select potential changes to Commissioner District boundary redistricting in

advance of Public Hearing on September 26 (see attached)

The state has mandated that all Commissioner disrricts must be redrawn to reflect population numbers based
on the last census. No district can have no more than a 5% deviation berween the least and the most populated
districts. Maps &splaying the redrawn districts were put up on the screen. There will be a public hearing
regarding the proposed redistricting ar the BCC meering on September 26th.

Villard moved to approve the suggested BCC District map "E" as presented today. Broom seconded the morion.
Motion carried 3-0.

Presentation:

Colorado First Conservation District - Kacey Green & Steve Hinkemeyer
- Sage Grouse Mitigation Grant Lerter of Support (see attached)

G1ee1 eg Hinkemeyer presented a grant letter of support for power line mitigation for sage grouse habitat.
They have put in for $3.34 million - 8Oo/o would go directly to on ground funding for sage grouse habitar
improvement. Gateway South was required to put $12.5 miliion into conservation easements. They should hear
back in November if they get the granr or nor.

Vi]lard moved to approve the letter of support for the Colorado First Conservarion Disrrict Sage Grouse
Alliance letter of support. Broom seconded the motion. Motion carried 3-0.

United Way of Moffat County - Heather Fross, Executive Director
- Programupdate (see attached)

Fross thanked the BCC from all of the local non-profics that obtain funding from the Human Resource Council,
which receives backing from the City, Counry and United Way. She presented the BCC with the HRC 2023
Funding Summary and gave a history and an outline of the current services that HRC provides.

Youth Unitedway/Key Club members, Ruby Short. Megan Neton and Kenleigh Pubanz gave a short
presentation on the functions of their group.

As of September I, the United Way of Moffat County and the United Way of Routt Counry will merge inro one
organization, called the United Way of the Yampa Valley. Kate Nowak will be rhe Execurive Directoi and
Jennifer Bruen will be the Associate Director. Fross will be rerurning to teaching. They will be hiring a

99T-Y"ity Impact Manager, to be based in Moffat Counry. The theme for the funding drive this year will be
"UnitedWe Thrive". Nowack requested a workshop with rhe BCC to discuss rhe HRi process. Bohrer
mentioned that at the lastHRC meeting, the question was asked, with the merge, will funding raised here stay
in Moffat Counry? Nowack affirmed that that is correct and donors can also delignate that, to"o. She wrapped
up by talking about the merger celebration that they were having on August 22 anda softball game fundiaiiser
berween thetlayden Powerplant and the Craig Station Powerpiint on October Tth,tobe heldit Loudy-
Simpson Park.

Meeting adjourned at 9:41 am

The next scheduled BOCC meering is Tuesday, September12,2023
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Submittedby:

Erin Miller, Depury Clerk and Recorder

Approved by:

Approved on:

Attest by:



Colqlqsionerg, Coul!1l cf Moflf, State of Coloralo glo !q1e!y certlfo

RESOLUTION 2023.93
PAYMENT OF PAYROLL WARRANTS

08t19t2023

WHEREAS, The Board of Commissioners of Moffat County, Colorado,
have approved the payment of various debts and obligations from the various
county funds:

the wanants issued inAND saidof debts
have been issued against the Moffat County Warrant Fund:

NOW THEREFORE, BE lT RESOLVED that the Moffat County Treasurer be and
he is hereby authorized to transfer money among the various funds as follows:

Pay Date 09/01123 Payroll

FROM FUND:
$248,645.03General 0010.7000 cr

$159.323.63Road & Bridge 0020.7000 cr

$1s,029.39Landfill 0070.7000 cl

$676,25Airport 0120.7000 cr

Library cr0130.7001 190.02'1

MaybellWWTF 0280.7000 $0.00 cr

$0.00Health & Welfare 0080.7000 cr

Senior Citizens 0170.7000 $7,521.84 cr

$3,183.89Mo Co Tourism cr0320.7000

PSC JaiI 0072.7000 $64,094.48 cr

$72.s28.340030.7100 cr

$13,177.62

Human Services

Public Health cr0065.7000

SMI 0168.7000 $3,631.73 cr

0169.7000 $4,253.62 crSM II

TO FUND
0100.1000Warrant $602,255.84 dr

Adopted this 12th day of September, A.D. 2023

Chairman

STATE OF COLORADO

ir)t |NTV ntr irr FFAT

l, Stacy Morgan, County Clerk and Ex-officio C lerk to the Board of

i

T

t)



certify

Endin 09108t2023

RESOLUTION 2023-94
PAYMENT OF PAYROLL RANTS

of said debts and

WHEREAS, The Board of Commissioners of Moffat Colorado
the variousthehave of various debts and obli

funds:

WHEREAS, the warrants issued in

have been issued against the Moffat County Wanant Fund

NOW THEREFORE, BE lT RESOLVED that the Moffat County Treasurer be and
he is hereby authorized to transfer money among the various funds as follows:

cr

cr

Date 09/08/23

FROM FUND:
General

Road &

0010.7000

0020.7000

cr

$0.00

$0.00

cr

cr

cr

cr

cr

cr

cr

cr

ct

dr

0030.7100

0168.7000

0169.7000

Landfill

Ai

Li

7000

0320.7000

0072.7000

Mo Co Tourism

Human Services

PSC JAII

Public Health

0070.7000

0280.7000

0130.7001

0120.7000

WWTF

Health & Welfare

ior Citizens

0080.7000

0170.7000

SMI

SM II

i6,997.27
TO FUND:

0100.'1000Warrant

this of A.D. 2023

Chairman

STATE OF COLORADO

COUNTY OF MOFFAT

l, Stacy Morgan, County Clerk and Ex-officio Clerk to the Board of
County Comrnissioners, County of Moffat, State of Colorado do hereby

I

I

lcr

I

cr

l

I



RESOLUTION 2023-95

RESOLUTION TO AMEND
RESOLUTION 2022_141 PERTAINING TO OBSERVED HOLIDAYS FOR 2023

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Moffat County met at a regular meeting on 15th of
December, 2022; and adopted Resolution 2022-141, approving holidays to be observed rn2023; and

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners later reviewed the Observed Holidays for 2023 and
decided to join the federal government and the State of Colorado by adding the nineteenth day of June,
commonly called Juneteenth, to the holidays observed by Moffat County.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by motion, the Board of County Commissioners agreed to
amend RESOLUTION 2022-141 OBSERVED HOLIDAYS FOR 2023 by adding Juneteenth as an Observed
Holiday, to be observed on December 26th.

Monday, Jantary 2
Monday, February 20
Monday, May 29
Monday, July 3 & Tuesday, July 4
Monday, September 4
Friday, November 10

Thursday, November 23
Friday, November 24
Friday, December22
Monday, December 25

Tuesday, December 26

New Year's Day
President's Day
Memorial Day
Independence Day
Labor Day
Veteran's Day (observed)
Thanksgiving Day
MLK Day (observed)
Columbus Day (observed)
Christmas Day
Juneteenth (observed)

ADOPTED this 12s day of September,2}23.

MOFFAT COLINTY BOARD OF COLINTY
COMMISSIONERS

Tony Bohrer, Chair
STATE OF COLORADO

COTINTY OF MOFFAT

I, Erin Miller, Deputy Clerk and Ex-officio to the Board of Commissioners, do hereby certiSr that the above

and foregoing is a true and complete copy of the resolution as adopted by the Board of County Commissioners on

the date stated.

WITNESS, my hand and the seal of said county this 12s day of September, 2023.

Erin Miller, Deputy Clerk and Ex-officio to the County
Commissioners, Moffat County, State of Colorado

)
)
)

SS.



RESOLUTION 2023-96
IRANSFER OF PAYMENT OF WARRANTS

FOR THE MONTH OF SEPTEMBER 2023

WHEREAS, The Board of Commissioners of Moffat County, Colorado,
have approved the payment of various debts and obligations from the varlous
county funds:

AND WHEREAS, the warrants issued in payment of said debts and obligations
have been issued against the l\roffat County Warrant Fund:

NOW THEREFORE, BE lT RESOLVED that the Moffat County Treasurer be and
he is hereby authorized to transfer money among the various funds as follows:

Check Date 9t12t2023
FROM FUNDi

General

Road & Bridge

Landfill

Airport

Emergency 911

Capital Projects

Conservation Trust

Library

Maybell Sanitation

Health & Welfare

Senior Citizens

lnternal Service Fund

Lease Purchase Fund

NCT Telecom

Mo Co Tourism Assoc

PSC - JAIL

Human Sevices

Public Health

Sunset Meadows I

Sunset Meadows I Security

Sunset Meadows ll

Sunset Meadows ll Security

lvluseum

ACET

Shadow Mountain LID

MC Local Marketing District

To Fund
Warrant

$63,706.42 CR

$3 000.00 cR

$2 526.30 CR

$4,291.00 CR

$1,096.22 CR

'110 $252 402.13 CR

200

240 $5 835.58 CR

260

211

212 $802.22 CR

610

720 $179 335.64 CR

215

714 CR

410 CR

520 CR

229 CR

275 CR

530 CR

$1s 000.00 cR

$568 848.63 DR

0010.7000

0020.7000

0070.7000

0120.7000

0350.7000

0160.7000

0060.7000

0130.7001

0280.7000

0080.7000

0170.7000

0325.7000

0175.7000

0'166.7000

0320.7000

0072.7000

0030.7100

0065.7000

0168.7000

0'167.7000

0169.7000

0'171.7000

0310.7000

0040.7000

0'110.7000

0050.7000

Adopted this '12th day of September, 2023

231

Chair-nan

270 $12t.74 CR

510 $750.00 cR

219 $5.52 CR

210 $8,365.37 CR

220 $8,261.51 CR

250 $12,952.59 CR

910 $1,599.23 CR

910 _ cR

920 $8,3'18.08 CR

920 $379.08 CR
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RESOLUTION 2023-97
VOIDED WARRANTS RESOLUTION
FOR THE MONTH OF SEPTEMBER

Cou
from the vanous

county funds:

n andAND
have been

Treasurer
to tra ASa

dr
VENDOR NAMEWARRANT#VOID FUND

$ 150.00Bethany Baker436504 7t25t2023General
Donation

150.00Kaila Carroll436558 7t25t2023General
Donation

150.00General
Donation

50.00General
Donation

436530 $ 15!.00

$ 26,528.05436572Capital
$ 5,393.14436572Jail

Reissued

$ 60.00

1 140.24

436728General
Wrong Address

cr

Adopted this 12th daY of Se

rman

and coma

AS

of the
do

on the date
and

I

tl

,i

, 911212023

L]

-T
--- fqoooo - -llzqry, .looertlEase@ -$

lr
l

-T t-
436674 81812023 Kylie Mathews-Worthen $

T

General
Oonatlon

7t2512i2i, =Donna Mae Hobts
i- r--

f
1 lDsizoz3T McKinstry Essention LLC

7t25t2023 McKinstry Essention LLC

Cqpilat

Eeiqsyeq

+soozg T ilzyzozzi ICo oeploq Heatn & env
-f

--- t-
-_i]+1-

t-t

lc,r -Wrong Vendor , _
arot{oz{ -co RssEsors nispclgion ls t+o5ol

T l
r I

T

t

_]_

-t

- ] -
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September 7,2A23

BOCC

Moffat County Road Department 2023 Aprons Paving Project

We would like to pay United Companies the final retainage af 5t4,676.77.

A legal notice was published in the Craig Press August 23'd and August 25th 2023.

No claims were made against the project.

Thank you,a,#
Dan Miller, Director

Moffat County Road Department
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2023 STRIPINIG AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is dated as of the J)# Ou,6 .5.q, ta.+vir , in the year 2023 by and between

Bourtl of County Conmdssioners
Moffit County, Colorado

(Hereinafter called OWNER)

And
Stripe A Lot,Inc.

(Hereinafter called CONTRACTOR)

OWNER and CONTRACTOR, in consideration of the mutual covenants set fbfth, agree as follows

ARTICLE I _ WORK

CONTRACTOR shall complete all Worl< as specified or indicated in the Contract Documents. The Work is

generally described as fbllows:

This project will be approximately 10.33 miles of Striping - center and shoulder witli traffic
control and sweeping. (See Bid Fortn)

ARTICLE 2 - ROAD DEPARI'MENT

The project has been designed by the l\4offat CoLrnty Road Depa(ment. hereinafter called the ROAD
DEPARTMENT, and the ROAD DEPARI-MENT shall be autholized to oversee the project in connection with
completion of the Worl< in accordance u,ith the Contract Documents.

ARTICLE 3 - CONTRACT ]'IME

3.r CONTRACTOR agrees that Work witl be substantially completed on or before October' 13, 2023 amri

completed by October" 22, :823.

3.2 LIQUIDAI'ED DAMAGES: OWNER and CONTRACTOR recognize that time is of the essence of this
Agreement and that OWNER rvill suffer'financial loss if the Work is not substantially complete rvitltin the

tirne specified in paragraph 3.1 above. 'lhey also recognize the delays, expense, and difficulties iltvoh,ed
in provirrg a legal or arbitration proceeding and the actual loss sLrfl'ered br OWNER if the Work is not
subslantially complete ou tirre. Accordingly- instead of r-eqr.riring such ploof, OWNER and
CONTRACTOR agree that as liquidatcd darnages fbr dclay (but nor as a penalty) CONTRACTOR shall
pay OWNER Nine huudred fifty dollars ($950.00) fol each day tlrat expires after tl.re time specified in
paragraph 3.1 lbr substantialcompletion urrtilthe Work is substantially cotnplete.

In regards to Liquidated Damages, Orvner rvill take into consideration rveather conditions that ntal,affect
job completion. Oue day will ['re giveu for each day the Contractor is unable to u,ork dtte to adverse

weather conditions.

J.J

2t



4.5

4.6

ARTICLE 4 - CONTRACT PRICE]

Moffat County Board of Countl, Contmissioners has appropriated $ 71J62.08 for this project arld
reserves the right to change quantities. delete iterns, or re.iect any and all Bids. OWNER shall pay
CONTRACTOR for perforntance of the Work in accordance with the Contract Documeuts in current
funds.

Non-Appropriation - Each parly hereto agrees that the revenues and expenditures hereunder shall
constitute curl'ellt expenditures and revenues payable and receivable in tlre fiscal years for which funds
are appropriated for the paynient thereof. The obligations of the pafties under this agreement shatl be
from year to year only aud shall not constitute a rnultiple-fiscal year direct or indirect debt or other
financial obligation or any obligation payable in any fiscal year beyond the fiscal year for which funds are
appropriated for the payment thereof or payable from any funds other than funds appropriated for the
payment of current expenditures. No provision of this agreement shall be construed to pledge credit or to
create a lien on any class or source of either paffv's monies. Notwithstanding anv termination. the pafties
shall remaitr liable for auy amounts for prior services provided and not paid.

4.7 Descrirrtion Per Unit Total Price

Repaint-Center and Shoulder
10.33 rniles (approx.)

Repaint - Center lines only
26.9 nriles (approx.)

Corrstructior"t Zone Tra ffi c Control

Su,eepin_9

s 1J50-qQ- $j9-a05-qa

Lunrp $

Lurnp $--

TOTAL

ARTICLE 5 - PAYMENT PROCEDURES

CONTRACI'OR shall sr-rbnrit Applications fbr payrnent.

ROAD DEPARTMENT.

5.1

s 73,962.00

Applications for Payntent rvill be processed by the

PROGRESS PAYMENTS: OWNIIR shall make tnonthly progress payrrents on account of tlre Contract
Price on the basis of CONTRACTOR'S Applications for Payrnents as recorllmended by the ROAD
DEPARTMENT, as provided below and concurrent rvith Moffat County's payment procedures. All
progress payrents will be based on the progress of the work measured.

Prior to Substantial Cotnpletion" progress payrnerlts rvill be in an amouut equal to:5.2

)1

$ 2e00.00* $ 34ps7.00



90% of the Work completed. and

90% of materials and equipment not incorporated in the Work but delivered and suitably
stored Iess in each case the aggregate of payrnents previousll, r.nade.

5.3 Upon Substantial Completion. OWNER shall pay an amount sufficient to increase total payments to
CONTRACTOR to 90oh of the Contract Price. less such amounls as ROAD DEPARI-MENT shall
determine.

5.4 FINAL PAYMENT: Upon final conrpletion and acceptance, OWNER shall pay the remainder of the

Contract Price as recornnrended by the ROAD DEPARTMENT. The final payrnent shall not be made

until after final settlernent of this contract has been duly adverlised at least ten days prior to such final
payment by publication of notice thereof at least tu'ice in a pLrblic newspaper ol genelal circulation
published in Moffal Count5,, and the Board ol' County' Conrmissiorrers has held a public hearittg,

tlrereupon and complied with the Revised Statutes 1973. Section 38-26-107 as amended. Final payment
shall be made in accordance with the requirements of previously mentioned statute.

ARTICLE 6 - CONTRACTOR'S REPRESENTAI'IONS

In order to induce OWNER to enter into this Agreenrent CONTRAC-I'OR rnakes the following represetttations

6.1 CONTRACTOR has farniliarized hinself rvith the nature and extent of the Contract Docurtrents, Work.
locality, and with all local conditions. and federal. state. and local larvs, ordinances, rules and regulations
that in atly l"nauner may affect cost, progress. or performance of the Worlt.

6.2 CONTRACTOR has studied carelully all leports of investigations and tests of subsurface and latent
phl,sical conditions at the site or othenvise affecting cost. progress, or perfonlrance of the Work, rvhich
were relied upon by ROAD DEPAR-lMEt.r-T in the preparation of the Drawings and Specifications.

CONTRACTOR has made, or caused to bc rnade. exanrinations. investigations. artd tests attd studies of
such repofts and related data in addition to those ret'erred to irr paragraph 6.2 as he deems necessary for
the performance of the Worlt at the Contract Price, u,ithin the Contract Time, and in accordance rvith
other terms and conditions of the Contlact Documents: and no additional examinations. investigations.
tests, repofts, or sirnilar data are, or will be required by CONTRACTOR for sucli purposes.

CONTRACTOR has correlated the results of all such observations, exartrinalions. investigations. tests.

reporls, and data u,ith the terrns and conditious olthe Contract Docunrents.

CONTRACTOR has given ROAD DEPARTMENT u,ritten notice of all conflicts. erlors. or discrepartcies

that he has discovered in the Coutract Documents and the written resolution thereof by the ROAD
DEPARTMENT is acceptable to CONTRACTOR.

Contractor is an iltdependent contractor and shall rrot be cleemed to be an employee of County fbr any
purpose. Contractor shall provide all rnaterials necessaly to perfbrrn all services to be provided as

described herein. The Cttntractor is expectecl to perfornr the cluties at its outt expetlsc. receivirrg rro

additional reimbursements for expeuses without prior approval frorl tlte Couuty (i.e. travel, coltllltttel'
supplies. rneeting expenses of i1s enrplol,ees. phone/far/interrtet fees. etc.) In additiotr, the Contractor is

responsible for all employntent expenses of its ernployees. including tax rvitl,holding, worker's
cornpensation, unenrployment, r'etirerlertt, health insurance" and other related costs.

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6
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Services required ltereunder shall be performed by the Contractor or under its supervision, and all
personnel engaged in the services shall be fully qualified and properly Iicensed or ceftified, as required by
local, state and federal larv or regulation to perform such services. Neither Contractor nor its personnel,
if any, is entitled to Worker's Compensation Benefits or any other benefit of employment with
Moffat County, Colorado, Further, Contractor is obligated to pay federal and state income tax on
any compensation paid pursuant to this Agreement.

The Contractor agl'ees to bear full risli of any loss or damage to persous or propefiy, including the loss or
damage of the Contractor's properly, rvhich rna), occur during the performance of duties needed to
cornplete this contract. The Contractor also agrees to indernnify and hold the County hanrless from any
and all claims, expenses and liabilities in connection ivith tlre perfomrance of its duties under the terms of
the Contract.

6.7 CONTRACTOR hereby ceftifies by the signing of this Agreement that all paint and rnaterials meet the
latest and revised CDOT Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction and will furnish a
statement frorn their supplier stating same.

ARTICLE 7 - CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

The Contract Documents, which comprise tlre entire 2023 Striping Project Bid packet. consist of the folloi,r,ing

7.1

7.2
/.J

7.4
7.5

7.6
7.7
7.8
7.9
7.10
7.11
'/.12

Bonds and Cenificates (Page 2. inclusive).
Invitation to Bid (Pages 3 to 4, inclusive).
Instruction to Bidders (Pages 5 to 9, inclusive).
Infonnation for Bidders (Pages l0 to I I , inclusive).
Bid Fonn (Pages 12to 17, inclusive).
lrtsurance Requirements (Pages l8 to 19, inclusive).
Supplenrent to Cerlificate of Insurance (Pages 20 to 21, inclusive)
PLoject Overview (Pages 22 to 24, inclusive)
Agreement (Pages 25 to 30. inclusive).
Addendum nunrbers ("_" to "_, inclusive).
Release of Liens and Claims (Page 33" inclusive).
Maps/Locations (Pages 34 to 37 - inclusive).

There are no Contract Docuntents other than those listed above in this Article 7. The Contract Docuntents may
only be altered. anrended. or repealed by a: (a) written arnendrnent of the contract documents signed by both
parties, (b) change order, or (c) a field order. and can only be issued after the effective date of the agreement.

ARTICLE 8 - MISCELLANEOUS

8.1 No assignnrent b1, a pafty hereto of any righls r.rnder, or interests in the Contract Docurlents will be
binding on another parly hereto rvithout the rvritten consent of thc party, sought to bc bound: and
specifically. but without linritation, moneys that may become due and moneys that are due may not be
assigned withoLrt suclt conseut (except to the extent that the effect of this restrictiotr may be limited by
larv). and ttnless specifically stated to tlte contrary in any u,ritten corlsent to an assignntent, no assignment
will release or disclrarge the assignor fronr an1, duty or responsibility under the Contract Documents.

8.2 OWNER and CONTRACTOR each binds hirrr. his paftners, successors, assigns ancl legal representatives
to the other pafty hereto. in respect to all covenants. agreements. and obligations contained in the Contract
Documents.

1A



8'] APPLICABLE, l.;trW: .t-his 
Agrer,'ment shall be gsverned b.v r}le lau,s, of the State of Colorado.

Jariyiiction and vexuc of on; irrit- right. .rr causc 
-of 

actirrn arising undcr. or i,, c*..nccliolt $ilh thi:

r\grecmenl shall bc r-rclusirc in lv{ollat Countl Colorado'

8'4 AUT}.loRl.lY: Eaclr persolr signing this Agreement fepresenls and warrants thar..he/she is t.ull},

author.ized 10 enter into unC a*..iir. tii'i. Agreeirent and to biud the party represcllled to the provisions ol

this Agreemeot,

t'5 COUNTE'RPARTS AND FACSIMILE SIGNA-||jRES: 1.his Agr*nrent 
- 
ma1, tle' e;.ecuted in

.*,m.'pnn...t"t,tfrvhichshallbtd,rxmtdmsnigma{.facri$\il.e,si-q$aturesof.sl.orrhdwl{o[.G*r',sr
0lContfactolontl,]iSAgrccmcntllndan}'mc}dificatlonherctoshilllhcr:fttctir,ciirrnllpttqroses.

g.6 FORCE MAitruRIi: Neitber pany shall be liable ftrr its lailurc to pedorm hereunder dtre to contingenoies

beyond its reasorlabtc ..rnii itl lr.ira ing bur not limited to srrikes. riors. war and acts ofcod.

8.7 SEVERABILI'IY: Sh<ruirj arry provisitttls of tlris Agreement be determilred b\, a coult of colllpetent

jurisdictiolrtobeunconstitutitlnalorothcnuisenullandvoid-theremailingprovisirrnsoftheAgfecment
shall remaitt in lirll t'orce and elltct'

lNvylTNEssWHF,RE()F.thepalliesheretohavesignedthisAgrecmcntintriplicatc.onecounlerpart
cach has been dclivered to owNgri. ioNTRACTOR, and Roep DEPAR TMENI . All poniot)s ol-the conlract

i;;ri;;.;;;.". been signetl or identitlecl b-'- oWNI:R and (IoNTRACTOR'

f his AEec<nr'm will be eflective on5

OWNER: llloffa1 Countl lloard ol'

Countl Comnrissioncrs

BY
Chair
Board of Coun$' Ctxtmissiolers

Moffat CotrntY Board of
C ountf- Conlm issioncrs

) 19t \\ est \ icrory Nav
Claig. Colorado 81615

Moffat County li,oad DcParlment
Dan Miller, Director
P. 0. Box 667
Craig. CO 81626

r( or{F,t(,\ t l rn n,, r!f;ieroiiiS?i\fit
,\ril sr \w ( ayrl?;lngTPorated 

7-8-05

,- .202.1

CONTR ACTOII St-r CLW

BY: L

Atldress lbr givirtg notices

P,o, '/l q5+
rA6vffi e Ca AMoz

tt ! *.1'

c-

l5

r\ | 1-l:S I

Address tbr giving norices:



E. Contr:actor shail cor:rply rvith cny ruusonabic reque$ b) the I)epanmenr oI Lalor and

I:nrplovnrent r.nadc in thc course ol'an in\csligatn]ll thill tlie l)epartllrelrt is undertaking pursuanl k) llle
authority established in $8- I 7.5- I 0?(5 ). C.R. S.

F. lf Contractor violates this provision ol this Contract, the Orvner may terminate the

Contract lbr a breach of contract. [f the Contract is so ternrinatcd. Contractor shall be liable fot actual

and coflscquential damage-s to the Ckiunty as rcquired b1 lan'-

(i. 'l he ()r,oncr. \l,i11 noril\, titc OlfiLe i)l 1l')c Secrctilr-'v.. of St.rtc il' Cttnlr;rclttt riolatcs lltis

provision of this Contract and the Os'ner terlninates the Contract tbr such breach.

Dated this 

- 

day of 2023

[('0N1'R.\ClORI

By-u\wi? Ab fiesfu*
Signalure

Dz
^6e

c. ut 60A
lllrinted Namel
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PURCHASE OF SEBVICE CONTRACT

CORE SERVICES PROGRAM

MENTAL HEALTH IREATMENT SERVICES

JUNE 1, 2023 - MAY 1t,2024

1
,d\^

THIS CONTRACf, made thls _!!_ dayof
County Board of County Commlssloners/ herelna ca lled "county," 8nd Baker Neuropsychology and Learnlng

Center, 950 Cherry St, sulte 712, Denver, CO 80246, herelnafter called "Contractor."

2. Thls Contract will be effective June 1, 2023 until May 31, Z0l4 regardless of the date of execution.

3. county a$ees to purchase and Contractor aSrees to provide Montal Health Treatment Sorulces to eliSible cllentele

at a location that shall lacilitate the provision of such services. Thls service ls described in Staff ManualVolume 7,

Sectlon 7,303, and the State-approved County Core Services Plan, which is lncorporated by reference hereln,

4. County agrees to purchase and Contractor agrees to provide services to be bllled at the followlnB rates:

2023, by and between the Moffat

Services required hereunder shalt be perforn)ed by the Contractor or under lts supervlslon, and all personncl

engaged ln the services shall be fully qualifled and properly llcensed or certified, as required by local, state and

federal law or regulation to Perform such servlces . Nelther Contractor nor lts oersonn€1, lfanv. ls entitled to

5

The amount to be expended pursuant to this Agreement shall not exceed Flve Thousand Dollars and no/l00 centt

($5,OO0.OO}, The Moffat County Soard of County Commissloners has lawfully approprlaied an amount that is equal

to or ln excess of the compensatlon set fotth herein, whlch amount shall constitute the Contract amount.

contractor shall perform lts dutles pursuant to thls co[tract as an indePendent contractor and not as an employee.

Contractor afflrms that lt has or wlll secure at its own expense all personnel and materlals necossary to perform all

services to be provided as described hcrein. Such personnel shall not be emPloyees of nor have any contractual

relatlonship wlth County. Contractor shall rccelve no addltlonal reimbursement for expenses without prior approval

from county (1.e. travel, computer supplies, meeting expenses of its employees, phone/fax/internet fees, etc.)'

other of em nt wlth Fu Con

aErees to bear full risk of any loss or dam ate to persons or property, lncludinB the loss or damage of t
contractor's property, whlch may occut d uring the performance of duties oeeded to complete this co

Contractor
he

ntract,

None of the Services to be performed by Conlractor undcr this Contract Shall be subcontracted or otherwise

delegated.

Each party hereto agrees that the revenues and expendltures hereunder shall constitute current erpendltures and

revenues payable aid receivable ln the flscal years for which funds are approprlated for the payment thereof' The

ouligations oi county under thls agreement shall be fronr year to Year only and shall not constltute.a multiple'fiscal

yeafdirect or indireit debt or othJr financial obiigation or any obligation payable in any fiscal year beyond the tiscal

iear for whlch funds are approprlated (or the pay-ment thereof or payable from any funds other than funds

approprlated for tnu p,y.unt or.u|,,unt expend|tures, No Provislon ofthls agreement shallbe construed to pl6dge

6

a, comprehensive Neuropsycholo8ical Evaluation: S200/Hour
Evaluations lnclude: testinS, interviewln& scorinS, teport wrlting and feedback



Purchose of Service Contract
Core Services Program

Moffat County/Saker Neuropsychotogy and Learning Center

Page 2

credlt or to create a lien on any class or source of County monies. Notwlthstandlng any termlnation, County shall

remain gable for any amounts for prior servlces provided and not pald so long as services are billable se rvices as set

forth in paragraphs 3 and 4, are authorlzed by County as described In Paragraph 7(b), and are bllled by Contractor

according to Paragraph 8 (e) and {f)'

7, County agrees:

a, To determine child elieibility.
b, To provlde Contractor with authoriration regarding eliglbllity for a child or famlly as the basls for servlces to

be purchased.

c. To provide Contractor with referral information inclucling name and address of family, social, medical and

educatlon information as approprlate to referral'
d. To monitor the provlsion of contracted services.

e. To pay Contractor after tirnely receipt of billing statements to Paragraph I (f) for services rendered

satlsfactorily and in accordance with this Contract. Due to Moffat County payroll restrictions, payment can

only be made for services rendered and billed within the current rnonth or two months prior.

B. Contractor agrees:

a. Not to assign any provision of this Contract to a subcontractor'

b, Not to charge clients any fees related to services provided under this Contract,

c. To hold the necessary ticense(s) which permits tha porformance of the service to be purchased, and/or to

meet applicable State Departrnent of Human Services quallfication requirements.

d. To comply with the requlrements of the Civil Rights Act of 196{ and Sectiott 504, Behabilitation Act of 1973

concerning dlscrimination on the basis of race, color, sex, age, rotlglon, potitical beliefs, nationalorigin, or

handicap.
e. To provide the service described hereln at cost not greater than that charged to other persons in the same

communily,
f. To submit a billing statement by the Srh working day of the month followlng provlsion of servlce. contractor

acknowledges that billing staternents must be received within two (21 months of the provision of service and

understands that fallure to subrnit a bllling statement in a timely manfier will result in forfeiture of payment

for services rendered,

s. To safeguard information and confldentiality of those servired in accordance wlth rules of the Colorado

Department of Human Services, the County Department of Human 5ervlces, and law of the United States

and State of Colorado.
h. To provide County with reports on the provision of seruices as follows:

i, Withln six {6} weeks of enrollrnent/partictpatlon, submisslon of a treatment plan for the childlchild's

family with speclfic objectlves and target dates. The treatment plan ls subiect to county approval'

il. At intervals of one {U month with the subrnission of the monthlY bill, submit reports for each

session that include progress and barriers ln achieving provislons of the treatlnent plan from the

t.

time of enrollment Participation,
To provlde any duly autlrorized represontatlve of the County or the Coloraclo Department of Human Services

access to pertinent records and/or staff for five years after final payment'

To bear full risk of any loss or darnage to persons or property, lncluding the loss or damage of the

contractoy's property, *r,i"n *ry oicur during the performance of dutles needed to cornplete this contract'

The Contractor also agrees to lndcmnifu and hold the County harmless from any and all claims' expenses

and tiabllities in connectlon with the performance of lts duties under the terms of the Contract' Nothing

herein shall ba lnterpreted as a waiver of governmental lmrnunlty to whlch County may otherwise be

entltled under the provislons of Section 24'10'101, e t' seg', C'R'S' , as amended'



Purchase of Servlce Contract
Core Services Program

Moffat County/8aker Neuropsychology and Learning Center
Page 3

k. lnsurance, At all times during the term of thls Contract, Contractor shall maintain the following insurance ln

the minimum coverage limits specifled:

workers' Comoensatlon and Emolover's Llah litv and [J nemolovment lnsurance in accordance witll Sections

8-40-101 and 8-70-101, et seq., C.R.S., as amended;

Professional Llabilitv lnsurance: 51,000,0@ per claim, and $1,000,000 aggregate.

lf any aggreSate llmlts set forth above are reduced below the staled amount because of claims made or pald

durlng the requlred pollcy period, the Contractor slr3li immediatcly obtain additlonal lnsurance to restore

the full aggregate limit and turnlsh a certificate or other document showint compliance with thls provlsion.

All Insurance shall be issued by company(ies) authorlzed to do business in the state of Colorado and shall be

written in a form satisfactory to MoFfat County and filed wlth and approved by the Colorado Department of

lnsuratrce. Contractor shall demonstrate contractual llablllty coverago supportlng the lnd8mnlty
provhlons of thls Contract, elther through pollcy language or by walver ol excluslon' Proof o, workers'

Compensatlon, Employe/s Liablllty and Unemployment lnsurance shall be dellveled to Moffat County's

Representatlve, identlfled below, for sxecutlon by the Eoard of County Commltslone.s. The Certificate(s)

shall provide that the lnsurance may not be materially changed, altered or canceled by the lnsurer without

first 8ivin8 ten (10) days wrltten notlce by certlfled or re8lstercd u,s. Mail, return recelpt requested, to

Moffat county.

g. Termination: Either party may terminatc thlr contract by thirty {30) days prior notification ln writing.

The remalnder of thls page r ras lntentionally left blank



Purchase of Service Contract
Core Sewices Program

Moffat County/Baker Neuropsychology and Learning C€nter
Page 4

10. Each person slgning this Contract represents and warrants that he/she is fully authorized to enter into and execute
thls Contract and to blnd the party represented to the provisions of this Contract.

MOTFAT COUNTY DEPARTMENT

OF HU N SERVICES a
) ,),

ris Grajeda, Dlrector

MOFTAT COUNTY BOARD
OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

MOFFAI COUNTY BOARD OF

HUMAN SERVICES

Date

Tony Bohrer, Chalrperson Date

coNr'Acrofi '-1 4
, : .,:

i '.i/, ,i'L'1, ,, . t Y- \-- \./ - '- t{ z'+
Date

o,ri/. e^k ^' (prlnt nome)

SIATE OF COLONADO }

)ss.
COUNTY OF

Subscribed and afflrmed to before me thls
(Contractor), lndependent Contractor.

witness my hand and seal,

l9- a,y"r rti,rq, LS- 2023, by

KAR EN S WARNOCK
NotarY Public

Stat! of Colorado
Notary lD f 20084016303

M com ission Ex irss 05-,l6.2024

My commission expires;4 J b'- bO$
Nota biic

I

tJp.iro T *,y\c,k-oto!4,st /trd"/



PURCHASE OF SERVICE CONTRACT

CORE SERVICES PROGRAM

MENTAL HEALTH TREATMENT SERVICES

JUNE 1, 2023 - MAY 31, 2024

ffiEEmlffiE
AUG 0 4 2023

Moffat County DHS

1. THIS CONTRACT, made this day of (S
County Board of County Commissioners, hereinaft e called "County," and Liz Smith Counseling,53S Breeze St Craig,

Co 81625, hereinafter called "Contractor."

2. This Contract will be effective June l,2O2l until May 31, 2024, regardless of the date of execution.

3. County agrees to purchase and Contractor agrees to provide Mental Health Treatment Services to eligible clientele
at a location that shall facilitate the provision of such services. This service is described in Staff Manual Volume 7,

Section 7.303, and the State-approved County Core Services Plan, which is incorporated by reference herein.

4. County agrees to purchase and Contractor agrees to provide services to be billed at the following rates:

a. lndividualCounseling:S125/55min
b. Equine counseling: S130/55min
c. EMDR Therapy: S145/55min
d. Couples Therapy: $135/hour

First session of Couples therapy will be a minimum of 3 hours and every session after that is a

minimum of 2 hours/session.
e. lf a Client/Family does not contact the Contractor 24 hours prior to the scheduled appoint to reschedule

or cancel, and the Contractor contacts the County the same day as missed appointment, the County will
pay the negotiated rate of services for three (3) times per client throughout the fiscal year.

The amount to be expended pursuant to this Agreement shall not exceed Ten Thousand dollars and no cents
(10,000.). The Moffat County Board of County Commissioners has lawfully appropriated an amount that is equal to
or in excess of the compensation set forth herein, which amount shall constitute the Contract amount.

5. Contractor shall perform its duties pursuant to this Contract as an independent contractor and not as an employee.

Contractor affirms that it has or will secure at its own expense all personnel and materials necessary to perform all

services to be provided as described herein. Such personnel shall not be employees of nor have any contractual
relationship with County. Contractor shall receive no additional reimbursement for expenses without prior approval
from County (i,e. travel, computer supplies, meeting expenses of its employees, phone/fax/internet fees, etc.).

Services required hereunder shall be performed by the Contractor or under its supervision, and all personnel

enBaged in the services shall be fully qualified and properly licensed or certified, as required by local, state and

federal law or regulation to perform such services. Neither Contractor nor its pe rsonnel, if anv, is entitled to
Worke/s Compensation Benefits or a nv other benefit of emplov ment with Countv. Further. Contractor is

obligated to pay federal and state Income tax on anv compensation paid pursuant to this Contract. Contractor
agrees to bear full risk of any loss or damage to persons or property, including the loss or damage of the
Contractor's property, which may occur during the performance of duties needed to complete this Contract

6. Each party hereto agrees that the revenues and expenditures hereunder shall constitute current expenditures and

revenues payable and receivable in the fiscal years for which funds are appropriated for the payment thereof. The

2023, by and between the Moffat

None of the services to be performed by Contractor under this Contract shall be subcontracted or otherwise
delegated.
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j. To bear full risk of any loss or damage to persons or property, including the loss or damage of the

Contractor's property, which may occur during the performance of duties needed to complete this Contract.
The Contractor also agrees to indemnify and hold the County harmless from any and all claims, expenses
and liabilities in connection with the performance of its duties under the terms of the Contract. Nothing
herein shall be interpreted as a waiver of governmental immunity to which County may otherwise be

entitled under the provisions of Section 24-10-101, et. seq., C.R.S., as amended.
k. lnsurance. At all times during the term of this Contract, Contractor shall maintain the following insurance in

the minimum coverage limits specified:

Workers' Compensation and Emplover's Liabilitv and Unemplovment lnsurance in accordance with Sections

lf any aggregate limits set forth above are reduced below the stated amount because of claims made or paid
during the required policy period, the Contractor shall immediately obtain additional insurance to restore
the full aggregate limit and furnish a certificate or other document showing compliance with this provision.

All insurance shall be issued by company(ies) authorized to do business in the State of Colorado and shall be
written in a form satisfactory to Moffat County and filed with and approved by the Colorado Department of
lnsurance. Contractor shall demonstrate contractual liability coverage supporting the indemnity
provisions of this Contract, either through policy language or by waiver of exclusion. Proof of Workers'
Compensation, Employer's Liability and Unemployment lnsurance shall be delivered to Moffat County's
Representative, identified below, for execution by the Board of County Commissioners. The Certificate(s)
shall provide that the insurance may not be materially changed, altered or canceled by the insurer without
first giving ten (10) days written notice by certified or registered U.5. Mail, return receipt requested, to
Moffat County.

9. Termination Either party may terminate this Contract by thirty (30) days prior notification in writing.

The remainder of this page was intentionally left blank

8-40-101 and 8-70-101, et. seg., C.R.S., as amended;

Professional Liabilitv lnsurance: S1,000,000 per claim, and S1,000,000 aggregate.



PURCHASE OF SERVICE CONTRACT

CORE 5ERVICES PROGRAM

SUBSTANCE ABUSE TREATMENT SERVICES

JUNE 1, 2023 - M AY 3L, 2024

1. THtS CONTRACT, made this 24th day of May, 2023, by and between the Moffat county Board of county

Commissioners, hereinafter called "County," and Reflect Resolve Recover LLC, P.O. Box 1470, Crait, CO 81625,

hereinaft er cal led "Contractor."

2. This Contract will be effective June 1,2023 until May 31,2024, regardlessofthe date ofexecution.

4 County agrees to purchase and Contractor agrees to provide services to be billed at the following rates:

The amount to be expended pursuant to this Agreement shall not exceed TEN THOUSAND DOLIARS AND NO/100

CENTS (91O,OOO). The Moffat County Board of county commissioners has laMully appropriated an amount that is

equal to or in excess of the compensation set forth herein, which amount shall constitute the Contract amount.

5. Contractor shall perform its duties pursuant to this Contract as an independent contractor and not as an employee.

Contractor alfirms that it has or will secure at its own expense all personnel and materials necessary tO perform all

services to be provided as described herein. Such personnel shall not be employees of nor have any contractual

relationship with County. Contractor shall receive no additional reimbursement for expenses without prior approval

from County (i.e. travel, computer supplies, meeting expenses of its employees, phone/fax/internet fees, etc.).

Services required hereunder shall be performed by the Contractor or under its supervision, and all personnel

engaged in the services shall be fully qualified and properly licensed or certified, as required by local, state and

feJeral law or regulation to perform such seNices. Neither Contractor nor its Dersonnel, lf anv. is entitled to
other me th Count' Co Een em n

d to oav federal nd state lncom tax on anv com nsatlon oaid pursuant to this ntract. Contractorobligate
agrees to bear futl risk of any loss or damage to persons or property, including the

Contractor's property, which may occur during the performance of duties needed
loss or damaSe of the
to complete this contract.

None of the services to be performed by Contractor under this Contract sha ll be subcontracted or otherwise

delegated.

3, County atrees to purchase and Contractor agrees to provide substance Abuse Treatment Servlces to eligible

clientele at a location that shall facilitate the provision of such services. This service is described in Staff Manual

Volume 7, Section 7.303, and the State-approved County Core Services Plan, which is incorporated by reference

he rein.

a. Family Therapy: 511s/session
b, lndividual Therapy: $loo/session
c. ln-Home Family Thera pyl$12s/session

d. Eilingual Therapy Services: +S1o/session

e- Court Report Evaluations/Reports/Testimony: $90/hr
f. DiaBnostic Evaluationsl S1@/hr
g. Breathalyzer Analysis: S2/unit
h. Urine Screen (ETG): S3o/unit

i. Urine Screen (Poly): $20lunit
j. Supervised Visitation: S50/hr

k. Therapeutic Supervised Visitation: 565/hr



8. Contractor agrees:

a. To determine child eliSibility.

b. To provide contractor with authorization regarding eligibility for a child or family as the basis for services to

be purchased.

c. To provide contractor with referral information including name and addressof family, social, medical and

education information as appropriate to referral'

d. To monitor the provision of contracted services'

e.TopaycontractoraftertimelyreceiptofbjllingstatementstoParagraph8(f)forservicesrendered
satisfactorily and in accordanie with this Contract. Due to Moffat County payroll restrictions, payment can

only be maie for services rendered and billed within the current month or two months prior.

a. Not to assign any provision of this Contract to a subcontractor'

b. Not to chaige clients any fees related to services provided under this Contract.

c. To hold the necessary license(s) which permirs the performance of the service to be purchased, and/or to

meet applicable State Department of Human Services qualification requirements'

d. To comply with the requirements of the civil Rights Act of 19 and Section 504, Rehabilitation Act of 1973

concerning discrimination on the basis of race, color, sex, age, religion, political beliefs, national origin, or

ha ndica p.

e. To provide the service described herein at cost not greater than that charged to other persons in the same

communitY.
f. To submit a billing statement by the 5rh working day of the month following provision of service contractor

acknowledges that billing statements must be ieceived within two (2) months of the provision of service and

understands that failure to submit a billing statement in a timely manner will result in forfeiture of payment

for services rendered.
g. To safeguard information and confidentiality of those serviced in accordance with rules of the colorado

Depa*irent of Human Services, the County Department of Human Servlces, and law of the United States

and State of Colorado.

h. To provide County with reports on the provision of services as follows;

i. within six (6) weeks of enrollmenvpa rticipation, submission of a treatment plan for the child/child's

family with specific objectives and tar8et dates. The treatment plan is subject to county approval. ,-\

ii. At intervals of one (1);onth with the submisslon of the monthly bill, submit reports for each

sesslon that include irogress and barriers in achieving provisions of the treatment plan from the

time of enrollment participation.

Purchase of Service Contract

Core Services Program

Motfat County/Reflect Resolve Recover LLC

Page 2

6. Each party hereto agrees that the revenues and expenditures hereunder shall constitute current expenditures and

revenues payable and receivabte in the fiscal years for which funds are appropriated for the payment thereof The

obligations of County under this agreement shall be from year to year only and shall not constitute a multiple-fiscal

yea;direct or indirect debt or other financial obligation or any obligation payable in any fiscalyear beyond the fiscal

year for which funds are appropriated for the payment thereof or payable from any funds other than funds

appropriated for the payment of current expenditures. No provision of this agreement shall be construed to pledge

credit or to create a lien on any class or source of County monies Notwithstanding any termination' County shall

remain liable for any amounts ior prior services provided and not paid so long as services are billable seryices as set

forth in Paragraphs 3 and 4, are authorized by county as described in Paragraph 7(b), and are billed by contractor

according to Paragraph 8 (e) and (f).

7. County agrees:



Purchase of Service Contract

Core Services Pro8ram

Moffat county/Reflect Resolve Recover LLc

)age 3

k

iii. Contractor will provide County with a printed, comprehensive test result for each test that is billed

for. The test resultwill provide a breakoutofthe substances tested forand resultsofthe presence

of each in the test sample was extraordinary in any way, i.e., temperature, color, amount, etc.

To provide any duly authorized representative of the county or the colorado Department of Human services

access to pertinent records and/or staff for five years after final payment'

To bear full risk of any loss or damage to persons or property, including the loss or damage of the

Contracto/s property, which may occur during the performance of duties needed to complete this Contract'

The Contractor also aglees to indemnify and hold the County harmless from any and all claims, expenses

and liabilities in connection with the performance of its duties under the terms of the Contract- Nothing

herein shall be interpreted as a waiver of governmental immunity to which county may otherwise be

entitled under the provisions of Section 24-10-101, et. seg', C'R'S , as amended'

lnsurance. At all times during the term of this Contract, Contractor shall maintain the following insurance in

the minimum coverage limits specified:

rs' nsa lo ia bili Unem ent ln in accorda nce with Sections

9

8-4G101 and 8-70-101, et seq., C'R.S., as amended;

Professional Liabilitv lnsurance: $1,OOO,o0o perclaim, and S1,000,000 aggregate'

If any aggregate limits set forth above are reduced below the stated amount because of claims made or paid

during ttre required policy period, the Contractor shall immediately obtain additional insurance to restore

thu fril .ggr"gut" limit and furnish a certificate or other document showing compliance with this provision'

All lnsurance shall be issued by company(ies) authorized to do business in the State of Colorado and shall be

written in a form satisfactory to Moffat County and filed with and approved by the Colorado Department of

lnsurance. Contractor shall demonstrate contractual liability coverage supporting the indemnity

provisions of this contract, either through policy language or by waiver of exclusion. Proof of workers'

compensation, Employ€/s Liabllity and unemployment lnsurance shall be delivered to Moffat counvs

Representative, identified below, ior execution by the Board of county Commissioners' The certificate(s)

sh;ll provide that the insurance may not be materially changed, altered or canceled by the insurer without

first giving ren (10) days written notice by cenified or registered u.s. Mail, return receipt requested, to

Moffat CountY.

Termination: Either party may terminate this contract by thirty (30) days prior notification in writinE'

THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONATIY IEFT BLANK

j
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10, Each person signing this contract represents and warrants that he/she is fully authorized to enter into and execute

this contract and to bind the party represented to the provisions of this contract.

MOFFAT COUNTY DEPARTMENT

OF HU

))

n Grajeda, Directo Da

MOFFAT COUNTY BOARD

OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

MOFFAT COUNTY BOARD OF

HUMAN SERVICES

Tony Bohrer, Chairperson Date

?-as -3o23

,\1

Date

(print nome)e \.ss-

LCS(J, LAL
STATE OF COLORADO )

) ss.

)

Subscribed and affirmed to before me this
(Contractor), lndependent Contractor.

Witness my hand and seal.

My commission e rpir"s, l'24'3k

(title)

A5 oayor 2023, by

TAMMY LADAWN KEARNES
NOTARY PUBLIC

STATE OF COLOR'OO

My
NOTARY

Conmission.

tD #20224003362
24,24?5

Notary Public

I

CONTRACTOR

coururvorflL&L



MONTHLY REPORT OF MOFFAT COUNTY TREASI]RER
AUGUST 01, 2023 THRU AUGUST 31, 2023

BEGINNING
BALANCE

REVENUES------ DISBURSEMENTS-
CURRENT TAX MISCELLANEOUS DEIJINOUENT TAX SPECIFIC TRANSFERS CASI] TREASURERS TRANSFERS-OUI
& INTEREST COLLECTIONS & INTEREST OWNERSI{IP (IN) WITHDRAWALS FEES

ENDING
BALANCEFIJND

GENERAL FUND
ROAD & BRIDGE FUND
DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES

MOFFAT COUNTY LOC MRKT DIST
CONSERVATION TRUST FUND
MOFFAT COUNTY PT'BLIC HEALTH
I,ANDFILL
POST CI,OSI]RE . LANDFILL
PSC - JAIL FUND
COI'NTY HEALTH & WELFARE
MEMORIAT REGIONAL HEALTH
WARRAN? FUND - COUNTY
SHADOW !flTN LOCAI, IMPROVE DIST
AIRPORT FI'ND
PUBLIC LIBRARY
COLO NORTHWEST COMM COLLEGE
M C SCHOOLS RE#1 - GENERAL
CAPITA], PROJECTS FUND
PUBI,IC SAFETY CENTER - CAP PROJ
NC TELECOM ESCROW ACCOIJNT
SUNSET #1 SECURITY DEPOSIT
SUNSET MEADOWS #1
SUNSET MEADOWS #2
SENIOR CITIZENS CENTER - 15
SI]NSET #2 SECURITY DEPOSIT
COIJRTHOUSE LEASE PI'RCHASE FUND
SCHOOLS RE#1 - BOND
CITY OF CRAIG
TOWN OF DINOSAUR
CAPITAL FUND - CITY OF CRAIG
ARTESIA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
CRAIG RURAI, FIRE PROTECTION DIST
MAYBELL IRRIGATION
MAYBELL SANITATION
COLO. RIVER WATER CONSERVATION
YEI,I,OW .]ACKET CONSERVANCY DIST.
MUSEI'M OF NORTHWEST COLORADO
POTHOOK WATER DISTRICT
MOFFAT COT'NTY TOURISM .LODGING 19
INTERNAI SER FUND-CENTRAL-DUP
.]I]NIPER WATER CONSERVANCY DIST.
HIGI{ SAVERY WATER DISTRICT
UPPER YAMPA WATER CONSERVANCY
911 FUND
ADVANCE TAXES - REAL ESTATE
ADVANCED TAXES - 2012
ADVANCE TAXES - MOBILE HOMES
COUNTY CLERK'S CO],I,ECTION
CHECK CHANGE ACCOI'NT
INDIVIDUAI, REDEMPTION ACCOUNT
PAYROL], EFT TAX PAYMENTS
CRAIG DIST ADVISORY GRAZING BOARD

OTL & GAS EXEMPTION FI,JND REVENUE S
SPECTFIC OWNERSI{TP

COI'NTY SAIES & LEASES
MOTOR VEHICLE REGIST.
2023 TREASURERS TAX DEED

)a q11 lat E1

70,90t,267 .32
L , 5L4 ,132 .90

266,496.t8
'787,607 -02
205,214.90
92t , 628 .63

r , 610 , 259 .69
218, 000.00

1,298,19r.24
3,622,'764.28

5,815.85

< ta1 1a) L)
7,094,O9'7.58

153 , 928 .45
60 .57

50,313.82
648.02

24,'754.83
90,950.09

58, 013.04

3, 337.00

1, 161. 98

8, 938.37

8, 940.15
83,074.98

54.20

3.L4
94,O40.1-'7

6L , 001 .41
39'7 ,381 .4t

1.10

8.40

45.00

2 .38

3 ,360 ,3s4 . s7

411, 5oo . oo

-61, 783.83
-9,895.55

-6 .44

-858.67

-L ,3t9 ,993 .96
-7 65 , 506 .25
-L63 ,062 .60

-5 , 964 .73
-46 , 605 .55
-7,'7).0.90

-40,343.55
-34,'79L.49

33,745,576 .38
11,314,003.16

1, 508 , 383 . 89
260 , 592 .62
801,315.28
204 ,205 .54
90',1 ,202.99

7,65L,569-52
218,000 - 00

7, L85 ,620 .44
3,594,564."14

I ,946 -11
409 ,568 .25
r94 ,678 .'7'7
279 ,899 .30
422,3t6.31

20 ,6L7 .29
2r'7 ,286 -56

5, 152 , 103 . 14
543.58

256 , L15 -2r
79 , 023 .64

173,626 .53
24'7 ,252 .26
165 , 824 .52

76,35O .9'7
0.00

19, 117 .78
3'1 ,251 .32

620.80
4,383.53

606 -22
L6 ,7)9 .59

6 ,839 .16
149 ,566 .98

3 ,343 .52
95.34
0.00

429.5L
L19,995.54
95,L76.97
38,283 .59

2 ,475 .20
2 ,935 .66

556, r.10.45
9,137 .2r

0.00
0.00

533 , 618 .35
0-00

610.42
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

).L ,536 .16
13 , 926 .09

1, 518 . 70

240,
193,
279,
446,
18,

20s,
aa2,

542
255,r90

18,998
752,4L0
248,544
).'7 5 , 206
16,300

0

L2,428
40 , 64r

7 ,862
3

1
74

6

r49
2

847
190
776
139
118
394
005

,587
,103
,472
,320
,331
,985

'74

0

9,L37
0
0

4',15 ,159
0
0
0
0
0
0

33
62
56
85
37
L2
r4
'73

91
64
80
41-

10
97
00

22
43
01

96
91
'74

3'7
20
00
39
58

19
o0
20
69

00
00
41-

00
00
00
00
00
00
99
53
40

1,488.15
2 ,609 .60
2 , 566 .53

-5,8r.5.85
-3,191,533.5s

-7'74,117.91-
-425,587 .33

-1,8?1.18
-26 , 964 .35

-6ss,2L9 .t6

-824 .45

-15.58
-25 .66
-89.48
230.31

-58.79
-15.18

-381.12

-14.30
-72.55
-1.56

808

41,358
45 ,407

9, L27
50

18, 315 . 15

8.41
'74.65

1.41

95
'76

00
26
86
5'7
00

Lr,158.2
134,361.2

2 , 84t .2L

-18,118.37
-205 ,394 . L2

-2 , 985 .3't
-74.20

-20 , L42 .53
-46 , '7 84 .01
-18,509.15

03
93
03
o4

19, 10
25,4L

L6.75
11.20

r -32

3.53

72 ,321
2so

7 ,449
30?

9 ,156
190

-12 ,428 .5',7

- 40 ,641 .22
-t , 862 .43
-3,587.01
-1,103 . s2

-t4,4t2.95

-499.63

-411,500.00

-1,181.35

-3 ,205 . 45

313 .58
'1 ,966 .2A

328.00

37
2 ,99

L , 49L .69
34 .39

r.,430.89
t , 962 .97

53.59

0

96 ,536
38,230

0
3,038

638,958

2'.7 ,286 .36
I ,128 .22

54.04
2, 380.00

451.05 -2L .93

-.54

-4.81

-9 , 964 .40
-2 , 488 .23

95 ,20
99.26

20 ,35'.7 .21-
-3,038.20

-463 , 436 .60
-2 , 4t5 .16
-5, 935.90

-300,207 .36

-268,"t10.93

s2L ,295 . s4
2 , 415 .16
6 , 607 .32

300,207.35

6, 0s1
1 ,492
1 ,'743

254 ,710 .93
5 ,484 .17
6 , 433 .45

-224.10



201? TREASURERS TAX DEED
2O1O TREASURER'S TAX DEED
2022 TREASURER DEED'S

0.00
3,'770.8L

0.00

3,'.|48.14
-55.29

,748.74
,'715 .52

0.00

3
3

GRAND TOTALS 6L , 259 , 450 .46 222 ,733 . O0 a , 664 t 226 .90 184.13 268,770.93 3,77).,90L.95 -4,542,083.47 -73,989.',l0 -4,183,401.95 65,357,142.31

I, Linda PeEers, County
of Che condition of the

Robert Razzano, Moffat

Exanined by

Tony Bohrer
Chairperson

in and for
funds as they

fat in the State of Colorado, do hereby certify thal the foregoing is a true gtatement
records in my office at the cLose of business on the 31st day of August 2023.

lreioay viffua Donald Broom



ELECTRONIC
RECORDING
TECHNOLOGY
BOARD

August 24, 2023

Stacy Morgan

Moffat County Clerk & Recorder

I 198 W Victory Way

Craig, CO 8 1625

Dear Clerk Morgan:

On behalfofthe Electronic Recording Technology Board, we are pleascd to inform you that your county has

been awarded a grant in the amount of $30,142.00 from the Electronic Recording Technology Fund.

Attached to this letter are the terms and conditions o fyour Grant. Please review these terms and conditions as

they are requirements of this Grant to which the County agrees by accepting the Grant Funds.

Once you have reviewed the Grant Award Lctlcr, pleasc cmail Execulive Director Michellc Batcy at

crtbcxccutivL{iircclori.i sn)ail.con} with thc nams, title, and email addres of the County Commissioner who wili
sign the grant agreement. He or she will then be routed a grant agreemenl to sign through DocuSign. There will
bc no need to mail any hard copies of fte $anl agrcement.

Additional)y, p lease email an invoice to crtbcxccutl\edrr!ctork{ gnlail.corl

I I you have questions rcgarding this Grant, plearc conlact: Exocutivc Director Michellc tsatcy at 3 03 -3 5 6-21 74

or by email ertbex cc utivcd ircc tor(ar gma il. co nr

Sincercly,

Chris Beall
Electronic Recording Technology Board

,EEEITBmI
r.;2 52023 Illll

tt



GRANT AWARD LETTER
SUMMARY OF GRANT AWARD TERMS AND CONDITIOI{S

Electronic Recordng Technology Board,
Colorado Department of State

State

Board of County Commissioners of Moffat County

Grantee

The later of August 24, 2023 or the date the State Controller or
an authorized delegate signs this Grant Letter

Grant Issuance Date

StateFiscalYear2023-2024: S30,142.00
Total Grant Amount for all State Fiscal years:
s30,r 42.00

Total Grant Amount will be dsbursed upon full execution
of this Granr Award Letter.

nt Amount

Grant Expiration Date
June 30,2026

$$ 24-2 l -401 et seq., C.R.S., particularly g 24-2 1404, C.R.S.

Grant Authorilv

By statute, Grant Funds are awarded to establish, maintain, improve, orreplace a County's electronic filing system. The
purpose of this grant is described more futly in the County's granr application (Exhibit A, Staremenr of Work ).

Grant Purpose

The following Exhibits and attachments are included with this Grant:
I . Exhibit A. Statement ol Work.

In the event of a conflict or inconsistency belween this Cnant and any Exhibir or attachment, such conflict or inconsistency
shatl be resolved by reference to the documents in the foilowing order of priority:

I . The provisions of the other sections of the ma in body of th is Gra nt.
2. Exhibit A, Statement olWork.

Exhibits and Order of Precedence

Page I ol l0 Version I020



SIGNATURE PAGE

THE NATORIES LISTED BELOW AUT HORIZE THIS GRANT

STATE OF COLORADO
Jared Polis, Govemor

Jena Griswold, Secretary of State
Electronic Recordng Technology Board (ERTB)

By: Christopher Beall, Treasurer

Date

NIOFFAT COA{TY
Board of County Commissioners of Moflat County

Date:

Bv

In accordance with $24-30-202 c.R.s., this Grant is not valid until signed
and dated below by the State Controller or an authorized delegate.

STATE CON"TROLLER
Robert Jaros, CpA, MBA lO

By

Date

Page2ofl0 Version 1020



I GRANT

As of the Grant Issuance Date, the State Agency shown on the first page of this Grant Award
Letter (he "state") hereby obligates and awards to Grantee shown on the first page of this Grant
Award Letter(the "Grantee") an award ofGrant Funds in the amounts shown on the first page of
this Grant Award Letter. By acceptrng the Grant Funds provided under this Grant Award LJtter,
Grantee agrees to comply with the terms and conditions of this Grant Award Letter and
requirements and provisions of all Exhibits to this Grant Award Lerter.

2, TERM

3

A. Initral Grant Term and Extension

The Parties' respective performances under this Grant Award Letter shall commence on the
Grant Issuance Date and shall terminate on the Grant Expiration Date unless sooner
terminated or further extended in accordance with the terms of this Grant Award Letter.
upon request of Grantee, the state may, in rts sole discretion, extend the term of this Grant
Award Letter by providing Grantee with an updated Grant Award Letter showing the new
Grant Expiration Date.

B. Early Termination in the Public Interest

The State is entering into this Grant Award Letter to serve the public interest of the State of
colorado as determined by its Govemor, General Assembly, or courts. If this Grant Award
Letter ceases to further the public interest of the state or if State, Federal or other funds
used for this Grant Award Letter are not appropriated, or otherwise become unavailable to
fund this Grant Award Letter, the state, in its discretion, may terminate this Grant Award
Letter in whole or in part by providing written notice to Grantee that includes, to the extent
practicable, the public interest justification for the termination. If the State terminates this
Grant Award Letter in the public interest, the State shall pay Grantee an amount equal to
the percentage of the total reimbursement payable undei this Grant Award Letter that
corresponds to the percentage of work satisfactorily completed, as determined by the state,
less payments previously made. Additionally, the State, in its discretion, may reimburse
Grantee for a portion of actual, out-of-pocket expenses not otherwise reimbursed under this
Grant Award Letter that are incurred by Grantee and are directly attributable to the
uncompleted ponion of Grantee's oblgations, provided that the sum of any and all
reimbursements shall not exceed the maximum amount payable to crantee hereunder. This
subsection shall not apply to a termination of this Grant Award Letter bv the State for
breach by Granree.

DEFINITIONS

The following terms shall be construed and interpreted as lollows:

A. "Business Day" means any day in which the State is open and conducting business, but
shall not include Saturday, Sunday or any day on which the state observes one ol the
holidays listed in 924-ll-101(l) C.R.S.

B. "CORA" means the Colorado Open Records Act, g$24-72-200.1 er seg., C.R,S.

c. "Grant Award Letter" means this letter which offers Grant Funds to Grantee, including all
attached Exhibits, all documents incorporated by reference, all referenced statutes. rules and
cited authorities, and any future updates thereto.

Page 3 of l0 Vers,on l0:0



D. "Grant Funds" means the funds that have been appropriated, designated, encumbered, or
otherwise made available for payment by the State under this Grant Award Letter.

E. "Grant Expiration Date" means the Grant Expiration Date shown on the first page of this
Grant Award Letter.

F. "Grant Issuance Date" means the Crant Issuance Date shown on the first page of this
Grant Award Letter.

G. "Exhibits" exhibits and atrachments included with this Grant as shown on the first page of
this Grant

H. "Extension Term" means the penod of time by rvhich the Grant Expration Date is
extended by the State through delivery of an updated Granr Award Letter

I. "Coods" means any movable material acquired, produced, or delivered by Grantee as set
forth in this Grant Award Lelter and shall inctude any movable material acquired,
produced, or delivered by Grantee in connection with the Services.

J. "Incident" means any accidental or deliberate event that results in or constitutes an
imminent threat of the unauthorized access or disclosure of State Confidential Information
or of the unauthorized modification, disruption, or destruction of any State Records.

K. "Initial Term" means the time period between the Grant Issuance Date and the Grant
Expmtion Date.

L. "Party" means the State or Grantee, and "Parties" means both the State and Granree.

M. "PII" means personally identifiable information including, without limitation, any
information maintained by the State about an individual that can be used to distinguish or
trace an individual's identity, such as name, social security number, date and place of birth,
mother's maiden name, or biometric records; and any other information that is linked or
lurkable to an individual, such as medical, educational, financial, and employment
information. PII includes, but is not limited to, all information defined as personally
identifiable information in gg24-72-501 and 24-71-101 C.R.S.

N. "Services" means the services to be performed by Grantee as set forth in this Grant Award
Letter, and shall include any services to be rendered by Grantee in connection with the
Goods.

O. "State Confidential Information" means any and all State Records not subject to
disclosure under CORA. State Confidential Information shall include, but is not limited to,
PII and State personnel records not subject to disclosure under CORA. State Confidential
Information shall not include information or data conceming individuals that is nor deemed
confidential but neverrheless belongs to the State, which has been communicated,
fumished, or disclosed by the State to Contractor which (i) is subject to disclosure pursuant
to CORA; (ii) is already known to Contractor without restrictions at the time of irs
disclosure to Contractor; (iii) is or subsequently becomes publicly available without breach
of any obligation owed by Contracror to the Statei (iv) is disclosed ro Contracror, withour
confidentiality obligations, by a third pany who has the nght to disclose such information;
or (v) was independently developed without reliance on any State Confidential Information.

P. "State Fiscal Rules" means the fiscal rules promulgated by the Colorado State Controller
pursuant to $24-30-202( l3)(a) C.R.S.

Page 4 of l0 versio. I020
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a "State Fiscal Year" means a 12 month period beginning on July I of each calendar year
and ending on June 30 of the following calendar year. If a single calendar year followi the
term, then it means the State Fiscal Year ending in that calendar year.

R. "State Records" means any and all State data, information, and records, regardless of
physical form, including, but not limited to, information subject to disclosure und-er coRA.

S. "Subcontractor" means third-parties, if any, engaged by Grantee to aid in perflormance of
the Work. "Subcontractol' also includes sub-grantees.

T. "work" means the delivery of the Goods and performance of the Services described in this
Grant Award Letter.

u. "work Product" means the tangible and intangible results of the work, whether finished
or unfinished, including drafts. work product includes, but is not limited to, documenrs,
text, software (including source code), research, reports, proposals, specifications, plans,
notes, studies, data, images, photographs, negatives, pictures, drawings, designs, models,
surveys, maps, materials, ideas, concepts, know-how, and any other resuks of the Work.
"work Product" does not include any material that was developed prior to the Granr
Issuance Date that is used, without modification, in the performance of the Work.

Any other term used in this Grant Award Letter that is defined in an Exhibit shall be construed
and interpreted as defined in that Exhibit.

STATEMENT OF WORK

Grantee shall complete the Work as descnbed in this Grant Award Letter and in accordance with
the provisions of Exhibit A. The State shall have no liability to compensate or reimburse Grantee
for the delivery of any goods or the perfbrmance of any services thai are not specifically set forth
rr this Grant Award Letter.

PAYMETT-TS TO GRANTEE

A. Maximum Amount

Payments to Grantee are limited to the unpaid, obligated balance of rhe Grant Funds. The
State shall not pay Grantee any amount under this Grant that exceeds the Grant Amount lor
each State Fiscal Year shown on the tirst page of this Grant Award Letter. Financial
obLgations of the state payable after the current state Fiscal year are contingent upon
funds for that purpose being appropriated, budgeted, and otherwise made avail-able,'The
State shall not be liable to pay or reimburse Grantee lor any work perlormed or expense
incurred after the Grant Expiration Date,

B. Close-Out.

Grantee shall close out rhis Grant within 45 days after the Grant Expiration Date. To
complete close out, Grantee shall submit to the stat€ all deliveiables (including
documentation) as defined in this Grant Award Letter.

REPORTING - NOTIFICATION

A. Perlormance and Final Status

Grantee shall submit all financial, pertbrmance and other reports to the state no later than
the end of the close out described in $5B, containing an evaluation and review of Grantee's
perlormance and the final status of Grantee's obligations hereunder.

5

6
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B. Violations Reponing

Grantee shall disclose, in a timely manner, in wnting ro the state, all violations of federal or
state criminal law involving fraud, bribery, or gratuity violarions potentially affecting the
award.

CRANTEE RECORDS

A. Maintenance and Inspection

Grantee shall maintain records that provide a complete audit trail of funds received and
expended, and Grantee shall cooperate and participate in any audits conducted under
authority of the Electronic Recording Technology Board or the colorado state Audiror.

Grantee shall maintain an accounting system and financial records that accurately account
for the receipt and disbursement of Grant Funds. For this purpose, Grantee may use either
general ledger fund accounting that tracks Grant Funds separately from other county funds
or use a tracking spreadsheet. AII pa)"rnents and expenditures must be tracked. Each
expenditure must be classified by budget category, such as personnel, Supplies and
Operating, Travel, Equipment, and Professional Services. All financial records must be
supponed by source documentation (such as invoices, time sheets, etc.).

In addition, Grantee shall provide proof of purchase by a signed contract for any new
purchase. Contracts may be emailed to ERTB.Grants@sos.state.co.us.

Grantee shall make, keep, and maintain, all records, documents, communications, notes and
other written materials, electronic media files, and communications, pertaining in any
manner to this Grant for a period of three years lbllowing the completion of the close out of
this Grant. Grantee shall permit the State to audit, inspect, examine, excerpt, copy and
transcribe all such records during normal business hours at Grantee's office or place of
business, unless the State determines that an audit or inspection is required without notice at
a d ifferent time to protect the interests of the State.

B. Monitoring

The State will monitor Grantee's performance of its obligations under this Grant Au,ard
Letter using procedures as determined by the state. The State shall have the right, ir its sole
discretion, to change its monitoring procedures and requirements at any time during the
term of this Agreement. The state shall monitor Grantee's performance in a manner that
does not unduly interlere with Grantee's performance of the Work.

C. Final Audit Report

Grantee shall promptly submit to the Srate a copy of any final audit report of an audit
performed on Grantee's records that relates to or affects this Grant or the Work, whether the
audit is conducted by Grantee or a third party.

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION.STATE RECORDS

A. Confidentiality

Grantee shall hold and maintain, and cause all Subcontractors to hold and maintain, any and
all State Records that the state provides or makes available to Grantee for the sole and
exclusive benefit of the State, unless those State Records are otherwise publically available
at the time of disclosure or are subject to disclosure by Grantee under CORA. Grantee shall
not, without prior written approval of the State, use for Grantee's own benefit, publish,
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copy, or otherwise disclose ro any third party, or permir the use by any third party for its
benefit or to the detriment of the state, any state Records, except as otherwise siated in this
Grant Award Letter. Grantee shall provide for the security of all State confidential
Information in accordance with all policies promulgated by the colorado olfice of
Information Security and all applicable laws, rules, policies, publications, and guidelines. If
Grantee or any of its Subcontractors will or may receive the following types of data,
Grantee or ils Subcontractors shall provide for the security of such dataiciording to the
following: (i) the most recently promulgated IRS publication 1075 for all rax Information
and in accordance with the Safeguarding Requirements for Fed.eral rax Information
attached to this Grant as an Exhibit, if applicable, (ii) the most recently updated pCI Dara
Security Standard from the PCI Security Standards council for all pcl, (iii) rhe most
recently issued version of the u.s. Department of Justice, Federal Bureau of Investigation,
cnminal Justice Information Services Security policy for all cJI, and (iv) the federal
Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act lor all pHI and the HIpAA Business
Associate Agreement attached to this Grant, if applicable. Grantee shall immediately
forward any request or demand for State Records to the state's principal representative.

Other Entity Access and Nondisclosure Agreements

Grantee may provide State Records to its agents, employees, assigns and subcontractors as
necessary to perform the work, but shall restrict access to state confidential Information to
those agents, employees, assigns and Subcontractors who require access to perform their
obligations under this Grant Award Letter. Grantee shall ensure all such agents, employees,
assigns, and Subcontractors sign nondisclosure agreements with provisions ut l.urt u,
protective as those in this Grant, and that the nondisclosure agreements are in force at all
times the agent, employee, assign or Subcontractor has accesi to any srate Confidential
Information. Grantee shall provide copies of those signed nondisclosure restrictions to the
State upon request.

Use, Security, and Retention

Grantee shall use, hold and maintain State Confidential Information in compliance with any
and all applicable laws and regularions in facilities Iocated v.ithin the United States. and
shall maintain a secure environment that ensures confidentiality of all Stare Confidential
Information wherever located. Grantee shall provide the State with access, subject to
crantee's reasonable security requirements, for purposes of inspecting and monitoring
access and use of State Confidential Information and evaluating security control
effectiveness. upon the expiration or termination of this Grant, Grantei shall reium State
Records provided to Grantee or destroy such State Records and certity to the state that it
has done so, as dkected by the State. If Grantee is prevented by law or regulation from
retuming or destroying state confidential lnformation, Grantee warrants h will guarantee
the confidentiality of, and cease to use, such State Confidential Information.

I ncident Notice and Remediation

If Grantee becomes aware of any Incident, it shall notify the State immediately and
cooperate with the State regarding recovery, remediation, and the necessity to involve law
enforcement, as determined by the State. After an Incident, Grantee shall take steps to
reduce the risk of incumng a similar type of Incident ia the future as directed by the State,
which may include, but is not limited to, developing and implementing a remediation plan
that is approved by the State at no additional cost to the State.

Verlion l0l0



E. Safeguarding PII

If Grantee or any of its Subcontracton wrll or may receive PII under this Agreement,
Grantee shall provide for the secunty of such PII, in a manner and form acceptable to the
State, including, without limitation, State non-disclosure requirements, use oi appropriate
technology, security practices, computer access security, data access security, data storage
encryption, data transmission encr,?tion, security inspections, and audits. Grantee and its
Subcontracton shall maintain security procedures and practices consistent with $$24-73-
l0l et seq., C.R.S.

9. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

Grantee shall not engage in any business or activities, or maintain any relationships, that conflict
in any way with the full performance of the obligations of Grantee under this Grant. Grantee
acknowledges that, with respect to this Grant, even the appearance of a conflict of interest shall
be harmful to the State's interests and absent the State's prior written approval, Grantee shall
refrain from any practices, activities or relationships that reasonably appeai io be in conflict with
the full performance ofGrantee's obligations under this Grant. If a conflict or the appearance of a
conflict arises, or if Grantee is uncenain ',vhether a conflict or the appearance of a conflict has
arisen, Grantee shall submit to the State a disclosure statement setting lorth the relevant details
for the State's consideration.

10. INSURANCE

Grantee shall maintain at all times dunng the term of this Grant such liability insurance, by
commercial policy or self-insurance, as is necessary to meet its liabilities under the Colorado
Govemmental Immunity Act, $24-10-101, el seq., C.R.S. (the "GIA"). Grantee shall ensure that
any Subcontracton maintain all insurance customary for the completion of the Work done by that
Subcontractor and as required by the State or the CIA.

II, REMEDIES

In addition to any remedies available under any exhibit to this Grant Award Letter, if Grantee
fails to comply with any term or condition of this Crant, the State may terminate some or all of
this Grant and require Grantee to repay any or all Grant funds to the Stare in the State's sole
discretion. The State may also terminate this Grant Award Letter at any time if the State has
determined, in its sole discretion, that Grantee has ceased performing the Work without intent to
resume performance, prior to the completion of the Work.

I2. DISPUTE RESOLUTION

Except as herein specifically provided otheru ise, disputes conceming the perfbrmance of this
Grant that cannot be resolved by the designated Party representatives shall be referred in wnting
to a senior departmental management staff member designated by the State and a senior manager
or official designated by Gmntee for resolution.

13. NOTICES AND REPRESENTATIVES

Each Party shall identify an individual to be the principal representative of the designating Party
and shall provide this infbrmation to the other Party. All notices required or permitted to bi given
under this Grant Award Letter shall be in writ:.ng, and shall be delivered either in hard copy or by
email to the representative of the other Party. Either Party may change its principal representative
or pnncipal representative contact information by notice submitted rn accoidanci with this $13.
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14. GOVERNMENTAL T}IMUNITY
Liability for claims for injuries to persons or property arising from the negligence of the panies,
their departments, boards, commissions committees, bureaus, offices, employees and officials
shall be controlled and limited by the provisions of the Colorado Govemmental Immunity Act,
$24-10-101, et seq., C.R.S.; the Federal Tort Claims Act, 28 U.S.C. pt. VI, Ch. l7l ind 28
U.S.C. 1346(b), and the Srare's risk management starutes, gg24-30-l50l,etseq.C.R.S. No term
or condition of this Contract shall be consrrued or interpreted as a waiver, express or implied, of
any of the immunities, rights, benefits, protections, or other provisions, contained in these

Grantee's rights and obligations under this Grant are personal and may not be transferred or
assigned without the prior, written consent of the State. Any artempt ar assignmenl or
transfer without such consent shall be void. Any assignment or transfer of Grantee's rights
and obligations approved by the state shall be subject to the provisions of this Grant Award
Letter,

Captions and References

The captions and headrngs in this Grant Award Letter are for convenience of reference
only, and shall not be used to inrerpret, define, or limit its provisions. All references in this
Grant Award Letter to sections (whether spelled out or using the $ symbol), subsections,
exhibits or other attachments, are references to sections, subsections, exhibits or other
attachments contained herein or incorporated as a part hereof, unless otherwise noted.

Entire Understanding

This Grant Award Letter represents the complete integration of all understandings between
the Parties related to the work, and all prior representarions and understandings related to
the Work, oral or written, are merged into thls Grant Award Letter.

Modification

The State may modify the terms and conditions of this Grant by issuance of an updated
Grant Award Letter, which shall be effective if Grantee accepts Grant Funds following
receipt of the updated letter. The Parties may also agree to modification of the terms and
conditions of the Grant in a formal amendment to this Grant, properly executed and
approved in accordance with applicable Colorado State iaw and State Fiscal Rules.

Statutes, Regulations, Fiscal Rules, and Other Aurhority.

Any reference in this Grant Award Letter to a statute, regulation, State Fiscal Rule, fiscal
policy or other authority shall be interpreted to refer to such authority then curent, as may
have been changed or amended since the Grant Issuance Date. Grantee shall strictly comply
with all applicable Federal and State laws, rules, and regulations in effect or hereaitei
established, including, wrthout limitation, laws applicable to discrimination and unfair
employment practices.

Digital Signatures

If any signatory signs this agreemenr using a digital signature in accordance with the
Colorado State Controller Contract, Grant and Pwchase Order Policies regarding the use of
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digital signatures issued under the State Fiscal Rules, then any agreement or consent to use
digital signatures within the electronic system through which that signatory signed shall be
incorporated into this Contract by reference.

G. Severability

The invalidity or unenforceability of any provision of this Grant Award Letter shall not
affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision of this Grant Award Letter,
which shall remain in full force and effect, provided that the Parties can continue to perform
their obligations under the Grant in accordance with the intent of the Grant.

H. Survival of Certain Grant Award Letter Terms

Any provision of this Grant Award Letter that imposes an obligation on a Party after
termination or expiration of the Grant shall survive the termination or expiration of the
Grant and shall be enforceable by the orher party.

I. Third Party Beneficiaries

Except for the Pa(ies' respective successors and assigns described above, this Grant Award
Letter does not and is not intended to confer any rights or remedies upon any person or
entity other than the Parties. Any services or benefits which third parties receive as a result
of this Grant are incidental to the Grant, and do nor create any righrs for such third parties.

J. Waiver

A Party's failure or delay in exercising any right, power, or privilege under this Granr
Award Letter, whether explicit or by lack of enforcement, shall not operate as a waiver, nor
shall any single or partial exercise of any right, power, or privilege preclude any other or
further exercise of such right, power, or privilege.

K. [Reserved]

L. Authority

Each Party represents and warrants to the other that the execution and delivery of this
Agreement and the performance of such Party's obligations have been duly authorized.
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ACREEMENT

This CONTRACT OF SERVICES AGREEMENT ("Agreement") made this l2th day of September 2023 b1,and between the Board
of County Commissioners of Moffat County. Colorado ("'BOCC") and Mastenworks Mechanical, Inc.("Contractor"), whose address is
461 Yampa Avenue Craig, CO 81625 and whose telephone number is 970-824-4840.

WHEREAS. the Contractor has been selected to provide services, in accordance with the provisions of the Moffat County'
Purchasing Manual; and

WHEREAS. the BOCC wishes to employ the services of Contractor as an independent contractor and Contractor wishes to
provide services to the BOCC; and

WHEREAS. the BOCC has authoriry to acquire the services described in this Agreenrent under the provisions of s\30- I I - l0l .

et seq., C.R.S., as amended.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements set forth hereinafter. the BOCC and the
Contractor agree as follows:

Article I - Scope of Work.

The Contractor shall furnish all materials and pertbrnr in a satistactory and proper nranner, as detennined by the BOCC. to
replace 4 Rooftop units at the Moffat County Public Safety center located at 800 W. l" Street Craig. CO 81625 as described
in the attachments below.

Article 2 - Time of Performance.

2.1 Services of the Contractor shall commence 812212023, and shall be substantially completed on or before 1213112023
no matter the date of execution of this Agreement.

Article 3 Com pensationiAppropriation.

3.1 The amount to be expended pursuant to this Agreement shall be Fift1,-eight thousand and zero cents (558.0000) subject to
additions and deductions pursuant to authorized change orders. l'he BOCC has lawt'ully appropriated an amount that is equal
to or in excess of the cornpensation set tbrth herein. which amount shall constitute the contract amount.

)-: Non-Appropriation: Moffat County's expenditure olany funds under this Agreernent beyond the current County tiscal year
shall be expressly subject to and contingent upon the County's budgeting and appropriating funds tbr such proposes
according to the Colorado Local Government Budget Law and C.R.S. Section 29- l- I 10. Should such tunds not be budgeted
and appropriated fbr the Countl''s obligations under this Agreement fbr future fiscal years, this Agreement shallterntinate at
the end of the llscal year fbr which such ftrnding has been larvtully budgeted and appropriated. and the Countv shall provide
the contractor with prior written notice of such terrnination.

LIQUIDATED DAMAGES: BOCC and CONTRACTOR recognize that time is of the essence of this Agreement and that
BOCC will suffer tlnancial loss if the work is not substantially complete within the time specified in paragraph 2.1 above.
They also recognize the delays. expense, and difficulties involved in proving a legal or arbitration proceeding the actual loss
suffered by BOCC if the work is not substantially complete on time. Accordingly. instead of requiring such proof. BOCC
and CONTRACTOR agree that as liquidated damages for delay (but not as a penalty) CONTRAC'IOR shall pay' BOCC One
Hundreddollars($100.00)fbreachda)'thatexpiresatterthetimespecifiedinparagraph2. I fbrsubstantial completionuntil
the work is substantially complete.

Article 4 - Payment procedures

i' )iiTF:qlll'. frlhi,I Lr'')il-r'\ Pu r,lfra:i;,r f- ie !vr.::r:: A.r r eaniri F,: rri
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CONTRACTOR shall submit Applications for Pa1'ment to the DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT fbr processing.

4,1 PROGRESS PAYMENTS: MOFFAT COUNTY shall make monthly progress payments on account of the Contract Price on
the basis of CONTRACTOR'S Applications for Payments as recommended by the DEVELOPMENT SERVICES
DEPARTMENT, as provided belorv and concurrent with Moffat Counfy's payment procedures. All progress payments will
be based on the progress ofthe rvork measured.

4.2 Prior to Substantial Completion. progress payments will be in an amount equal to:

95% of the work completed, and

9504 of materials and equipment not incorporated in the work but delivered and suitabl-v stored. less in each case the

aggregate of pay.ments previouslv made.

4.3 Upon Substantial Completion, BOCC shall pay an amount sufficient to increase total payments to CONTRACTOR to 95% of
the Contract Price. less such amounts as DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT shall derermine.

4.4 FINAL PAYMENT: Upon final completion and acceptance. BOCC shall pay the remainder of the Contract Price as
recommended by the DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT. The final pa)'ment shall not be made untiI after final
settlement of this contract has been dull advertised at least ten days prior to such final pa),ment by publication of notice
thereof at least twice in a public newspaper of general circulation published in Moffat County, and the Board of County
Commissioners has held a public hearing. thereupon and complied with 938-26-107 C.R.S. as amended. Final payment shall
be made in accordance with the requirements of previously mentioned statute.

Final Palmettt shali not bect"rnte dr.re Lrnless and until the tbllowing conditions precedenr to F'inal Pa1.'merrt havc been
satisf-ied: (ai Approlal ancl accel:t.anee of Contractor's work hy' Moftat County: (b) deliverl tr: Mottaf Cor.rnty ol'all manuals.

retluilecl b1'the Contract Dercutrcnts; (c) fr.rmishins to tsOCC satisfactrlr) evidence lrv Coi]trect$l-that all labor^ nraterial
accorlnts. ancl sttbcontractor accounts incurred bt contractor in connection with his Work have been paid in firll.

4.5 If any dispute arises as to the Work performed pursuant to this Agreement orthe payment for Work performed pursuant to
this A-qreement, such dispute must be resolved so far as it is possible in the same year when the Work is performed and
money has been appropriated for said Work. If there is no communication or attempt to timely resolve the problem(s) with
either the Work or the payment therefbr. then BOCC shall no longer be required to pay for said Work and shall be relieved of
any and all Iiability to Contractor tbr such nonpayment.

Article 5 - Records, Reports, and Information.

At such times and in such forms as the BOCC may require. Contractor shall furnish statements, records, reports, data and inlbrmation
pertaining to matters covered by this Agreement. The Contractor shall maintain its records in accordance with requirements prescribed
b)' the BOCC. Except as otherwise authorized by the BOCC, Contractor shall maintain such records fbr a period of seven (7) years
after receipt of final payment under this Agreement.

Article 6 - Audits and Inspections.

At any tirne during nortnal business hours and as often as the BOCC nray deem necessary, Contractor shall make its records with
respect to matters covered by this Agreement available for examination. The Contractor shall permit the BOCC to audit. examine. and
rrake excerpts from such records and audit all contracts, invoices, materials. payrolls, records of personnel. conditions of employment,
and other data relating to this Agreement. The BOCC may call tbr a certified, independent audit to be performed by a mutuatly agreed
upon auditor.

Article 7 - Independent Contractor.
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The Contractor shall perfonn its duties hereunder as an independent contractor and not as an employee. Contractor affirms that it has

or will secure at its own expense all personnel and materials required to perfomr the services detailed in Exhibit A. Such personnel
shall not be employees of. nor have any contractual relationship with the BOCC.

'7.1 Services required hereunder shall be performed by the Contractor or under its supervision, and all personnel engaged in the

\, work shall be fully qualified and properly licensed or certified. as required b.v local, state and federal law or regulation to
perfbnn such services. NeitherContractornor its personnel. if any. is entitledto Worker's Compensation Benel'its oranv
other benetlt of emolo),ment with Moffat Counry. Colorado. Further. Contractor is obligated to pay federal and state income
tax on any cornpensation paid pursuant to this Asreeuent.

7.2 None of the services to be performed by Contractor under this Agreement shall be subcontracted or otherwise delegated
rvithout the prior written consent of the BOCC. The work subcontracted shall be specified in a rvritten agreement between
Contractor and its subcontractor(s). which agreement(s) shall be subject to each provision of this Agreernent.

Article 8 - No Assignment.

The Contractor and subcontractor(s) hereto shall not assign or transf-er any rights in this Agreement without the prior written consent
of ihe BOCC.

Article 9 - Compliance with Laws.

The Contractor shall comply with all applicable federal. state and local laws. ordinances, resolutions" codes and regulations in
providing the services detailed in Exhibit A.

Article 10 - lndemnification.

J'he Contractor agrees to indemnifi,and hold harmless the BOCC. and its officers. emplol'ees and agents. acting officially or
otherwise. from any and all claims. demands. damages. and actions of an1 kind brought b1'anyone, including attorne)"s fees. which
rnal, arise out of or result from the negligent or willtul misconduct of Contractor or its subcontractor(s) in the performance of services

as set forlh in this Agreement and/or the breach of any condition(s) of this Agreenent.

VNothing herein shall be interpreted as a waiver of govemmental imrnunity to which the BOCC may otherwise be entitled under the

provisions of $24- l0- l0l , et seq., C.R.S., as amended.

Articlell-Insurance.

At alI tin']es during the term of this Agreement. Contractor shall maintain the following insurance in the minimum coverage limits
specified:
Workers' Compensation & Employers' Liability and Unemplqyment lnsurance:
in accordance with rstrS-49-l0l and 8-70-101. et seq., C.R.S.. as amended:

Comprehensive General Liabilitv, including broad form propeffy damage: $ 1,000.000.00 per person and S 1.000.000.00 per occurrence

or as specified in the Colorado Govemmental Immunitl' Act, $24-10-101 , et seq., C.R.S.. as amended whichever amount is sreater.
and in addition $1.000,000 aggregate.

Comprehensive Automobile Liabilitv" including all owned. non-owned and hired
vehicles: $ 1.000,000.00 per person and $1,000,000.00. per occurrence or as specified in the Colorado Govemmental Immunity Act.

rs24-l0-101 , et seq.. C.R.S., as amended whichever amount is greater:

lf any aggregate lirnits set forth above are reduced belorv the stated amount because of claims made or paid during the required policl'
period, the Contractor shall immediately obtain additional insurance to restore the full aggregate lirnit and lurnish a cenillcate or other
doculnent showing compliance with ttris provision.
All insurance shall be issued by company(ies) authorized to do business in the State of Colorado and shall be written in a form
satisfactory to the BOCC and filed with and approved by the Colorado Department of Insurance. Contractor shall demonstrate
contractual liability coverage supporting the indemnity provisions of this Agreement, either through policy language or by
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waiver of exclusion. The BOCC shall be named as an additional insurecl on Contractor's Comprehensive General Liability
Polic"v". Proof of Workers' Compensation & Employer's Liability and Unemplo"v-ment Insurance is required. Certilicate(s) of
insurance and appropriate endorsements required by this Agreement shall be delivered to the BOCC at the time originals of
this Agreement, executed by the Contractor, are delilered to the BOCC's Representative, identified below, for execution bv
the BOCC. The Certificate(s) shall provide that the insurance rna)'not be materially changed. altered or canceled by the insurer

"r'ithout 
first giving ten (10) days written notice by certitled or registered U. S. Mail. retum receipt requested. to the BOCC.

Article l2 - Document Ownership - Works Made for Hire.

All of the deliverable items, if any, prepared fbr the BOCC under this Agreement shall belong exclusivel-v- to the BOCC ancl shall be
deentedtobe"rvorksmadeforhire"underthecopyrightlawsoftheUnitedStates. Totheextentany,olthedeliverableiternsnral-
not. by operation of law or otherrvise, be works made ibr hire. the Contractor hereby assigns to the BOCC the ownership of the
copy'rieht in the deliverable items, and the BOCC shall have the right to obtain and hold in its own name. copyrights. registrations. and
similar protections.

The Contractor asrees to give the BOCC or its designee all assistance reasonably'required to perfect such rights. To the extent that
any pre-existing materials are contained in the deliverable items. the Contractor grants to the BOCC an irrevocable, non-exclusive.
worldwide. ro;-alty-free license to use. execute, publish. reproduce. display. perform. distribute copies of. and prepare derivative
works based upon such pre-existing materials and derivative w'orks thereof and to authorize others to do any. some. or allof the
fore_uoing.

Article l3 - Inspections, corrections, removal, or acceptance of defective work

13.01 Notice of Defects

A' Prompt notice of all defective Work of which BOCC has actual knowledge will be given to Contractor. Defective Work may be
rejected. corrected. or accepted as provided in this Article 13. Notice shall be hand-delivered. emailed. or sent by US mailat the
discretion of the BOCC.

13.02 Acknowledgement of Notice by Contractor

Contractor shall respond to BOCC's notice of defective rvork within 7 days after receiving such notice.

13.03 BOCC May Stop the Work

A. If the Work is defective, or Contractor fails to supply sufficient skilled workers or suitable materials or equipment, or tails
to perlbrm the Work in such a way that the completed Work will conform to the Contract Documents, BOCC may order
Contractor to stop the Work. or any portion thereof. until the cause fbr such order has been eliminated.

13.04 Conection or Removal of Defective Work

A. Promptly after receipt of w'ritten notice. Contractor shall correct alldefective Work. rvhether or not fabricated. installed. or
contpleted. or, if the Work has been rejected by BOCC, remove it from the Project and replace it with Work that is not
defective. Contractor shall pay allclaims. costs. losses. and damages arising out of or relating to such correction or removal.

I 3.05 Correction Period

A. If rvithin 30 da1's after the date fbr time of perfornlance or b1 any'specilic provision of the Contract Documents, any Work
is fbund to be defective. or if the repair of an1'damages to the BOCC's property or areas made available for Contractoi's use
b1' BOCC is fbund to be defective. Contractor shall prornptly. without cost to BOCC and in accordance with BOCC's writren
instructions:

l. Correct such defective Work: or
2. if the def'ective Work has been rejected by BOCC. remove it from the Project, if possible. and replace it with Work that is
not defective, and



3. satisfactorily conect or repair or remove and replace any damage to other work. to the rvork of others. or to BOCC's
property.

B. If Contractor does not pronrptly cornply u'ith the terms of BOCC's written instructions. or in an emergenc)' where delal'
would cause serious risk ot'loss or damage. BOCC may have the det'ective Work corrected or repaired or may have the
rejected Work removed and replaced. All claims. costs. losses. and damages arising out of or relating to such correction or
repair or such removal and replacement rvill be paid by Contractor.

13.06 Acceptance of Defective Work

A. If, instead of requiring correction or removal and replacement of def-ective Work. BOCC prefers to accept it, BOCC may
do so. Contractorshallpay allclaims. costs. losses. and damages attributableto BOCC's evaluation of such defective Work
and for the diminished value of the Work. lf any such acceptance occurs. a Change Order rvill be issued incorporating the
necessary revisions in the Contract Documents u'ith respect to the Work. and BOCC shall be entitled to an appropriate
decrease in the Contract Price, reflecting the dirninished value of Work so accepted.

13.07 BOCC May Correct Def'ective Work

A. lf Contractor lails within a reasonable time atter u'ritten notice of detbctive Work fiorn BOCC to correct defective Work.
or to remove and replace reiected Work as required b;.... BOCC. or if Contractor fails to perform the Work in accordance r.lith
the Contract Documents. or if Contractor fails to comply with an1'other provision of the Contract Documents. BOCC ma_v.

after seven da1,'s rvritten notice to Contractor. corect, or re'rrredy'any such deticiency.

ln the event that the Contractor does not acknowledge notice oldefective Work fiom BOCC. BOCC may refuse to pay' whole
or any part of any' pal,rnent owed to contractor to protect BOCC tiorn Loss because:

l. the Work is defective. or completed Work has been damaged. requiring correction or
replacementl
2. the Contract Price has been reduced by Change Orders:
3. BOCC has been required to conect defective Work or contplete Work in accordance rvith
Paragraph 13.07
IN THE EVENT THE CONTRACTOR ABANDONS THE WORK OR CEASES TO COMMUNICATE WI-|H THE
BOCC. AND TTIE CALENDAR YEAR IN WHICH THE BOCC HAS APPROPRIATED FUNDS HAS PASSED, THEN
THE BOCC SHALL NOT BE LIABLE TO PAY CONTRACTOR F'OR ANY WORK PURSUANTTO THIS
AGREEMENT.

Article l4 Termination for Cause.

14.01 IftheContractorortheBOCCfailstotirlflll itsobligationsunderthisAgreementinatirrrelyandpropermannerorviolatesanl,
olthe provisions of this Agreement, the non-def'aulting party shall thereupon have the right to terminate this Agreement for cause by
givingr.r,rittennoticetothedefaultingpartvofsuchterrninationandspecifl,ingtheeffectivedateoftemrination. l'hedetaultingparb',
hou'ever. shall not be relieved of liability'to the non-defaulting party fbr damages sustained by virtue of any breach of this Agreerrent.
ln the event of default by the Contractor, the BOCC may u,ithhold payments due under Paragraph.l, above. tbrthe purpose of set-otf
until such tirne as the exact amount oldamages due the BOCC firr.n the Contractor is determined.

l-1.02
A. The occurrence of any one or more of the follorving events will justify termination fbr cause:

l. Contractor's failure to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents (including, but not limited
to. failure to supply sufficient skilled workers or suitable materials or equipment).

2. Contractor's disregard of Laws or Regulations of any public body having-iurisdiction:

3. Contractor's violation in any substantial way of any provisions of the Contract Documents.
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B. It-one or ntore of the events identified in Paragraph 14.02.A occur^ BOCC may. after giving Contractor seven days
written notice ol its intent to terntinate the services of Contractor:

l. Exclude Contractor from the Site. and take possession of the Work

2. Incorporate in the Work all materials and equipment stored at the Site or fbr which BOCC has paid Contractor
but which are stored elservhere; and

Article l8 - Governing Law.
The laws of the State of Colorado shall govern the validity, performance and enforcement of this Agreement. Should either the
BOCC or Contractor institute legal action fbr enforcement of an)' obligation contained herein. it is a_ereed that venue shall be in
Moff at County'. Colorado.

Article l9 - Severability'.

Should any provisions of this Agreement be determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or otherwise null
and void. the remaining provisions of the Agreement shall renrain in full force and effect.

Article 20 - Notices.

3. Complete the Work as BOCC may deem expedient.

C. If BOCC proceeds as provided in Paragraph 14.02.8, Contractor shall not be entitled to receive any further paymenr untilthe Work
is completed. If the unpaid balance of the Contract Price exceeds all claims. costs. losses. and damages sustained by BOCC arising
out of or relating to completing the Work. such excess will be paid to Contractor. lf such claims. costs. losses, and damages exceed
such unpaid balance. Contractor shall pay the difference to BOCC.

D.NotwithstandingParagraphs l4.02.Band 14.02-C.Contractor'sserviceswill notbeterminatedifContractorbeginsrvithinseven
days of receipt of notice of intent to terminate to correct its failure to perform and proceeds diligently to cure such failure within no
more than 30 days of receipt of said notice.

E. Where Contractor's services have been so terminated by BOCC, the termination wilI not affect any, rights or remedies of BOCC
against Contractor then existing or which may thereafier accrue. Any retention or payment of moneys due Contractor by BOCC will
not release Contractor fiom liability.

Article l5 - Termination for Convenience.

The BOCC ma)' terminate this Agreement without cause at an;' tirne by giving at least thirty (i0) days written notice to the Contractor.
lf this Agreement is terminated tbr the convenience of BOCC, the Contractor shall be paid for services provided prior to the date of
ternr ination.

Article l6 - Conflict of Interest.

During the term of this Agreement. the Contractor shall not perform similar services tbr persons, firms. or entities, including
govemmental entities. which have the potential to create a conf'lict of interest. unless the potential conflict is disclosed to and approved
by'the BOCC.

Article l7 - Modifications.

This Agreement ma)' not be modified, amended or otherwise altered unless mutually agreed upon in a writing executed by the BOCC
and the Contractor.



Notices to be provided under this Agreement shall be given in writin_s either by hand delivery or by certitied retum receipt requested
United States mail, to the following:

Article 2l - Headings.

Titles and paragraph divisions are inserted in this Agreement for ease of ref-erence and do not define. limit. or prescribe the scope or
intent of the provisions of this Agreement or an)' pan thereof-.

Article 22 - Authoritr'.

Each person signing this Agreement represents and warrants that helshe is tutly authorized to enter into and execute this Agreernent
and to bind the party'represented to the provisions of this Agreement.

Article 23 - Counterparts and Facsimile Signatures.
This Agreement nray be executed in counterparts. each olrvhich shall be deemed an original. Facsirnile signatures of. or on behall'ot.
the BOCC or the Clontractor on this Agreerrrent and any nroditlcation hereto shall be eftective fbr all purposes.

Article 2{ - Force Majeure.

Neither party shall be liable tbr its failure to perfbrm herer.rnder due to contingencies beyond its reasonable control, including but not
limited to strikes. riots. war. and acts of God.

Article 25 - lntegration of Understanding.

\-z'fhis Agreenrent represents the entire Agreement between the parties and supersedes all prior negotiations and representations.
whether written or oral. Nothing herein shall be deemed to give anvone not a pafty to this Agreement an) right of action a_qainst either
the BOCC or the Contractor.

lN WITNESS WHEREOF, the BOCC and the Contractor have set their liands and seals.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
MOFFAT COUNTY. COLORADO

B)':
Tony Bohrer. Chair

ATTEST:

Clerk to the Board
CONTRACTOR:
Mastenvorks Mechanical. Inc.

B)':

BOCC's Representative:
Tony Bohrer
MCBOCC Chair
ll98 West Victory Way. Suite 104

Craig, CO 81625
(970) 824-55 t6

Contractor:
Mastenvorks Mechanical. lnc
46 I Yampa Avenue
Craig. CO 81625
970-824-4840
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District No. I 170

Account No.0201 I I7831

Name: Jony Bohrer

Title: Eloard ot'County Commissioners Chair

Date:_September 12. 2023

ATTACHMENT A
NIXED PRICING AND VOLUME COMMITMENT FOR PROPANE

This Fixed Pricing Attachment ("Attachment") is entered into between AmeriGas ("Company") and MOFFAT COLINTy
("Customer") with a billing address of I198 W victory Way suite 109. CRAIG,Co 81625-2942. Company and Customer
agree as follows:

1. Supplemental Terms. This Attachment supplements and is subject to the NON-RESIDENTIAL Agreement
entered into between Customer and Company (the "Customer Agreement"), and the Company's standard Terms and
Conditions for propane-related seruices and equipment rental contained in the Customer Agreement (the ',Terms and
Conditions"). which are incorporated herein by rei'erence. Except for the Fixed Price, Volume, and Volurne Cornmitment"
the terms of the Custclmer Agreement control over the terms of this Attachment.

2. Fixed Pricing Term and Price. From l0lol12023 to 0913012024, ("Fixed pricing 'ferm") Cusromer agrees to
purchase 33,300 gallons of propane (tle "Volume") and the Company agrees to provide Customer with a fixed price of
$2'01 l0 per gallon (the "Fixed Price"), plus all applicable taxes, fees and charges for the Volume during the Fixed pricing
Term.

3- Excess Gallons. Gallons purchased by Customer in excess of the Volume will be priced pursuant ro the pricing
terms of the Customer Agreemenl

4. Volume Commitment. Customer understands that this is a take-or-pay obligation and that Customer is obligated to
1-. Purchase 100% the Volume during the Fixed Pricing Term. regardless of usage ("Volume Commitment.") If at the end of

the Fixed Pricing'[-erm (iustomqr has not satisfied the Volume Commitment, pa,vment fbr the balance will be due within 30
days of receipt of Company's invoice at the conclusion of the Fixed Pricing Term. If the Company and Customer agree,
CornpanyrnayelecttowaiveCustomer'sobligationtopurchase upto2)o/ooftheVolurnebyrollingovel.upto20%of the
Customer's Volume Commitment in the Attachment into a new fixed pricing agreement.

For example, if the Volumc is I ,000 gallons and Customer only purchases 700 gallons during the Fixed pricing Tcrnr,
customer r'vill pay company the Fixed Price multiplied by 300 gallons ar the concluiion of the Fiied pricing Term. But if
Customer enters into a new fixed pricing agreement, Company may reduce the 1,000-gallon Volume Commitment by up to
20% (200 gallons). resulting in Customer then owins Cornpany pavmenr for only 100 gallons, and the remaining Zoti-gallon
obligation deferred into a new fixed pricing agreernent.

The parties have agreed to the terms of this Attachment as of the latest date signed hy both parties below. This
Attachment may only be executed by a manager, director, or corporate officer of Cornpuny. The individual signing below
on behalf of customer represents that he or she is authorizcd to do so.

CUSTOMER:

Signature:

COMPANY:

Signature:

Narre:
-l-itle:

Date;

VPrinted on9t5l2A23

Page 1 of 1
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Articte
A.

Memorandum of Agreement

This Memorandum of Agreement ("Agreement") between the division of Disease Controt and Pubtic
Heatth Response (DCPHR), a part of the Cotorado Department of Public Heatth and Environment
(CDPHE), and the Board of County Commissioner of Moffat County, Cotorado, acting on behatf of the
Moffat County Pubtic Health agency, cottectively referred to herein as the Parties, concerns the storage
of state owned and managed vaccines used to support the mission of the CDPHE Mobite Pubtic Heatth
Ctinic Program in deploying vaccine ctinics around the state.

1 - Recitats
CDPHE is responsible for investigating and controlting the causes of epidemic and
communicabte diseases affecting the pubtic heatth, C. R.S. S 25-1 .5-102(1 XaXl), investigating
and monitoring the spread of disease that is considered part of an emergency epidemic, C.R.5.
S 25-1 .5-102(1 Xb)(l), and administering the state's immunization program, C. R. S. Sg 25-4-901

ef seq. and 25-4-2401 et seg. DCPHR performs these disease control and emergency response
activities and operates pursuant to appticable state and federa[ laws.
lloffat County pubtic Heatth is operated pursuant to the appticabte state and federa[ laws.
The Parties intend to work together to ensure that vaccines used by the CDPHE Mobite Pubtic
Heatth Ctinic Program to provide access to vaccines in communities across Colorado are
appropriatety stored as needed pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

Articte 2 - Term of Agreement and Amendments
This Agreement witt begin Juty 1, 2023 or upon final signature of all Parties, whichever is tater, and
terminate on June 30, 2025 untess eartier terminated. This Agreement may be terminated by either
Party at any time; however, the terminating party shatl provide written notice to the other party at
least thirty (30) days in advance of the effective date of termination untess there is a criticat failure to
perform. The Agreement may be amended in writing at any time by the Parties.

Article 3 - Financial Considerations
Except where otherwise detaited in this Agreement, each Party is responsibte for its own costs. Any
assistance provided by CDPHE under this Agreement is subject to the avaitabitity of appropriations. Any
and atl financiat assistance provided by CDPHE witt be done pursuant to and in comptiance with the
State of Cotorado fiscat rules and procurement code (e.9., a separate written agreement that compties
with the state fiscat rutes).

Article 4 - Scope of Agreement
A. This Agreement incorporates atl of the agreements, covenants and understandings between the

Parties concerning the subject matter herein. No other agreement or understanding of the
Parties or their agents shatl be vatid or enforceabte untess stated in this Agreement.

B. The Parties agree to comply with the terms and conditions which are set forth in this
document, as it may be amended from time to time, to the extent not inconsistent with,
exctuded or modified by a specific provision of this Agreement.

Articte 5 - Responsibitities
A. As a [oca[ pubtic heatth agency (LPHA), Moffat County Pubtic Health is enrolted in and in good

standing with the federal Vaccines for Children (VFC) program managed by DCPHR, and has the
adequate storage space to store state-owned VFC, 317, state-purchased and private vaccines
overnight in an approved pharmaceuticat-grade unit, up to seven days a week, continuousty
monitored by a digitat data logger with a current certificate of calibration. The Moffat County

B
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Pubtic Heatth agency is responsibte for providing access to the facitity at which the state- owned and
managed vaccines are stored for designated CDPHE staff to ptace and pick up
the vaccine(s) on-demand. CDPHE may seek assistance from LPHAS with storing state-owned
and managed vaccines if:

a. A state-run mobite pubtic heatth ctinic witt be administering immunizations in a
community that is more than 50 miles away from the centratized CDPHE storage facitity
in Denver; or

b. A state-run mobite pubtic heatth ctinic is hosting a mutti-day event, and it is more than
50 miles away from the centratized CDPHE storage facitity in Denver.

B. The Moffat County Pubtic Heatth agency will compty with atl federal and state vaccine storage
and handting requirements based on the vaccine type, inctuding atl requirements herein, their
signed Colorado VFC Program Storage and Handling Agreement, and their signed CDC Provider
Agreement. These requirements inctude but are not limited to:

a. Store state-owned VFC, 317, state-purchased and private vaccines in refrigerator or
freezer units that meet or exceed the Cotorado VFC Proqram minimum requirements.
Storage units onty used for overflow, temporary, or day storage must atso at minimum
meet the requirements.

b. The VFC400 digitat data logger, supptied free-of-charge by the VFC Program, or the
LogTag TRED3o-16R digitat data togger, are required for use as the primary thermometer
to monitor temperatures in atl refrigerators and freezers used to store state-owned
YFC, 317, state-purchased, and private vaccines, inctuding storage units used for
overftow, temporary or day storage. The LogTag TRED30.7R data logger may only be
used as a backup. Att digitat data loggers must meet VFC program requirements and
have a current calibration date and calibration certificate.

c. Review and record storage unit temperatures twice daity, once in the morning and once
at the end of the workday, inctuding documentation of the minimum and maximum
temperatures once daily. These temperature monitoring requirements are required for
att refrigerators and freezers used to store state-owned VFC, 317, state-purchased, and
private vaccines each day the facitity is open for four or more consecutive hours.

C. The Moffat County Pubtic Heatth agency witt maintain a separate storage space for atl state- owned
VFC, 317, state-purchased and private vaccines, to inctude the fottowing:

a. A completed inventory tog witt be received with any vaccines stored in the unit provided
by the DCPHR point of contact dropping off the vaccine. The facitity contact wi[[ update
the inventory tog during vaccine storage and return it to the DCPHR point of contact
upon pick up.

b. Atl state-owned VFC,317, state-purchased and private vaccines will be stored in tabeted
baskets with air ventitation separate from the facitity's own VFC, 317 and private stock
vaccines. Staff dropping off vaccines Mt[ label each vaccine box with the appropriate
fund source (VFC,317, and private).

c. The Moffat County Public Health agency witl remain in good standing with the Colorado
VFC program. The [insert name of partner] witt immediatety report to DCPHR any
facitity events that may inhibit their abitity to store state-owned and managed vaccines,
inctuding power outages, building ctosures, broken storage units, etc.

D. The Moffat County Pubtic Heatth agency witl report temperature excursions and take immediate
action to prevent vaccine spoitage due to out-of-range temperatures in the vaccine refrigerator
and freezer where state-owned and managed vaccines are stored, inctuding:

. Quarantine the state-owned vaccines and tabet them as'DO NOT USE."



lf current temperatures are out of range, fottow the emergency vaccine
management ptan.

Report the excursion to the Cotorado VFC program at cdDhe vfc@state.co.us as

soon as the excursion is discovered.
Fottow the VFC Storaqe and Handtine lncident ResDonse Checktist avaitabte on the
VFC program website at cotoradovfc.com.

. Keep vaccines quarantined untess or until instructed othen r'ise by the Cotorado

VFC program.
E. CDPHE witt provide as much advance notice as possibte to Moffat County Public Heatth when vaccine

storage is needed. ln cases of outbreak response or pubtic heatth emergency, it is understood
that notification may be the same day to provide storage avaitabitity.

Articte 6 - Communications Ptan

Communication requesting usage of pharmaceuticat-grade vaccine storage units for state-owned and
managed vaccines witl come from the CDPHE Mobite Pubtic Heatth Ctinic Program Coordinators as far in
advance as possible, atways Mthin one business day of the scheduled ctinic, except in the event of an

emergency. Facitities storing state-owned and managed vaccines witt be provided with the:
. lnventory log detaiting vaccine type and dose amount,
o Date and time of anticipated drop off,
. Date and time of anticipated pick up, and
. Ctinic contact information.

Non-urgent questions can be sent to CDPHE's Mobite Pubtic Heatth Ctinic Program's generat emaiI
address: CDPHE MPHCP@state.co. us

Articte 7 - LPHA Contact lnformation
Primary OEPR Contact
Secondary OEPR Contact

Primary l/'lM Contact
Secondary IMM Contact

Primary partner contact
Secondary partner contact

Sarah Copetand (970)291-874?

sarahcopetand@moffatcounty.net 1970)701 -7915

Selene Cooper
scooper@moffatcounty.net

Setene Cooper

scooper@mof fatcounty. net

(9701.701-7907

(9701761-3087

(970)701-7907

(970)761-3087

Articte 8 - General Provisions

A. Capacity to Enter lnto Agreement
The persons executing this Agreement on behatf of their respective entities hereby represent and
warrant that they have the right, power, tegal capacity, and appropriate authority to enter into this
Agreement on behatf of the entity for which they sign.

B. Comptete Agreement

This Agreement is the comptete integration of atl understandings between the Parties. No prior or
contemporaneous addition, detetion, or other amendment hereto shatt have any force or effect untess

embodied in an agreement duty executed and approved.



C. Non- Discrimination

The Moffat County Pubtic Heatth agency shatt strictty compty with att appticabte state and federa[ laws,
rutes and regutations invotving discrimination and unfair emptoyment practices.

D. lnsurance

The Moffat County Pubtic Heatth agency is a "pubtic entity" within the meaning of the Colorado
Governmental lmmunity Act, 524-10-101 , et seg., C. R.5. (the "GlA") and shatl maintain at alt times during
the term of this Agreement such tiabitity insurance, by commercial poticy or setf-insurance, as is
necessary to meet its tiabitities under the GlA.

E. Governmentat lmmunity

Notwithstanding any other provision to the contrary, no term or condition of this Agreement shatl be
construed or interpreted as a waiver, express or imptied, of any of the immunities, rights, benefits,
protection or other provisions of the Colorado Governmental lmmunity Act, Section 24-10-101 et seg.,
CRS, as now or hereafter amended. The Parties understand and agree that tiability for claims for injuries
to persons or property arising out of negtigence of the State of Cotorado, its departments, institutions,
agencies, boards, officials, emptoyees and politicat subdivisions is controlled and timited by the
provisions of Section 24-10-10'l et seg., CRS and the risk management statutes, Section 24-30-1501,
et seq., CRS as now or hereafter amended.

Printed Name

Title

Signature

Approved on Behalf of Moffat County Public Health agency:

Tony Bohrer

Chair, Board of County Commissioners of Moffat County, Cotorado

Date

Signature Date

Approved on Behalf DCPHR:
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Constifution Week Proclamation

Moffat County, Colorado

September 17-23,2023

WHEREAS: The Constitution of the United States of America, the guardian of our liberties, embodies
the principles of limited goverrunent in a Republic dedicated to rule by law; and

WHEREAS: September 17,2023, marks the two hundred thirty-sixth anniversary of the framing of
the Constitution of the United States of America by the Constitutional Convention; and

WHEREAS: It is fitting and proper to accord official recognition to this magnificent document and its
memorable anniversary, and to the patriotic celebrations which will commemorate iU and

WHEREAS: Public Law 915 guarantees the issuing of a proclamation each year by the President of
the United States of America designating September 17 throughZ3 as Constitution Week,

NOW THEREFORE I, Tony Bohrer, Melody Villard & Donald Broom, by virtue of the authority
vested in me as Commissioner of Moffat County in the State of Colorado do hereby proclaim the
week of September 17 through23 as

CONSTITUTION WEEK
AND ask our citizens to join the Augusta Wallihan Chapter National Society Daughters of the

\/ American Revolution to reaffirm the ideals the Framers of the Constitution had in1787 by studying
the Constitution and reflecting on the privilege of being an American and with the rights and
responsibilities which that privilege involves, vigilantly protecting the freedoms guaranteed to us
through this guardian of our liberties, remembering that lost rights may never be regained.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal of Moffat County to be
aJfixed this 12th day of September in the year of our Lord two thousand twenty-three.

Signed

Signed

Signed

SEAL Attest



Resolution 2023-82 
 

 WHEREAS, C.R.S. 30-28-204 authorizes the Moffat County Board of County 
Commissioners to amend the Moffat County International Property Maintenance Code 
from time to time by resolution; and 
 

WHEREAS, as required by C.R.S. 30-28-204 the Board of County Commissioners 
did hold a public hearing today regarding the amendment of the Moffat County 
International Property maintenance code after giving notice of the same by publishing said 
notice in the Craig Daily Press at least 14 days prior; and 

 
WHEREAS, The Board of County Commissioners had previously adopted the 

2000 edition of the International Property Maintenance Code with amendments as listed 
on Exhibit A by resolution 2004-51 on June 14, 2004; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners believes it to be in the best 
interest of Moffat County to amend the Moffat County Building Code by incorporating the 
2018 edition of the International Property Maintenance Code with amendments as listed 
on Exhibit B into the Moffat County Building Code, with amendments as listed on Exhibit 
B. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of County Commissioners 
hereby approves and adopts the 2018 edition of the International Property Maintenance Code 
with amendments as listed on Exhibit C as part of the Moffat County Building Code. 
 
ADOPTED this 12th day of September 2023. 
 
 
________________________________________________ 
Tony Bohrer 
Chairman of the Board 
 
State of Colorado) 
   )  ss. 
County of Moffat) 
 
I, Erin Miller, County Clerk and Ex-officio to the Board of Commissioners, do hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing is a true and complete copy of the resolution as adopted 
by the Board of County Commissioners on the date stated. 
 
Witness, my hand and seal of said County this 12th day of September 2023. 
 
________________________________ 
Clerk and Ex-officio to  
County Commissioners, Moffat County 
State of Colorado, Erin Miller  
 



 
Exhibit A 

Amendments to the International Property Maintenance Code 6/14/04 

Section 101.1: insert Moffat County for name of jurisdiction 
Section 102.3: replace International Zoning Code with Moffat County Zoning Resolution 
Section 104.2: delete 'rules and' so the sentence is: to adopt and promulgate procedures 
Section 110.4: after 'to sell the salvage and valuable materials at the highest price 
obtainable.' insert this sentence: Materials deemed unsafe by the Building Inspector may 
not be salvaged. 
Section 302.4: Change section to read: All premises and exterior property shall be 
maintained free from weeds or plant growth in accordance with the Moffat County 
Zoning Resolution Section 485,5 and the Moffat County Undesirable Plant Management 
Plan. 
Section 302.8: Omit entire section and amend to read: Except as provided for in other 
regulations, inoperative or unlicensed vehicles shall not be kept or stored in plain sight 
from a roadway or adjacent property. 
Section 303.14: Omit entire section. 
Section 305.2: delete: by placing such rubbish in approved containers 

Exhibit B 
Amendments to the International Property Maintenance Code 6/18/2013 

Section 101.1: insert Moffat County for name of jurisdiction 
Section 102.3: replace International Zoning Code with Moffat County Building Code 
Section 104.2: delete 'rules and' so the sentence is: to adopt and promulgate procedures 
Section 110.4: after 'to sell the salvage and valuable materials at the highest price 
obtainable.' insert this sentence: Materials deemed unsafe by the Building Inspector may 
not be salvaged. 
Section 302.4: Change section to read: All premises and exterior property shall be 
maintained free from weeds or plant growth in accordance with the Moffat County 
Zoning Resolution Section 485,5 and the Moffat County Undesirable Plant Management 
Plan. 
Section 302.8: Omit entire section and amend to read: Except as provided for in other 
regulations, inoperative or unlicensed vehicles shall not be kept or stored in plain sight 
from a roadway or adjacent property. 
Section 303.14: Omit entire section. 
 
Section 305.2: delete: by placing such rubbish in approved containers 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Exhibit C 
Amendments to the International Property Maintenance Code 06/2023 

 
101.1-Insert Moffat County as name of jurisdiction  
 
 
Section 110.4: after 'to sell the salvage and valuable materials at the highest price 
obtainable.' insert this sentence: Materials deemed unsafe by the Building Inspector may 
not be salvaged. 
 
112.4- Insert: Not more than $100 
 
 
 
302.4: Change section to read: All premises and exterior property shall be maintained 
free from weeds or plant growth in accordance with the Moffat County 
Zoning Resolution Section 485,5 and the Moffat County Undesirable Plant Management 
Plan. 
Section 302.8: Omit entire section and amend to read: Except as provided for in other 
regulations, inoperative or unlicensed vehicles shall not be kept or stored in plain sight 
from a roadway or adjacent property.  Remove exception 
 
Section 305.1:  Rubbish and trash: 
Change section to read: All exterior property and premises shall be free from the 
accumulation of Rubbish and junk unless stored in an enclosed container, enclosed 
building or out of plain sight from a roadway or adjacent property 
 
 
308.2.2 Add after premises “unless stored inside of a garage or enclosed building” 
remove ‘without first removing the doors’ 
 
 
 
 



MOFFAT COUNTY
Planning Department
221 W Victory Way, Suite 100
Craig, Colorado 81625
(970)824-9148
(970) 824-9193 fax

No. t 143-17
Fee: $30.00

Paid: \l?Vl?o)j
CLap*+3tr\

APPLICATION FOR TEMPORARY USE

Applicant: Anschutz Exploration Corp Home phone: 303-298-1000

Address: 555 17th Streel, Unit 2400, Denver, CO 80207 Work phone: 303-298- 1000

Owner: John R. Pierce Rev Trust (Surface Owneo Phone:

Address: cio rr,4s. Atison . Rossen. Trustee 9010 Falcon Street. Danville. CA 84506

Agent: Holly Hill, agent for Anschutz Exploration Corp. Phone. 303-521-2835

555 17th Street. Unit 2400. Denver. CO 80202

Acreage 4.882 working pad surface 7q696. Agricultural

Legal Description: NWNW Section '!4. T3N R97W, Moffat County, Colorado

Type of Water System: Public ( ) Private ( ) Existing ( )

Type of Sewage System: Public ( ) Private k ) Existing ( )

Describe in detail the type of use desired Applicant requests use of Oil and Gas well pad to temporarily house

drilling and completion field perso nnel in the development of 6 Hz wells drilled from the Coyote Fed 0397'14 frofi 91112023'112712024

and agarn from 7/112024- 11/30/2024 Agpticant antcipales thatup lo4traalers and up to2 office buildrngs \rdlbe planned lo be situaled oh the Prehm Rig

Layout plat for both occupations 3 potable waler lanks and 3 sewer tanks (lanks are 3200 gallons each) will also be oosrte

Time Limit: ( ) 2weeks ( ) 2months ( ) 6months (x) 12 months

lnclude a map showing the general location of the property, roads and easements
in relation to the proposed Temporary Use. The map should include al least a 200

feet perimeter and show access to the property lrom a public road.

g,21s.711812023 Signature
Applicant

r{' f/,U
Agent

The above signed authorizes the Moffat county commissioners or their designee to
conduct an on-site inspection of the property described herein when necessary to make

an in{ormed evaluation of the proposed temporary use.

Page 1 of 2
Revised 01i05i04

: Anschutz Exploration CorP

Address:



Attachment No. 1

Anschutz Exploration Corp.

Application for Temporary Use

coyote Fed 0397-14 Well Pad

Temporary Use Permit: Anschutz Exploration Corp. (AEC), is requesting Temporary Use permit to allow
iLii Leiiitr(.ri<iiy iiiiij5rrE, rui (,rEu"r."t6r"\rLUr"Prtlrur' \-uyvttrEuuJrr_r.
location, permitted with the Energy of Carbon Management Commission, Location lD: 484545. AEC is

requesting a 12-month permit in order to complete six wells on the Well Pad-

Location: NWNW Section 14, T3N R97W Moffat County, Colorado

Attachments Referenced:
. Attachment No. 2 - Preliminary Rig Layout Coyote Fed 0397-14
. Attachment No. 3 - Access Road Route to Coyote Fed 0397-14

Proposed Locafion of Temporary Living Quarters: AEC will have up to 4 mobile trailers for living quarters

and up to 2 mobile trailers for office quarters during drilling and completions on the southwestern end

r.rf the Weii Pdd. The ternporary housing wili t e situated on the iocation in different pilases throughout

the next 12-months. Please see Attachment No. 2 depicting the location of the temporary mobile

trailers and offices. The mobile homes and office trailers will have attachments to electric generators

and 3 potable water tank (up to 3200 gallons each) and 3 sewer and black water tanks (up to 3200

gallons each). Nothing will be buried in the accommodation of the mobile trailers- The mobile trailers

are equipped with their own propane tanks.

ln addition, there will be a portable, self-contained chemical toilet will be provided for human waste

disposal during several operational phases. Sanitary waste will be contained in portable toilets or other

storage tanks with waste materials regularly pumped and transported off-site for proper disposal at an

approved sanitary waste disposal facility.

Trash and Construction Debris: Construction trash and debris will be collected in appropriate containers

and hauled off-site for disposal in suitable landfills according to County and State Regulations. All trash

and debris will be transported to a permitted solid waste landfill within 30 days following termination of

drilling or completion operations or more often, if needed. No trash or debris will be disposed of on-

location. The well site and access road will be kept free of trash and debris during long-term production

operations. No hazardous substances or hazardous wastes are anticipated to be generated during

construction, drilling, and completions operations. Such materials are strictly prohibited for disposal at a

solid waste landfill.

Proposed Schedule for Temporary Living Quarters: The following schedule is subject to change based

on seasonal weather and unforeseen circumstances. This is the best guess at this time for the

operational plans. AEC will be seeking an extension to the 12-month Temporary Use Permit in

September of 2024.



Phese

Phase 1

(2023)

Phase 2

(20241

Complete 3 wells

Complete 3 wells October 10 -
November 30

Estimated
Time

Projeeted
Timeframe

Stage

45-days August 4 -
September 1.8

Construction

7-days September 18-24Mobilize Rig to Location

SPntembcr 24 -
December 15

Drilling 1H7 WPlls lsz-days

December 15 -

December 25

Construction of Facilities/Mobilize
Rig Off Location

10-days

33-days December 25 -

)anuaty 27 ,2024
July 16 - 23Mobilize Rig to Location 7-days

July 23 - October
3

Drilling 3 Hz Wells 72-days

Mobilize Rig Off Location 7-days october 3 - 10

51.-days



Attachment No. 2
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WORKING PAD SURFACE

PRELIMINARY RIG LAYOUT DRAWII{G :l.l al u Ir. d
ENGINEERING & LAND SURVEYING, INC
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a Where a septic system is required, the Temporary Use Application may be
approved after the septic system is installed and the Septic Permit approved. A
Septic Permit may be obtained from the Mof{at County Building Department.
Contact (970) 824-91 49.

lf a septic system is not put in, all sewage and trash must be hauled off site

Where a new or improved driveway is to be constructed, the Temporary Use
Application may be approved after the County driveway permit has been
obtained. Please contact the Moffat County Road and Bridge Department at
(970) 824-3211 to obtain a driveway permit.

The applicant and/or owner is responsible for insuring that all applicable property
development standards for the zone district are complied wilh.

The approval of a Temporary Use is considered a very subiective .ludgment call
and the Planninq Department will refer those applications which present possible
safety hazards, traffic or parking problems, aesthetic or environmental concerns,
or which may be perceived as controversial by the general public to an open
hearing before the County Commissioners.

Temporary Uses are approved for a specified period of time. Up to two
extensions may be approveci upon request when circumstances warrant.

a

COUNTY APPHOVAL:

( ) Septic Permit approved

( ) Driveway Permit approved

( ) Approved with the conditions as follows:

Planning Department

lf applicable:

Date:

Page 2 o'f 2
Revised 01105104

Chairman, Board of County Commissioners
Date:



202311 Description Replace Carpet at the Moffat County Library

7/11/2023 Prebid Meeting 8/23/2023
9/5/2023 Submission Date 9/6/2026

9/12/2023 Contract time Line 9/12/23-12/31/23
Bid Bond Insurance Anti-C

x
x

X

TLC $35,963.57
TLC $41,963.57

SGLC $37,461.00

Award Date
Vendor Bid Amount

Office Outfitters $33,565.99

Questions Due

Bid Tabulation

RFP
570 Green Street Craig, CO 81625

Issue Date Required



(((

Bid Tab

aal-d;

, cftt lt

RFP Nlrmber: 202309 Descriptiorr: OId Molfht County ('ourthouse Demolition

lssue Date Pre-[]id Meeting 6t2U2023

Submission of Questions 6t29/2023 LIt Submission Date: 07t20t23

BOCC Award: 7t25/2023 Contract Time: 7 t25123-12,3 | /24

Bid Bond Addendums 1,2.3Vender Score Bid Amount

SGL x X S 493,492.40

FCI X x $ 2,627,964.00

X Field Services x x 5 2,ggB,77s.oa

6/9/2023



ACREEMENT

This COI{TRACT OF SERVICES AGREEMENT ("Agreement") made this l2th day ol'_September 2023 by
and betwcen the Board of County Commissioncrs ol Moftat County, Colorado ("BOCC") and SGLC Consulting,
lnc. ("Contractor"), whose address is 25 W. Timber Draw, Edwards, CO 81632 and whose telephone number is720-
412-7879.

WHEREAS, the Contractor has been selccted to provide services, in accordance with the provisions of the

Moffat County Purchasing Manual; and

WHEREAS, the BOCC wishes to employ the services of Contractor as an independent contractclr and

Contractor wishes to provide services to the BOCC; and

WHEREAS, the BOCC has authority to acquire the services described in this Agreement under the

prtrvisions of s\30-ll-101. et secl.. C.R.S., as atnendsd-

NOW, THEREFORE,, in consideration ol thc mutual covenarts and agreements set fofih hcrcinaftcr, thc

BOCC and the Contractor agree as follows:

Article I - Scope of Work.

1. The Contractor shall complete all tasks to satisfaction as needed to demolish the old County Courthouse
located at 221 W. Victory Wau, Craig, CO 81625 as outlined in the Exhibits below:

Exhibit "A" RFP 202309 Old Courthouse Demolition.
Exhibit "B" RI]P 202309 Submittal from SGLC Consulting, lnc

Article 2 - Timc of Performance.

2.1 Services of the Conffactor shall commence on0911212023 and shall be substantiaily completed on or before
1231 12024. no matter the date of execution of this agreement.

Article 3 - Compensation/Appropriation.

3.1 The amount to be expended pursuant to this Agreement shall be l"our Hundred Ninety-I'hree l-housand

Four Hundred Ninety Two and 00/100 cents (5493,492.00). The BOCC has lawfully appropriated an

amount that is equal to or in excess of the compensation set fofih herein, which amount shall constitute the

contract amount.

3.2 Non-Appropriation: Each parfy hereto agrees that the revenues and expenditures hereunder shall constitute
c*rrenl exoenditurcs and revenues [)a.t'ab!e und receit,able in the Jiscul )'ears for v'hich.{unds are

appropriatedforthepaymentthereof. Thcobligationsofthepartiesundcrthisagreementshall bclrom
year to year onl1, and shall not constitute a multiple-fiscal year direct or indirect debt or other financial
obligation or any obligation payable in any fiscal year beyond the fiscal year for which funds are

appropriated for the payment thereof or payable from any funds other than funds appropriated for the
paymentofcurrentexpenditures. Noprovisionofthisagreementshall beconstruedtopledgecreditorto
create a lien on any class or source of either parfy's monies. Notwithstanding any termination, the parties

shall remain liable for any amounts for prior services provided and not paid.

LIQI.IIDATED DAMACIES: OWNER and CONTRACTOR recognize that time is of the essence of this

Agreemcnl and that OWNER will suffer financial loss if the Work is not substantially complctc within thc

time specified in paragraph 2.1 above. They also recognize the delays, expense, and difficulties involved in
proving thc actual loss suffered by OWNER if the Work is not substantially complete on tirnc.
Accordingly. instead of requiring such proof, OWNER and CONTRACTOR agree that as liquidated

CONTRACT\FORM DOCS\Purchase of Services Agreement Form

(.1 0/1i')



damages for delay (but not as a penalty) CON'I'RACTOR shall pay OWNER One Hundred dollars
($100.00) for each day that expires after the time specified in paragraph 2.1 for substantial completion until
the Work is substantially complste.

Article 4 - Payment procedures

CONTRACTOR shallsubmit Applications for Pal,menr to the DEVILOPMENT SERVICES DEpARTMENT for
processing.

4'l PROGRESS PAYMEN'I'S; MOFFAT COUNTY shall make monthly progFess payments on account of the
Contract Price on the basis of CONTRACTOR'S Applications for Payments as recommended by the
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT, as provided below and concurrent with Moffat County's
payment procedures. All progress payments will be based on the progress of the work measured.

4.2 Prior to Substantial Completion, progress payments will be in an amount equal to

95% of the work completed, and

95%, of materials and equipment not incorporated in the work but delivered and suitably stored
less in each case the aggregate of payments previously made.

Upon Substantial Completion, BOCC shall pay an amount sufficient to increase total payments to
CONTRACTOR to 95ozir o{'the Contract Price, less such amounts as DEVELOPMENT SERVICES
DEPARTMENT shall determire.

FINAL PAYMEN'l': Upon finalcompletion and acceptance, UOCC shall pay the remainder of the Contract
Price as recommended by the DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT. The final payment shallnot
be made until after final settlement of this contract has been duly advertised at least ten days prior to such
final payment by publication of notice thereof at least twice in a pubiic newspapel' of general circulation
published in Moffat County, and the Board of County Commissioners has held a public hearing, thereupon
and complied with $38-26-107 C.R.S. as amended. Final payment shall be made in accordance with the
requirer:rerrts of prcviously mentioned statutc.

Fiual Paymcnt shalI not bccotne due unloss and until thc lbllowing conditions prccedcnt to Einai Paynicnt
have been satisfied: (a) Approval and acceptance of Contractor's work by Moffat County; (b) delivery to
Motlat County of all manuals, "as-built" drarvings, guarftntecs and lvarrantics lbrmatcrial and equipmcnt
lurnished by Contractor, or an]' othcr documents rcquired b1'the Contract Documenl.s; (c) flrnishing to
BOCC satisfactory evidence by Contractor that all labor, material accounts, and subcontractor accounts
incurred by contractor in connection with his Work have been paid in full.

If any dispute arises as to the Work perforrned pursuant to this Agreement or the payment for Work
performed pursuant to this Agreement, such dispute nrust be resolved so far as it is possible in the same
year when the Work is performed and money has been appropriated for said Work. If there is no
communicalion or attempt to timely resolve the problem(s) with either the Work or the payment therefor.
then BOCC shall no longer be required to pay for said Work and shall be relieved of any and all liability to
Contractor for such nonpayment.

Article 5 - Records, Reports, and lnformation

At such times and in such fonns as the BOCC may require, Contractor shall fumish statements, records, reports,
data and information pertaining to matt€rs covered by this Agreement. The Contractor shall maintain its records in

4.3

4.4

COi.ITRACi\FOtu{ DOCS\Purchase oI Services Agreemenr Form
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accordance witlr requirements prescribed by the BOCC. Except as otherwise authorized by the BOCC, Contractor
shall maintain such records for a period of seven (7) years after receipt of final payment under this Agreement.
Article 6 - Audits and Inspections.

At any time during normal business hours and as often as the BOCC may deem necessary, Contractor shall make its
records with respect to matters covered by this Agreement available for examination. The Contractor shall permit
the BOCIC to audit, exarnine, and malie excerpts iiorl such records and audit all cont-racts, i-nvoiccs, matcrials,
payrolls, records of personncl, conditions of employmcnt, and other data rclating to this Agreemcnr. The BOCC
may call for a cenit-red, independent audit to be pertbrrned by a mutually agreed upon auditor.

Article 7 - Independent Contractor.

The Contractor shall perform its duties hereunder as an independent contractor and not as an employee. Contractor
affirms that it has or will s€cure at its own expense all personnel and materials required to perform the services
detailed in Exhibit A. Such personnel shall not be employees of" nor have any contractual relationship with the
BOC]C.

7.t Services required hereunder shall be performed by the Conractor or under its supervision, and all
personnel engaged in the work shall be fully qualified and properly licensed or certified, as required by
Iocal, state and federal law or regulation to perform such services. Neither Contractor nor its personnel, if
any. is entitled to Worker's Compensation Benet'its or any other benetlt of emoloyment with Moll'at
Countv. Colorado. Further. Contractor is obligated to pay federal and state income tax on an),
compensation paid pursuant to this Agreement.

7.2 None of thc sc'rvices to be performed by Contractor under this Agrcement shali be subcontracted or
otherwise delegated without the prior written consent of the BOCC. 'l'he work subcontracted shall be

specified in a written agreement between Contractor and its subcontractor(s), which agreement(s) shall be
subject to each provision of this Agreement.

Article 8 - No Assignment.

The Contractor and subconlractor(s) hereto shall not assign or transl'er any rights in this Agreement without the prior
writtcn consent of thc BOCC.

Article 9 - Cornpliance with Laws.

The Contraclor shall comply' with all applicable federal, state and local laws, ordinanccs, resolutions, codcs and
regulations in providing the services detailed in Exhibit A.

Article 10 - Indemnification

The Contractor agrees to iltdemniff and hold harmless the BOCC, and its officers, employees and agents, acting
officially or otherwise, from any and all claims, demands, damages, and actions of any kind brought by anyone,
including attorney's fees, which may arise out of or result from the negligent or willful misconduct of Contractor or
its subcontractor(s) in the performance of services as set forth in this Agreement and/or the breach of any
condition(s) of this Agreement.

Nothing herein shall be interpreted as a waiver of governmental immunity to which the BOCC may otherwise be
entitled under the provisions of tsZ4- 1,,-,,., l. et set1.. C,R.S.. as amended-

Article 11 - Insurance.

CCN?P.Al:\a,li;.l . --i::':..r ::.is: \.:- :lp:vi :-.-: i.::rp:,.,-:: l'-r'i
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At all times during the term of this Agreement, Contractor shall maintain the following insurance in the minimum
coverage limits specified:
Workers' Compenqation & Employers' Liability and tlnemploymcnt Insurancc:
in accordance with $$8-40-101 and 8-70-101, et seq., C.R.S., as amended;

Comprehensive General Liabilitv, including broad form properry damage: $ 1,000,000.00 per person and
S1,000.000.00 per occurrence or as specil-rcd in thc'Colorado Goverrunental Immunit1,.Act. $24-10-!01. et set1.,

C.R.S., as amended whichever amount is greater, and in addition $1,000,000 aggrega$e.

Comprehensive Automobile Liabiliqv, including all owned, non-owned and hired
vehicles: $ I ,000,000.00 per person and $ I ,000,000.00, per occurence or as specified in the Colorado Governmental
Inrmunity Act. $24-10-101. et seq.. C.R.S., as anrended whichever arnount is greater;

lf any aggregate limits set forth above are reduced below the stated amount because of claims made or paid during
the required policy period, the Contractor shall immediately obtain additional insurance to restore the full aggregate
limit and furnlsh a ccrtif icatc or other documcnt shorving compliancc u ith this provision.

All insurance shall be issued by cornpany(ics) authorized to do business in thc State of Colorado and shall be written
in a form satisfactory to the BOCC and filed with and approved by the Colorado Department of lnsurance.
C'ontractor shali demonstratc contractual liability covcragc supportfurg thc indcmnity provisions of this Agrccmcnt,
either through policy language or by waiver of exclusion. The BOCC shall be named as an additional insured on

Contractor's Comprehensive General Liability Policy. Proof of Workers' Compensation & Employer's Liability
and Unemployment lnsurance is required. Certificate(s) of insurance and appropriate endorsements required by this
Agreement shall be delivered to the BOCC at the time originals of this Acreement. executed by the Contractor. are

delivered to the UOCC's Representative, identified below, for execution by the BOCC. 'Ihe Certificate(s) shall
plovide that thc insurance may not be materialll, changcd, altered or cancelcd by thc insurer without first giving lcrt
(10) days written notice by certif,ied or registered U. S. Mail, return receipt requested, to the BOCC.

Article 12 - Document Ownership - Works Madc for Hire.

All of the deliverable items, if any, prepared for the BOCC under this Agreement shall belong exclusively to the
BOCC and shall be deemed to be "works made fol hire" under the copl,right laws of the United States. To tlre
extent any of the deliverable items may not^ by operation of law or otherwise. be works made fbr hire. the
Contractor hereby assigns to the BOCC the ownership of the copl,right in the deliverable items. and the BOCC slrall
have the right to obtain and hold in its own name, copyrights, registrations, and similar protections.

The Contractoragrees to give the BOCC or its designee allassistance reasonably required to perfect such rights. To
the extent that any pre-existing materials are contained in the deliverable items, the Contractor grants to the BOCC
an irrevocableo non-exclusive, worldwide, royalty-free license to use, execute, publish, reproduce, display, perform,
distribute copics of, and prcpare derivative works based upon such pre-cxisting materials and derivative lvorks
thereol'and to authorize others to do any, some^ or all o1'the foregoing"

Article t3 - lnspections, corrections, removal, or acceptance of defective work

13.01 Notice of Defects

A. Prompt notice of all defective Work of which BOCC has actual knowledge will be given to Contractor. Defective
Work may be rejected, corrected, or accepted as provided in this Article 13. Notice shall be hand-delivered,
emailed, or sent by t-iS mail at the discretion ot'the BOCIC.

13.02 Acknowledgemcnt of Notice by Contractor

Conffactor shall respond to BOCC's notice of defective work within 7 days after rece iving such notice.

CONTRACT\EORM DOCS\Purchase of Services Agr€emenl Forn
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13.03 BOCC May Stop the Work

A. If the Work is defective, or Contractor fails to supply sufficient skilled workers or suitable materials or
equipment, or fails to perform the Work in such a way that the conpletcd Work will confonn to thc
Contract Documents, BOCC may order Contractor to stop the Work, or any portion thereof, until the cause

for such order has been eliminated.

13.04 Correction or Rcmoval of Defcctivc Work

A. Promptly after receipt of written notice, Contractor shall correct all defective Work, whether or not
fabricated, installed. or completed, or, if the Work has been rejected by BOCC, remove it from the Project
and replace it with Work that is not defective. Contractor shall pay all claims, costs, losses, and damages

arising out of or relating to such correction or removal.

13.05 Correction Period

A. If within 30 daysyear after the dale for time of perlormance or by any specific provision of thc Contract
Documerlts, any Work is tbund to be defbctive, or if thc repair of any damages to the BOCC's propcrty or
areas made available for Conffactor's use by BOCC or permitted by Laws and Regulations is found to be
defcctive, Contractor shall prornptly, w'ithout cost to BOCC and in accordancc with BOCC's writtcn
instructi<-lns:
l. Correct such defective Work; or
2. if the defective Work has been rejected by BOCC, remove it from the Project if possible and replace it
with Work that is not defective, and

3. satisfactorily correct or repair or remove and replace any damage to otlrer Work, to the work
of others or BOCC's propcrl) or areas resulting therefrom.

B. IlContractor does not promptly compiy with thc tcrms of BOCC's writlen instructions, or in an

emergency where delay' would cause serious risk of loss or damage, BOCC may have the defective Work
corrected or repaired or may have the rejected Work removed and replaced. All claims, costs, losses, and

damages arising out of or relating to such correction or repair or such removal and replacement will be paid
by Contractor.

I 3.06 Acceptance of Defective Work

A. If, instead of requiring correction or removal and replacenrent of defective Work, BOCC prefers to
accept it. BOCC may do so. Contractor shall pay all clainrs. costs. losses. and darnages attributable to
BOCC's evaluation of and determination to accept such defective Work and for the diminished value of the
Work to the extent not otherwise paid by Contractor pursuant to this sentence. If any such acceptance

occurs, a Changc Order will be issued incorporating thc nccessary revisions in the Contract Documents
with respect to the Work, and BOC-CI shall be entitled 10 an appropriate decrease in the Clontract Price.

reflecting the diminished value of Work so accepted.

13.07 BOCC May Correct Defective Work

A. lf Contractor fails within a reasonable time after written notice of defective Work from BOCC to correct
defective Work, or to remove and replace rejected Work as required by BOCC, or if Contractor fails to
perform the Work in accordance with the Contract f)ocuments. or if Contractor fails to comply rvith any
other provision olthe Contract Documents, BOCC nray, alier seven days writlen noticc to Contractor,
con'ect. or remedy any' such dcficiency.

In the event that the Contractor does not acknowledge notice of defective Work from BOCC, BOCC may
refuse to pay whole or any part of any payment owed to contractor to protect BOCC from Loss because:

CONTRACT\FCRM DOCS\Purchase of Services Agreement Form
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l. the Work is defective, or completed Work has been damaged, requiring correction or replacement;
2. the Contract Price has been reduced by Change Orders;
3. BOCC has been required to correct defective Work or complete Work in accordance with
Paragraph 13.07

IN THE EVENT THE CONTRACTOR ABANDONS THE WORK OR CEASES TO COMMI'}iICATE WITH THE
BOC('. AND l HE CALI.NI)AR YFIAR tN WHICH I Hl. IIOCC HAS APPROPRIz\ I F.D l'LiNDS HAS PASSF.D.,TIi[iN 

I'TI}i BOCC S}IAI-I, NOT BT.] T,IAt]I,E I'O PAY CON TRACTOR II()R ANY WORK PIIRSUANI' IO'I'HIS
AGREUMHNT.

Article l4 Termination for Cause.

14.0 I If the Contractor or the BOCC fails to fulfill its obligations under this Agreement in a timely and proper
manner or violates any of the provisions of this Agreement, the non-defaulting party shall thereupon have

the right to terminate this Agrcement for cause b1' giving written noticc to the dcfaulting pag, of such
tenninationandspccilyingthectl'ective dateoftcrmination. lhedctaultingparty,howevcr,shall notbe
relievcd of liabiliq, to the non-dcfaulting party fbr damagcs sustained by virtue of any breach of this
Agreement. In the event of default by the Contractor, the BOCC may withhold payments due under
Paragraph 4. above, for the purpose of set-off until such time as the exact amount of damages due the
BOCC lrom the Contractor is determined

14.02

A. The occurrence of any one or more of the following events willjustifl termination for cause

l.Contractor's failure to perform the Work in accordance rvith the Contract l)ocuments
(including, but not lirnited to, failure to supply suftjcient skilled workers or suitable materials or
equipment.

2. Contractor's disregard of l.aws or Regulations of any public body having jurisdiction;

3. Contractor's violation in any substantial way of any provisions of the Conffact Documents

B. lf onc or more of thc cvents idcntilied in Paragraph 14.02.A occur, BOCIC ntay, al1er giving C-ontractor
scvcn days writ"tcn noticc of its intent to ternrinatc the serviccs of Contractor:

l. Exclude Contractor from the Site, and take possession of the Work.

2. Incorporate in the Work all materials and equipment stored at the Site or for which BOCC has
paid Contractor but which are stored elsewhere; and

3.Complete the Work as BOCC rnay deem expedient

C. If BOCC proceeds as provided in Paragraph 14.02.8, Contractor shall not be entitled to receive any
further payment until the Work is completed. If the unpaid balance of the Contract Price exceeds all claims,
costs, losses, and damages sustained by BOCC arising out of or relating to completing the Work, such
excess will be paid to Contractor. lf such claims, costs, losses, and damages exceed such urpaid balalce,
Conffactor shall pay the difference to BOCC.

D. Notrvithstanding Paragraphs I4.02.8 and 14.02.C, Contractor's ser'.,iccs rvill not be termir:ated il'
Comtrastor begins within scvcn days of receipl ol'nr'rtice of intent to tcrminalc to correcl its lailurc to
pertbrm and proceeds diligently to cure such tailure within no more than 30 days of receipt of said notice

E. Where Contractor's services have been so terminated by tsOCC, the termination will not affect any rights or
remedies of BOCC against Contractor then existing or which may thereafter accrue. Any retention or payment of
moneys due Contractor by BOCC will not release Contractor from liability.
CONTRACT\FCRM DOCS\Purchase of Services Aqreenent Form
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Article l5 - Termination for Convenience.

The BOCC may terminate this Agreement without cause at any time by giving at least thirty (30) days written notice

to the Contractor. lf this Agreement is terminated for the convenience of BOCC, the Contractor shall be paid fbr
services provided prior to the date of termination,

Article l6 - Conflict of Interest.

During the term of this Agrecment, the Contractor shall not per{orm similar serviccs for persons, flrms. or entities,

including governmental entities, which have the potential to create a conflict of interest, unless the potential conflict
is disclosed to and approvcd by the BOCC.

Article 17 - Modifications.

'I'his Agreement may not be modified, amended or otherwise altered unless mutuallv agreed upon in a writing
executed by the BOCC and the Contractor.

Article l8 - Governing Law.
The laws of the State of Colorado shall govern the validity, performance and enforcement of this Agreement.

Should either the BOCC or Contractor institute legal action lbr enlbrcement ol any obligation containcd hcrcin, it is
agreed that venuc shall be in Moffat County, Coiorado.

Article 19 - Severability.

Should any provisions of this Agreement be determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional

or otherwise null and void, the remaining provisions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

Article 20 - Notices.

Notices to be provided under this Agreement shall be given in writing either by hand delivery or by certified retum
receipt requested United States mail, to the following:

BOCC' s Representative:
Tony Bohrer
MCBOCC Chair
I198 West Victory Way, Suite 104

Craig, CO 81625
(970) 824-5s16

Contractor:
SGLC Consulting,lnc.
Susan Cunningham
25 W. Timber f)raw
Edwards, CO 81612
720-412-7879

Article 21 - Headings.

'l'itles and paragraph divisions are inserted in this Agreement for ease of reference and do not defme, limit, or
prescribe the scope or intent of the provisions of this Agreement or any part thereof.

Article 22 - Authority.

Each person signing this Agreement represents and warrants that he/she is fully authorized to enter into and execute

this Agreement and to bind the party represcnted t,o the provisions of this Agrccment.

Article 23 - Counterparts and Facsimile Signatures.

CONTRTTCT \ iOF]"l ICCJI \ Pr r,'i: t r;o . t .;e.1'l aes: ryj r ".irl.. :: : F.'.'rl
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This Agreeinent may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original. Facsimile signatures
of. or on behalf of, the BOCC or the Contractor on this Agreement and any modification hereto shall be effoctive for
all purposes.

Article 24 - Force Majeure.

Neither parqv shall be liable for its failure to perfornr hereunder due to contingencies beyond its reasonable control,
including but not limited to strikes, riots, war, and acts of Cod-

Article 25 - Integration of Understanding.

This Agreement ropresenLs the entire Agreement between the parties and supersedes all prior negotiations and
representations, whether writteu or oral. Nothing herein shall be deemed to give anyone not a partv to thi$
Agreement any right of action against either the BOCC or the Csrtractor.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the BOCC and the Contractor have set their hands and seals.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMIVIISSIONERS
MOFFAT COUNTY, COLORADO

ATTEST:

Clsrk to the Board
By:

Tony Bohrer, Chair

Inc.

STATE OF COLORADO )
) ss.

COLINTY OF MOT.I.A'T {r

By:

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me day of 11

MY COMMISSION
Public

Address

CONTRACT\FORM DOCS\Purchase of Services Aoreemenr Fom
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$E4AIA Document c701"- zoll
Change Order

PROJECT: (Name and address)
Moffat County Courthouse
I198 West Victory Way
Criag, CO 81625

OWNER: (Name and address)
Moffat County, Colorado
221 West Victory Way Suite 130
Criag, CO 81625

CONTRACT INFORMATION:
Contract For: General Construction

Date: September 28, 2021

ARCHITECT: (Name and address)
TreanorHL
1755 Blake Street, Suite 400
Denver, CO 80202

CHANGE ORDER INFORMATION:
Change Order Number: 008

Date: September7,2O23

CONTRACTOR'. (Name and address)
B H, Inc.
I 175 East 2000 South,
Vernal, UT 84078

The original Contract Sum was
The net change by previously authorized Change Orders
The Contract Sum prior to this Change Order was
The Contract Sum will be increased by this Change Order in the amount of
The new Contract Sum including this Change Order will be

The Contract Time will be unchanged by zero (0) days.
The new date of Substantial Completion will be Septernber I . 2023

THE CONTRACT !S CHANGED AS FOLLOWS:
(lnsert a detailed description oJ'the change and, if applicable, altach or reJbrence speciJic exhibits- Also include agreed upon adjustments
attibutable to executed Construction Change Directives.)

tr3fi;;.ffif*;e#RAP*k",c 
]rr :: : : 

',lii*i,t
I 8,535,618.00
3,@0,287.59

22,175.905.59
109,599.04

22,285.504.63

NOTE: This Change Order does not include adjustments to the Contract Sum or Guaranteed Maximum Price, or the Contract
Time, that have been authorized by Constmction Change f)irective until the cost and time have been agreed upon by both the
Owner and Contractor, in which case a Change Order is executed to supersede the Construction Change Directive.

NOT VALID UNTIL SIGNED BY THE ARCHITECT, CONTRACTOR AND OWNER.

TreanorHI- Moffat County, Colorado

$

$

$

$

$

ru CONTRACTOR (L-irm name) OWNER (Firm name)

SrcfiAfUf,E

T. Andrew Pitts, Principal

SIGNATURE SIGNATURE

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE

September '1,2023

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE PRINTED NAME AND TITLE

DATE DATE DATE

ALq Document G7U = 2A17. Copyright @ 1 979, 1987, 2000 , 2001 and 2017. Nl rights reserved. "The American lnstitute of Architects," "American lnstitute of
Architects," "AlA,' the AIA Logo, and "AlA Contract Documents' are trademarks of The American lnstitute of Architects. This document was produced at 11:.48:.32

ET on 09/07/2023 under Order No.41 04241 030 which expires on 0312112024, is not for resale, is licensed for one'time use only, and may only be used in
accordance with the AIA Contract Documentso Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes (3B9ADA3E)

1

B.H. Inc.



TO:

PCO #114 - NVR Chanees

TreanorHL

ATTN: Andrew Pitts

DATE: August 24,2023

PROJECT: Moffat County Courthouse, Craig, CO

Scope of Work
o Axis NVR Swap (Current Solutions): 555,624.00
o BHt- GC Fee & OH (10%): $S,S0z.+o
o Bond (1%): 5611.86

TOTAT AMOUNT OF MATERTAL AND TABOR: S61,79E.26

Additional Contract Days Requested: 0

NOTES:

WWW.BHICtl.CO!,| . #WHYBHI

ffi0lJ$RY r)(ffrLHrff
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B H, lnc. TreanorHL

By

Print:

Title:

f'la+a.

Title:_

Date:_

Print:

Title:

Date:

2

Moffat CounU



Current Solutions

3184 Mesa Ave
Grand Junction, CO 81504
970-256-1t75

BillTo

Moflat County IT Department
221 W Victory Lane, Suire 160
Craig, CO 81625

lnvoice
Date lnvoice #

7126t2023 tt420

P.O. No. Project Terms

Net 30

Quantity Description Rate Amount

Reference: Axis NVR Swap

Total Proposal Amount 55,624.00 55.624.00

Total $55,624.00



PCO #123 - French Drain at ADA Parkine

TO: TreanorHL

ATTN: Andrew Pitts

DATE: August 29,2023

PROJECT: Moffat County Courthouse, Craig, CO

Scope of Work
o Bedded, perforated pipe, washed rock & geofabric (Anson): S2,200.00
o BHI- GC Fee & OH (10%): S220.0o
o Bond lL%)i 524.20

TOTAT AMOUNT OF MATER|AL AND LABOR: $2,444.20

Additional Contract Days Requested: 0

NOTES:

WWW.BHITII.COM . #WHYBHI

IIIOUSTRY IIIEtLEl{[E

POIIJIRI[ BY\IRIUES'



B H, lnc.

hint:

Title:

Date:_

Moffat CounW

Print:

TreanorHL

By

Title:_

l.)afp.

2

T;+l^.



ATIIIlj & PIP[,rLAx

PROPOSAL

\Ab here by submit pricing, based on owner supolied olans, for:

French drain by ADA parking, MCCH

Labor, equipment and materials:
4" perforated pipe bedded in %" washed rock, geofabric wrapped, tied into existing storm sewer.

P.O. Box777
789 Stock Dr.
Craig, CO 81626
P (970) 824-A382
F /q7n\ A)a-A41A
' \-'-l

$2200.00

Str E ABOVF PRICING hollnn<

Proposal submitled to:

BHl, lnc. : Brandon Roper
Phone: Date:

8-28-2023
Street
1198

narne:

extension
City, State and Zip
Craig 81625

Locatlon:

Craig, CO
Job Phone

N/A
Architect: ualc ut rtans.

Payment to be made as follows:

Per invoicing

All material is guaranteed to bo as specified. Att work to be compteted in a workmantike
manner according to standard practices. Any alteration or deviation from above specfic
aciions involving extra cost wil! be executed only upon wrilten orders anrl will become an
extra charge overand above the estimated. All agreements contingent upon stiie$,
accidents or delays beyond our control. A finance charge of 2.0% per month (ApR lB%)
will be applied on all past due accounts. customer agrees to pay alt cost af cottection and
reasonable attorney's fee if the account becomes delinquent and is refeffed to for coltection
awner to carry lire, tornado and other necessary insuraince. our warkers are fully covered
by Wotaxman's compensalion lnsurance.

Authorized
Signature Peter Miles Mike Anson

may by with*awn by us if not
nat accepted wilhin 5 days.

Accepltrnce ql'Proposal - The above prices, specficallons
and conditions are satisfactory and are hereby accepled. yau are
authorized to do the work as specitied. payment wifl be made as
outlined above.

Signature

Date of Acceplance: Signature



TO

PCO #126 - Unsuitable Suberade Replacement

TreanorHL

ATTN: Andrew Pitts

DATE: September 7,2023

PROJECT: Moffat County Courthouse, Craig, CO

Scope of Work
r Remove soft subgrade and replace with cobble rock & Class 6 subgrade(Anson): 540,825.00
e BHr- GC Fee & OH (10%): 54,082.50
o Bond (1%): Saa9.08

TOTAT AMOUNT OF MATER|AL AND TABOR: saS,3So.Sa

Additional Contract Days Requested: 0

NOTES:

Per 8-30-23 site visit and field directive by Roy Tipton

WWW.BHITO.IO}4 - #WHYBHI

lil0u$RY t)(ctttrilffi

POIIJEREO BY \IRIUIS'



B H, lnc. TreanorHL

Pri

Title:

Pri,

Tille

f)qle'

Moffat CounW

By

Titlc:

I-)afe:

2



MCCH Llnsuifable Subgrade replacement

f?$si3 Anson Exc:rvating ancl Pipe Inc.
P.O. Bor 777

Craig Co. 81626

Contact: IVIil<e Anson

Phone: (970) 824-0382

Fax: (970) 824-85J6

Ouote To:

Phone;
Fax:

Please see belolv

i0
20

GRAND TOTAL

BHl. lnc,
Brandon Roper

Job Name:
Date of Plans;
Revision Dale:

Paving subgrade
8-30-2023 site visit
R. Tipton directive

,t0

<n

I,800.00

725.00

0.00

850.00

i 6,200.00

.10.825.00

NOTES:

- Because of our previously scheduled work during M-F hours for the month of September, this scope of ryork has been priced
rvith overtime labor included. Saturelay 6ncl Sunday activitv will be necessary to complete lhis.

DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE

tulohilization t.00 LS r,800.00
Remove soft subgrade 450.00 CY 10.50

Fabric placement 1.00 LS 3,250.00
3 "-4" rock 225.0A CY 66.00

Class 6 coinpacted zJ).UV LI I I.UU

Page 1 of 1



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN
MOFIiA't' COI.IN'tY I}OA RD OF' COI] NTY COM M I SSI ON ERS

AND

RIi(i^nDINC: opr:Rn r roN orj r rrl l8fiil,.Yil,l,l,il;ffi :3ii,lt)il]il;i,iti$llfRoss rurirsr)rc r roN sorrNr)u\Rrr:S

This Memorandum of Understanding is entered into between the Moffat County. Colorado Board of
County Commissioners ("Mot'lat County") and the .luniper Water Conservancy District ("JWCD") represented
by their respective governing bodies, collectively referred to as "the Parlies." C.R.S. (i 29-l-203 provides
authority for Governments to cooperate or contract with one another to provide any function, service, or
facility lawfully authorized in Colorado.

Whereus'. Moffat County is draliing the I.ower Yampa l{ivcr Augmentatiorr Plan (herein rel'errecl to as
lhe "Augmentation Plan") with tlie goal 01'ad.iudicatirrg thc watcr fbr the Augmcntat.ion Plan through water
court in 2024. 't'he Augmentation Plan will provide augmentation water. primarily. but not limited to,
honsehold water wells drilled after March 1,2022 when the Lower Yampa River was designated over-
appropriated by the State Engineer, I)ivision of Water Resources. State of Colorado.

Whereas: Moffat County acknowledges its operational and administrative responsibility for the
Augmentation Plan. and shall undertake all necessary aclions to adjudicate and implement the Augncptation
Plan without cost to.IWCD.

Whereas:JWCD desircs that Moflht C'ounty operate and administcr the Augmentation Plan within that
porlion of the JWCD's boundaries shown in the attached tixhibit l.

Nov', there./bre, both parties acknowledge and agrce that:

l. The Parties agree that thc Augmentation Plan of lsets negative impacts of over appropriation ol'
the Yarnpa Rivcr. and oll'crs a responsiblc and managed tuture residential. agricultural.
cotllmercial. and industrial watcr dcvelopnrcnt option that is inrportant fbr the social and
economic vitality ol'both Mollirt County and JWCI).

2. Part ol'the Proposed Augmentation Arca is located withinJWCD's boundaries.

3. .IWCD suppofts and approves Moflt'at County's operation and administration of the
Augmentalion Plan within the portion of JWC[)'s boundaries within Moffat County tlepicted ip
Exhibit l.

Mof tht County will bear the cost ol'operation and administration of the Augmentation Plan and
will charge user t'ees and other costs to individual watcr users within the JWCD's boundaries
who elect to participate in thc Augrnentation Plan.

4.



I)A ltjD this ___ day of August. 2023.

MOtrl]A',t coUN't y t]o^I{t) olr ('ouN Iy
C0MMISSI0NIJRS

'l'ony Ilohrcr. (lhairntan

W'A I llll CONSUtVn NCIY I)lS'l t{lC'f

Iinsert . titlc I

2



EXlilBt't'I

Map o[proposcd Augtnentation Arca tirr the l,ower Yarnpa River Augmentation Plan

- Highways

r l',"#:::,.n Area

Streams

Juniper Water
Conservancy District

J



Mnrvronq,xDuM oF Uxnnnsr.c,NDING Bn'rwmx
Mornar Couxry BeiaRp oE Cornry CorvrursstoNnRs

AND

Rrce.Ronqc'oo,*Itl,3,TlJ##tr?1iX^f,Hfi|ffiffi l,3f lln,'I..,,ss*RrsD,crroN
BouNnarur:s

This Memorandum of Understanding is entered into befween the Moffat County. Colorado Board of
County Commissioners ("Moffat County") and the Great Northern Water Conservancy District ("GNWCD")
represented by their respective governing bodies, collectively referred to as "the Parties." C.R.S. $ 29-l-203
provides authority for Governments to cooperate or contract with one another to provide any function, service.
or facility lawfully authorized in Colorado.

Whereas: Moffat County is drafting the Lower Yampa River Augmentation Plan (herein referred to as
the "Augmentation Plan") with the goal of adjudicating the water for the Augmentation Plan through water court
in2024. The Augmentation Plan will provide augmentation water, primarily, but not limited to, household water
wells drilled after March 1,2A22 when the Lower Yampa River was designated over-appropriated by the State
Engineer, Division of Water Resources, State of Colorado.

l(hereas: Moffat County has diligently cooperated with the GNWCD and received support to operate
and administer the Augmentation Plan within GNWCD's boundaries.

l{hereas: Moffat Counry acknowledges its operational and administrative responsibility for the
Augmentation Plan, and shall undertake all necessary actions to adjudicate and implement the Augmenktion

. ?lan without cost to GNWCD.

Whereas: GNWCD desires that Moffat County operate and administer the Augmentation Plan within
that portion of the GNWCD's boundaries shown in the attached Exhibit l.

Now. therefore, both parties acknowledge and agree that:

The Parties agree that the Augmentation Plan offsets negative impacts of over appropriation of the
Yampa River, and offers a responsible and managed future residential, agricultural, commercial,
and industrial water development option that is important for the social and economic vitality of
both Moffat County and GNWCD.

2. Part of the Proposed Augmentation Area is located within GNWCD's boundaries.

GNWCD supports and approves Moffat County's operation and administration of the
Augmentation Plan within the portion of GNWCD's boundaries within Moffat County depicted in
Exhibit l.

J

4. Moffat County will bear the cost of operation and administration of the Augmentation Plan and
will charge user fees and other costs to individual water users within the GNWCD's boundaries
who elect to participate in the Augmentation Plan.

DATED this __ day of August, 2023

I



Morrel CouN'ry BoaRo or Coulrly
CoutvttssloNr:Rs

Tony Bohrer. Chairman

Gnnar NoR'rurgRN WalnR CoNsERvaNcv DrstRrcr

[insert name, title]
.4/b"rr- A Ui/lVrd 0 nv rn tPt't
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EXHIBIT I

Map o1 proposed Augmenlation Area for the Lowcr Yampa River Augmentation Plan.
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Clerk & Recorder
tsTJ gr I

Stacy Morgan, Clerk dy Recorder

OREAl

September 12,2023

We have decided to go with a different Printing Vendor for our Elections. We originally thought we

would go with K&H Election services, but we have now decided to go with Fort orange Press as they

seem to be willing to work with our needs better. Fort orange Press was one of the vendors on our Bid

Tabulation Sheet, and their cost is 520,250.00 per Election, which is actually a little less than K&H was.

Fort orange Press has agreed to these prices through December 2024.

Stacy Morgan
Moffat County Clerk & Recorder

1198 West Victory Way, Suite 103 . Craig, CO 81625

970-824-9104 (Phone) . 970-826-3a13 (Fax)

smorgan @ moffatcounty.net



6A
m"fl6r

Dcscription

Contract Time: No ContracLs

. Printin-e Vcndor lirr
' County Elections

Mol'lat

s 19,s00.00

s 20,2s0.00

s 2o,9s8.oo

'7/t3t2023Date:

N/A s 19,s00.00 5ProVote Solutions

BOCC Award:

Fort Orange Press N/A s 17,s00.00 5 2,7s0.00

N/A 5 20,es8.00 s

Vendor Setup Fee

BID TABTILATION

Snhrnission Datc:

71t312023

lnsurance Price Total Bid Amount

K&H Election Services



fort press BECAUSE EVERY BALLOT COUNTS'"
Fort Orange Press lnnovative Election Solutions Since l9O5

August 31,2023

Sarah Colding
Moffat County
1 198 West Victory Way Suite 105
Craig, CO 81625

Dear Ms Colding:

Fort Orange Press is pleased to provide Moffat County with the following proposal for your 2023 Election
Vote by Mail Packets.

Additionalitems
. Mail list data file set up fee per election: $2,750.00
. Shipping to Colorado: Additional based on freight rates at the time of shipping.
' Pricing is effective through December 31 ,2024 and based on the current paper market price index which is subject

to change based on market conditions.

Please do not hesitate to contact me should you have any questions.

Thank you for considering Fort Orange Press!

Sincerely,

Fort range Press, lnc.
Accepted By:

Name/Title:

Date:
JP Thomas

VP of Sales

Price for Vote by Mail Packet:
lncludes Envelope Set, 1 Ballot
and 1 lnstruction Sheet
(Postage Not lncluded)
Mail Drop in Albany NY

11" - 19" Double N/A 10,000 $1.75 $17,s00.00

L1 Sand Creek Road ' Albany, New York L2205-1.442 e 518-489-3233 . 8AO-777-3233 . election@fortorangepress.com

Description Ballot
Size

Single or
Double Sided

Loose or
Stitched

Quantity Unit
Price

Extended
Price

Total: $17,500.00

Oak



BALLOT PRINT AND ilIAIL SERVICES AGREEMENT

THIS BAt,l-OT PRINT AND M;\lL SERVICES AOREEMI:NT ("Agreement") is made as ofthe
date of'cxecution by the Parties. by and betu,een the Board o1'Countl'Comnrissioners of l\4oflat County.
State of Colorado. on belialf of Moiiat County, a governnlental subdivision of the State of Colorado

1''County"), and liort Orange Pressu whose address is l1 Sand Creek Road, Albany, New York 12205-
1442, and whose phone number is 518-489-3233 ("Vendor.") (Collectivel.v, County and Vendol are the
"Parties").

RECITALS

Vendor is the provider of certain data services. ballot printing, and rnailirig services (the

"services"). rnore f'ully described in Exhibit A and Exhibit B. which are available lirr sale.

Vendor also o{lbrs other services. sLlpporl. and producrts ("Products") related to the

elections process.

2. County desires to purchase tlom Vend<lr Products and Sen ic*s that are described in
Exhibits A and B,

i. The Board of Count-v Commissioners of Moflat County, State ol'Colorado, is authoriz.ed

to act on behalf of Moffat Counry pursuant to Article XIV, Section 1 o1'the Colorado

Constitution and Colorado Revised Statutes (C.fr.S.) $ 30*11-101. C.R'S. $ 30-11-103. and

c.R.s. $ 3o-l l-107.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the tbregoing. the mutual covenants contained herein and

other good and valuable consideration. the Parties agree lis l'ollows:

1

ACREEMENTS

1. ProdU$.t and -Sen'ice Purchase'

Vendor agrees to sell, and Countl' agrees to purchase . the ballot trrrinting and mailing sen'ices (and

related productsj thar are ilescribed in Exhibit A and Exhibit B. (Hereafier these shall be called

'.Services.") Coulty agrees to pay to Vendi:r in accordance rvith the fee schedule as shown in Exhibit A

and the parties *rpr*i.ly acknowledge and agree that il the cost of paper increases by more than one

percer[ (1.0%) annually, the price wili be adjusred ter inclurle the amount by whieh such annua] paper cost

increase exceeds on*-p.r."ni (1.0%); provided, holevsr, County shall not be required to pay as a paper

cost atijusl:neff more thun t*o-p*rrent (2.0%) in any one ,vear during the term oll this Agreentent' The

parties turther agree that the pricc for the Services shall remain the sanre lbr 2024.

2. Plyment to Vendor.

County hereby agrees ro pay ro Vcndor. no latcr than the applicable due date, all l'ees that are due

arrd payable under this Agreemenr. inclurling Ballor Printing, Mailing Services, Applicahle Shipping

Charges and any other itemi the Cor"rnl1' ,*.1o*ri* be produced liereunder' Paymenl terms on anrounts billcd

1



to Cr:un1y are nel thirty-tive (35) days. Vendor's invoices *ill confbnn to rhe reasonable requirernents of
the County.

3. Tirre of Perl'g_mrancs*

Services ol' the Vendor fbr 2023 shall commence on 911212023. and shall be substantially
cornpleted on or before 12/3112023. Iror 1024. services of thc Vendor shall commence on | /212024 and
shall be substantially contpleted on or before l2l3l/2021.

4. Product Delivery.

Vendor shall delivcr all Products and Services to County ar Moll:at County Elections, I l98 West
Victory Way. Suite 103, Craig, Colorado 8 1625, lhe Procl"rcts and Sen'ices r,vill be deliverecl on a schedule
that is mutually acceptable to the partie s, Vendor shall nor be responsible tbr delays in delivery of the
Products and Services that are not causcd by Vendor.

5, Availabilitr" and Rerention ol'Records.

All records relating to the Products and Services pror,ided unc"ler this Agreernent and supporting
documentation for invoices submitted to County by Vendor shall be retained and made auaiiiUte Uy
Vendor lbr audit by County, its duly authorized representatives, rhe State of Colorado (including, but not
lirnited to the Auditor of the State of Colorado. lnspecror General or dul1, appointed law enforcement
ot'licials). and agencies of the United States government. Such records shall be retained by Vendorand
madc available lbr any time period required b;- state or tbderal lau,.

6. Assigrunent.

'l'he Parties expressly agree thal neither shall assign this Agreement rvithout the prior written
consent o1'the other. Vendor may subcontract services agreed to in this Agreemenl, but only with the
r,vrittcn consent of the County. Any and all subcontracts are subject to the salne tems, conditions. ancl
covenants contained wirhin this Agreenrent.

7. Governing Law

1'his Agrecmer-rt shall be governed, construed. and enforced under the larvs of Coiorado. Any legal
action brought pursuant to this Agreement shall be filed in the courts o1'Colorado.

8, Intesration aryi Modif-rcation.

This Agreement. inch.rding Exhibit A and ljxhibit Il. enrbodies thc cntire agreement of the Parties.
'l'here are no promises. temls. conditions or obligations olher llian those contained herein; and this
Agrcement shall supersede all previous communications. representations or contracts, either r.vritten or
oral. between the Parlies to this Agreernent. 'Ihis Agreemcnl shall not be modil'red in any manner except
by an instrument, in writing, executed by the Parties tcl this Agreenrent.
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9. Severabilitv.

If any terrn or provision of this Agreement shall be held to be inr.,alid or unenforceable by a court
ol competent jurisdiction. the remainder of this Agreement shall not be afl'ected thereby and each
rentaining term and provision of this Agreement shall be r,alid and enlbrced to the t'ullest extent permitted
b,v [aw.

I0. Non-Appropriation

Mof{'at County's expenditure of any fur,ds urrder this Agreement beyond the current County liscal
1'ear shall be expressly subject to and contingent upon the C)ount1''s budgeting and appropriating firnds for
such pu'ptises according to the Colorado Local Oovernment Budget Larv and C.R.S. $ 29-l-110. Should
such tunds not be budgeted an<I appropriated for the Countl,'s obligations under this Agreement tbr tuture
t-rscal years. this Agreertrent shall terminate at the end ol'the llscal y'ear fur rvhich such lunding has been
la*'fullv budgeted and appropriated. and the County slrall provide Vendor rvith prior unitten notice of'such
tennination.

I 1. Compliance.

Vendor agrees to comply r.vith all applicable fbderal, stale, and local lalvs in the conduct of lvork
hereunder. Vendor accepts full responsibility tbr payment of all taxes including, without limitation,
unemplol'ment compensation. insurance pren:iuurs, income tax dcductions. social security deductions,
and all other taxes or payroll deductions required lbr all ernplo).'ees e ngaged by Vendor in the perlbmrance
olw'ork under this Agreement.

12. Nr:n-Discrimination.

Vendor certifies it is an equal opportunity enrployer and shall remain in conrpliance rvith state and
t'ederalcivil rights and nondiscrimination lar.vs and regulations irrcluding. but not limited to. Title VI. and
'l'itle VII olthe Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended, the Rehabilitation Act of 197i, the Americans r,r,ith

Disabilities Act, the Age Discrimination Act ot'1975 and the Age Discrimination in Employrnent Act, as

anrcnded.

During the perlbrrnance of this Agreement, Vendor r.vill not discrinrinate againsr any employee,

contract rvorker. or applicant lbr ernploy'ment because ol'race, cr:lor. religion. sex. sexual orientation,
national origin, ancestt)', disability, Vietnam-era veteran status. age, political belief or place ol birth"

Vendor will take allirnrative action to ensure that during cmph:1,ment. all employees are treated without
regard 10 race. color, religion, sex. nalional origin. ancestr)', disability. Vietnam-era veteran status, age,

political belief or place ol'birth. Such action shall include. but is not limited to, the fbllowing: employment
upgrading, demotion or transfer; recruitment or recmitnrent advertising. layotT. or termination: rates of'
pa)' or otlier fbrms olconrpensation; and selection tbr training.

Vendor. or any person claiming through Vendor. agrees not to eslablish or knowingly permit any

such p:actice or practices of discrimination or segregfltion in ref'erence to anylhing relating to this

r\grecmcnl or in ret'erence to any contractors or subcontractors of said Vendor.
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13. IndependentRelationship

Nothing in this Agreen:etrt is intended to. nor shall be de enred to. creale a partnership, association.
or Jojnt venturc between County and Vendor in the conduct of the prol,isions of this Agreement, Vendor
shall at all times have the status of an independent contractor.

14, Waiver.

Any waiver by either Part1,6f 6n, right, trrrovision or condition under this Agreement shall not lre
crinstrued or deemed to be a waiver of any other right. provision or conditiorr of' this Agreenrent, nor a
waiver of a subsequent breach ol'the same right" provision or condition.

15. Contidentiallnforn:ation.

All infbnnation owned, possessed or used by County w'hich is conrmunicated to. learned, or
otherwise acquired hy Vendor clr its emplo)'ees. agents or contractors in tlre perlirrmance of the tc.rms of
this Agreement shall be dcemed to be. and shall remain to he. Conljdential intormation. Vcndor shall not.
beginning on tlte date of flrsl contntunication belrveen the Count.v and Vendor arrd continuing through the
teml olthis Agreement and thereafter. disclose. communicate or divulge to another, or Lrse ibr Vendor's
oi,vn benefit r:r the benefit of anr:ther, anl such Confidcntial Inlormation rvithout the prior wtitten consent
of t-he Counl-v.

16. Bisk o[sss.

Vendor agrces to bear all risk of loss. injury,. or destructiern ol' Products, as a resul( of this
Agreement lvhich occurs prior to delivery to the Countl,. lJpon delivery by Vendor to the County, and
(lounty taking possession o{ such Products, County agrees to bear all risk of loss. injury, or destruction of
sr"rch Products.

17. Warrantv

Vendor warants and represents tl"lat Sen,ices provided pursllant to this Agreemcnt. including

Ijxtribir A and Exhibit B. shall be timely perlilrmed in a protbssional and competent manner.

18. Governmg4tallmmunity.

Notil,ithstanding any other provision to tlie contrar)'. no ternl or condition of this contract shall be

construed or inte4:rered as a waiver, e.xpress or implied. ol' an1' of the immunilies, rights, benelits,

protectiolt or other provisions of the Colorado (iovernrnental lnrrlunity Act *s Ju1-10-101. el. 'teq., C'R.S.

as now or hereatter an:ended.

19. PartiesResponsibilitv.

l-ach pasy agrees to be responsible trnd assume liability lbr its ou,"n wrongt'ul or negligent aets arrd

omissigns, and those of its ot'ficers, agents, and emplol"ees to the extent required by lalv' No term or

conditiol oj'this Agreement shall be construed or interpreted as a rvaiver. either express or in:plied, of the
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notice requirements, immunities. rights" benel'rts. def'enses. lirnitations and protections available to County

under Colorado lalv.

20. No 'fhird-partl' Ileneticiarf .

I.inlbrcen-rent of the terms of this Agreernent and all rigirls olaction relaling to enforcement are

strictly reserved to the Parties. Nothing contained in this Agreement allows auy claim or right of action in

anl. third person or entity. Any person or entitl,' othel than Courtty or Vendor receiving services or benefits

pursuant to lhis Agreernent is an incidental treneliciary orrll'.

I L Notices.

All written notices required urder this Agreement must be hand delivered. sent by overnight

courier service, prailed by certitied mail. return receipt requested. or nrailed via lJnited States mail, postage

prepaid as follows:

Ily Vendor to: Moffat Countl' Comnissioners
1198 W, Victory \\ray'- Ste. 104, C'raig, CO 81625

Phone: 970-824-55 1 7

With a copy to Ivtoilat Count.v Attorney's Othc!.
1198 W. Vicrory Wa1'" Ste, 203. Craig, CO 81625

Phone: 970-826-3404

Moflbt Clount,v Clerk & I{ecorder
Attn: Stac1,'N4organ

I i98 W. Victotl'Wa)'. Ste. i03, Craig, CO 81625

Phone:970-82+-9101

To Vendor: J rtc
Fort Orange Press

I 1 Sand
Phone:

Creek
,5lf -

Road.
r/s{

Albanl'. n-erv York 12205-1442
- 343s

Notices hand delivered or senl by overnight courier are eft'ective upon delivery; noticcs sent by

ce[iiied mail are ellective upon receipt ano notic'is senr b] u.S. mail are elfective upon the expiration of

f,ive (5) r.nail delivery days fiom deposit (poshnarked) r.vith tire U.S. Postal Service'

22. No Qonstrqction Against Draftine PArt)"

The parties and t6eir respective counsel have had the opportunit-v to review this Agreemerrt' and

the Agreement will not be ccrnstiuecl against an1' Pany nrerelv becar'tse this Agreement was preparcd by a

panicr"rlar Parry-.
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23, Binding Authority.

Thc person signing this Agrccment on behall'ol'each Partl, represents and r.yarrants that he or she
has Iirll legal power to execLlte this Agreement and that he or she has proper authorit), to bind ald obligate
his or her Party ivith respcct to allprovisions containeti in this Agrcement.

21. Successors and Assigns.

1.he rights and ohligations of the Parties herein set fo(h shall inure to the benefit of and be binding
upon the Parties hel'eto and their respective successors ancl assigns penrritteci under this Agreement.

25, TinT e is of the Essencc.

The Parties agree that in the perfbnnance of the terms of this Agreement. tinre shall be of the
cssence.

26. 'lerm.

1'he Parties declare, ackno'uvlcdgc and agree that the term ol'tlris Agreement shall be two (2) years.
The second 1,ear is subject to annual appropriation by County and subject to Vendor's right to terminate
imr:rediately due to lack of approved appropriations as se1 lorrh in Section l0 of tlie Agieement; due to
tiaudl or due to disclosure of cr:unty's coniidential lntormation b-v vendor.

?7. Counterpafis and Electronic Signatures.

This Agreement may be executed in counterparts. each of rvhich shali be deemed an original.
Electronic signatures ol'. or on behalf oi County or Vendor on this Agreement and any modification hereto
shall be ef lective ibr all purposes.

28. Obligations at Expiration.

lJpon expiration of this Agreement, Vendor shall provide to County an accounting of all monies
durr and payable 1o Vendor under this Agreement, County shall pay to Vendor all amounts owed. if any.
r.r,ithin thirty-livc (35) days of the date of the invoice that Vendor sends to Clounty.

29. Provision of Names.

County is responsible lbr verilying the voter list provided to Fort Orangc Press, the voter list does
not sontain any duplicate names. County acknou,ledges that l"-ort Orange Press does not check for
iluplicatc names when it mails ballots to names on the voter Iist provided by- County.

6



lN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have signed this Agreement as of the day and year flrrst
above written,

VENDOR: BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
OF MOF'FAT COUNTY, COLORADO

<.>

By:

Title:

Date:

By:
<)
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IlxHIBtl'.{

lProposal fl'our l;t'rrt Orange Press to Vkll'fat Counr"v)
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IXHII}IT ts

Additional Scope ol' Serr,ices

Venclor nrusl provide Countv the tbllowing:

Utilize Mollat County's clcctronic \,otcl exporl lile tbr envelope adclressing recluirements.
The Iile will be expofied from tlte VR database into a texl lbrrnal. A rnail titc mapping
layout documenting the {ields in each rccord zurd also examples n'irh votu intbrmation will
be provided. The database identif'ies the appropriate precinctidistrict (ballot) style lbr each
iote by-mail.

Hvaluate address standardization and conltlrrnitv per L)SI'}S - Coding Accuracy Support
System (CASS) requirements in order to achi*'e the lorvcst non-proiit bulk rate available.

Exercise adequate qr,ralitl,control m{-:asures lo enslrre the delir,erv of't}re correct ballot style
and appropriate precinct to each vote-b-v-nrail and rnail balk:t voter.

Provide quality control docunlentation to the lv{oftat Countl'Otfice of Elections and pennit
"on sight" inspections of qualil.' controls and processes during printing and inserting of
rnaterials.

Provide the l\4oft-at County Office olElections proofs 01'the o1{lcial ballot art. one per

ballnt type-style or per precinct. tbllorving uith one per precinct for approval prior to
printing. t he proof ballot shall be inrplinted rvith a PROOl" watennark to dilferentiate them
tiom the official ballots Shipping charges oiany' prooti (ballots, sample ballots. envelopes,
inserts) are assessed 1o the County.

Receive confirmation of approval fionr \4oftat County Ollice of Elections prior to
proceeding i.r.ith envelope printing lbr the mail hallot packet.

Print and lbld all otlicial votc-by-mail and mail Lrallots b1' precinct pe r:mail files. Assemble

the arppropriate ballot packet ibr each lndividual vote-br'-mtril and mail ballot voter and

inserl the lbllolving Items into the outgoing mail-in Lrallot envelope: oflicial ballot,

insertion nraterials, and appropriate repll' nrail cnvelope. Preprint the individual vote-by-

mail votcr's nanre and address int'onnatioir and infbmration required by the tJ.S. l'}osral

sen,ice in order to mail the nrail ballot packet. Tender all ballots to the lJ.S. Postal as

requested by statutory deadlines.

Provide thc Mol-tat Count.v Otfice ol'Elections poslage estitnates ibr the mailing ol'mail
ballor packets.

Prepare a mail ballot packet. Each packet shall be nrailed using the most cost-efI'ective

n,.*nr available. Each rnail ballot packet shall be comprised olthe l'ollor,r'ing items (subject

ro changes by C'ountyl: Or.rtgoing envelope packet is properly addressed by inkietting the

l
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address ot' each voter onto the CItivl: 0lllciat ballot: lnsefiions materials/Voter
instructions; and appropriate repl;' mail enveiol:e.

10, Comply r"-itir all specifications fbr ballot printin-e and must confbrnr to the manufacturer's
specit'ications.

I 1. Print olhcial ballots rvith a barcode on ballot

12. Deliver and tender mail bzrllot packets to the local Cenernl Mail lracility (CMF).

IJ

I ..1la.

r5

t6

t7

18

Print additional otficial ballots lbr the N.lotfar County Otirce ol' Illectir:us iI'ordered "in
ol'tice" use by precinct or ballot style. depending on the prefurence of the Mof'tat County
Oihce ol'tilections. The i\{of [at County Ot]lcc of Elcctions w'ill dctermine quantities at the

tirne of ordering. Print outgoing envelopes. insenion materials / rroter instructions. and

courtes,y reply envelopes. 'fhe lr4oflar Countl, Olfice of Elections will determine cluantities

at the tirnc' ol'ordering.

Pack all of frcial ballots by location, b1, precinct or ballot style irr order to l'acilitate inventory

and retrieval. Shipping containers shall be labeled to identifi contents. Labcling

in{brmation must include : "Olticial Ballots". location, precinct number. and ballot style of

contents. Packing infbmration l11ust accr)mpany' ballots. Packing specif'rcatitlns r.vill be

determined at the time of order.

Deliver all test ballors b,v precinct s11.lc or hatlot st1le. 
-l'tic tcsl ballot shall be imprinted

rvith a l'HS]'rvatermark to diilcrcntiate theni tl'onl the otlicial hallots.

lf applicable, print additional samplc ballot booklets lbr Countl's "itl tltfice" use by ballot

stvle, The lVtonat County, Otlicc ol'Hlcctions r.vill detelmine quantities at the time of
ordering.

lf the County is delal,ed in clelivcrl' lvith necessary inl'olntrtion. or f-rles or artwork to

Vendor, p.r th. agr..d schedule, Vendor rvill need to extend its delivery dates accordingl.v.

ln the event a producl or sen'ice is not I'ully'defined in the scope ol'work lor saniple ballot

printrng, ballot printing, insertion and mailing services or a ne\,v product or service is

i.qr.rf,O by theCounri, ftonl Vend<lr, Vendor nill submit a quote to the Clounty lbr such

recluest. Only when the County aglees to proceed, is rvhen execution of the quote will

0ccur.
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McMahan and Associates, l.l.c.
Certified Public Accountants and Consultants

Web Site: www.mcmahancpa.com
Chapel Square, Bldg C Main Office: (970) 845-8800
245 Chapel Place, Suite 300 Facsimile: (970) 845-8108
P.O. Box 5850, Avon, CO 81620 E-mail: mcmahan@mcmahancpa.com

Member: American Institute of Certified Public Accountants

Paul J. Backes, CPA, CGMA Avon: (970) 845-8800

Michael N. Jenkins, CA, CPA, CGMA Aspen: (970) 544-3996

Matthew D. Miller, CPA Frisco: (970) 668-3481
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To the Board of County Commissioners
Moffat County, Colorado
Craig, Colorado

We have audited the financial statements of Moffat County, Colorado (the “County”) for the year ended 
December 31, 2022. Professional standards require that we provide you with the following information 
related to our audit.

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Policies

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant 
accounting policies used by the County are described in the Notes to the Financial Statements. 

Financial reporting standards for the County are promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (“GASB”).  No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was 
not changed during the year. We noted no transactions entered into by the County during the year for 
which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. There are no significant transactions that 
have been recognized in the financial statements in a different period than when the transaction occurred.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are 
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions 
about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance 
to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ 
significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements were:

 Estimated allowance for uncollectible receivables at December 31, 2022, which management has 
based on industry practice and experience, including actual collections since year-end.

 Estimated useful lives for capital assets subject to depreciation, which management has based on 
industry practice and experience.

 Estimated asset value of gravel inventory, which management has based on actual costs incurred 
and overhead allocated to crush gravel per estimated cubic yard of gravel produced.

 Estimated closure and post-closure landfill liabilities, which management has based on a study 
performed by geotechnical and environmental engineers and industry practice and experience.

 Estimating the self-insurance claims incurred but not reported liability, which management has 
based on subsequent claims activity. 

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop these estimates and found them
reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our 
audit.



To the Board of County Commissioners
Moffat County, Colorado
Page 2

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the 
audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.  
Management has corrected all misstatements prior to finalization of the 2022 audited financial statements.

 Adjust property tax receivable and related deferred revenue for the General, Human Services, 
and Public Health Funds 

 Recognize federal grant revenue:
o DOLA ARP allocation: $1,290,034
o FAA: $202,113
o USDA: $4,571,054

 Accrue capital project invoices and related retainage due at year-end:
o Airport Fund: ($229,283)
o Capital Projects Fund: ($2,123,144)

 Post 2021 journal entries in order to agree the beginning 2022 fund balance on the Lease 
Purchase Fund to the 2021 audited financial statements ($22,682,788)

 Reduce revenues and expenditures improperly recorded to the Lease Purchase Fund 
($16,891,890)

 Increase revenues and expenditures on the Capital Projects Fund to account for 2022 cash 
activity ($16,593,780)

 Reverse COP bond interest posted twice ($421,500)
 To adjust depreciation expense to actual ($20,953)
 Adjust Incurred but Not Reported (“IBNR”) claims estimate at year end. 

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a financial 
accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be 
significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such 
disagreements arose during the course of our audit

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of Moffat County, Colorado, Colorado
(the “County”) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2022, in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered the County’s internal control over 
financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of 
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the County’s internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the County’s internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significant deficiencies or 
material weaknesses and therefore there can be no assurance that all such deficiencies have been 
identified. However, as discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we 
consider to be material weaknesses.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination 
of deficiencies in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We 
consider the following deficiency in the County’s internal control to be a material weakness:



To the Board of County Commissioners
Moffat County, Colorado
Page 3

Bank Reconciliations and Fund Use

The County's Health and Welfare Fund claims bank account has not been reconciled to the general 
ledger since the month of May 2022.  In addition, certain other cash accounts on the Lease Purchase and 
Capital Projects Fund had not been reconciled during 2022 to Munis Financial System.  It is our 
understanding that there has been turnover and unfulfilled positions in various County departments.  
Moving forward, we recommend the County complete bank reconciliations for all cash accounts recorded 
in the Munis Financial System, regardless of the value in the general ledger.  Someone other than the 
preparer of those reconciliations should review the bank reconciliations to ensure they agree to the 
general ledger, investigate and inquire about any unusual items, and document his or her approval by 
initialing.

We also noted the following opportunities for improvement of the County’s internal controls and business 
practices: 

Library Cash Receipts

In our review of a selected sample of cash receipts, it was noted that cash receipt deposits for the Library 
are currently being made monthly with no supporting documentation.  Ideally, cash deposits are entered 
through a cash receipting software or point-of-sale system, so a review of the cash being deposited can 
be performed against the cash receipts in the system.  The Library also does not accept cards as a form 
of payment.  The Library is exposed to the potential of theft of cash the longer it remains on the premises.  
To strengthen internal controls in this area, we suggest that bank deposits be made at least semi-
monthly, increasing the frequency during periods of higher cash inflow.  

Library Inventory

The County does not currently have a value recorded for its media and book inventory.  This inventory 
should be accumulated and recorded on the Munis Financial System to properly reflect the assets of the 
Library Fund.

The GASB issued Implementation Guide No. 2021-1 effective for reporting periods beginning after June 
15, 2023, which clarifies question 5.1 in Implementation Guide No. 2015-1, stating that governments 
should capitalize assets whose individual acquisition costs are less than the threshold for an individual
asset if those assets in the aggregate are significant. In 2022 we were unable to perform a restatement 
of the beginning fund balance, as the County is unable to determine the estimated dollar value of the 
library inventory.  In 2023, we recommend the County obtain or calculate a valuation of the total library
inventory, including intangible assets, if any, and begin depreciating them based off their estimated useful 
lives.

Jail Commissary

Because of the limited number of the Sheriff’s administrative staff, adequate segregations of duties are
currently not being achieved. The basic premise of internal control system is that no single employee
should have access to both physical assets and the related accounting records, or to all phases of a
transaction.  Currently, the administrative assistant processes and cuts checks out of the jail commissary
account and also reconciles the bank statement. Bank reconciliations are provided to the Finance 
Department, but the Finance Department only checks the totals and is not reviewing activity on these 
bank reconciliations. We recommend that someone in the Sheriff Department review the monthly bank 
statement and canceled checks after the Administrative Assistant has reconciled the bank statement. 
Indication of approval should be apparent with either a signature or initials.
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Internal Policies

The County has developed several policies that describe several critical accounting function processes in 
detail.  As of the end of the year, the County had completed transition from the previous Eden to the 
Munis software.  In our discussions with management, none of these internal policies have been rewritten 
to be reflective of the new system in use.  These policies are critical in the case of employee turnover and 
ensure processes function as normal until positions are filled. We recommend the County work to update 
these policies during 2023.

New Financial Reporting Standards 

GASB has issued Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements (“GASB 
96”), which requires recognition of certain right-to-use subscription assets and corresponding subscription 
liabilities.  GASB 96 is effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2022 so the County’s 
financial statements as of and for the year ending December 31, 2023 must reflect the changes imposed 
by this new reporting standard.

We will work with County staff to support implementation of this new standard, and to assist with the 
related calculation and presentation considerations.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the County Commissioners, management, 
and others within the organization and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other 
than those specified parties.

Sincerely,

McMahan and Associates, L.L.C.
August 25, 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of County Commissioners
Moffat County, Colorado

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of Moffat County, Colorado, Colorado (the “County”), as of and for the year 
ended December 31, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise 
the County’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate 
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of 
the County as of December 31, 2022, and the respective changes in financial position and, where 
applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”).

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America (“U.S. GAAS”) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are required to be independent of the County and to meet our other ethical 
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with U.S. GAAP; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal 
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the County’s ability to continue as 
a going concern for one year after the date that the financial statements are issued.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance 
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with U.S. GAAS will always detect 
a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material 
if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment 
made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with U.S. GAAS, we: 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such 
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is 
expressed.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements.

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about the County’s ability to continue as a going concern for a 
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control–related 
matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

U.S. GAAP require Management’s Discussion and Analysis in section B be presented to supplement the 
basic financial statements.  Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part 
of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who 
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an 
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to 
the required supplementary information in section B in accordance with U.S. GAAS, which consisted of 
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information 
for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
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Required Supplementary Information (continued)

The budgetary comparison information in section E is not a required part of the basic financial statements 
but is supplementary information required by U.S. GAAP.  The budgetary comparison information in 
section E is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements.  Such information has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with U.S. GAAS.  In our opinion, 
the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a 
whole.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the County’s basic financial statements. The combining fund financial statements, individual 
fund budgetary information, the Local Highway Finance Report, and the Schedule of Expenditures of 
Federal Awards as required by Title 2, U.S. Code of Federal Regulations, Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards included in 
the Single Audit Section listed in the accompanying table of contents are presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining fund financial statements, individual fund budgetary information, the Local Highway 
Finance Report, and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards included in the Single Audit 
Section listed in the accompanying table of contents is the responsibility of management and was derived 
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit 
of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling 
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with U.S. GAAS. In our opinion, the combining fund financial statements, individual fund 
budgetary information, the Local Highway Finance Report, the statistical section, and the Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federal Awards included in the Single Audit Section listed in the accompanying table of 
contents is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated August 25, 
2023 on our consideration of the County’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters.  The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal 
control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the County’s internal control over 
financial reporting and on compliance.

McMahan and Associates, L.L.C. 
Avon, Colorado
August 25, 2023
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As management of Moffat County, Colorado (the “County”), we offer readers of the County’s financial 
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the County for the fiscal year 
ended December 31, 2022.

Financial Highlights

 The assets of Moffat County exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by
$102,855,082 (net position).  Of this amount, $43,257,009 (unrestricted net position) may be used
to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

 The government’s total net position increased by $11,290,019. The largest increases in net
position occurred in General Fund generating $8,745,352 in increased net position.

 As of the close of the current fiscal year, Moffat County governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $58,412,331, a decrease of $6,042,592 primarily due to capital outlay.
Approximately $45,941,508 of governmental fund balances is available for spending at the
government’s discretion (committed, assigned, and unassigned).

 At the end of the current year, the fund balance for the General Fund was $27,357,984 or 257%
of total general fund expenditures and transfers out.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the County’s basic financial 
statements.  The County’s basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) government-
wide financial statements; 2) fund financial statements; and 3) notes to the financial statements.  This 
report also provides other supplementary information in addition to the financial statements themselves. 

General Purpose Financial Statements: The government-wide financial statements are designed to 
provide readers with a broad overview of the County’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector 
business. 

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the County’s assets and liabilities, with the 
difference between the two reported as net position.  Over time, increases or decreases in net position
may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the County is improving or 
deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the government’s net position changed 
during the most recent fiscal year.  All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying 
event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Thus, revenues 
and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future 
fiscal periods.

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the County that are principally 
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities).  The governmental 
activities of the County include general government, public safety, public works, health and human 
services, and community development. 

The government-wide fund financial statements can be found on pages C1 and C2 of this report.   

Fund Financial Statements:  A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control 
over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives.  The County, like other 
state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements.  All of the funds of the County can be divided into two categories: 1) 
governmental funds; and 2) fiduciary funds.
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Overview of the Financial Statements (continued)

Governmental Funds: Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions 
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  However, unlike the 
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows 
and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end 
of the fiscal year.  Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing 
requirements.  The County’s major governmental funds include the General Fund, Road and Bridge 
Fund, Human Services Fund, Jail Fund, Lease Purchase Payment Fund, and Capital Projects Fund.  The 
County also reports a number of non-major governmental funds.  Because the focus of governmental 
funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the 
information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental 
activities in the government-wide financial statements.  By doing so, readers may better understand the 
long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions.  The Balance Sheet and the 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate 
this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. 

Administration of general County operations is accomplished through various departments within the General 
Fund.  At the end of 2022, the fund balance was $27,357,984; an increase of $8,745,352 from 2021. The 
General Fund budgeted an increase of $1,568,832 in 2022 to utilize the fund balance towards budgetary 
needs while maintaining a sufficient cash reserve.  The County did not spend $2,173,721 of budgeted 
Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds. Additionally, all departments saw conservative 
spending compared to their adopted budgets, which further aided the increase in net position.  The following 
is a list of the General Fund departments by function.

Statutory Functions:
 The Commissioners’ Office coordinates County operations, financial reporting and accounting, and 

budget preparation.
 The Assessor's Office appraises and assesses taxes for all property within the County.
 The Clerk & Recorder's Office operates motor vehicle, recordings and runs all elections.
 The County Surveyor conducts surveys for the County.
 The Treasurer's Office collects taxes, fees and handles all County banking needs and serves as 

Public Trustee in processing deeds of trust.
Administration:

 The County Attorney’s office provides legal counsel to the Board of County Commissioners, elected 
County officials and the County departments and boards. 

 The Communications Department advises the Commissioners and informs the electorate of specific 
issues facing the County. 

 The Finance Department is responsible to prepare the County Budget, write and administrate grants, 
assist department heads and elected officials with finance duties, coordinate the annual audit, 
oversee fixed asset accounting, collecting and preparing accounts payable and balancing the 
general ledger, preparation of payroll, and administers and processes all insurance billings.

 The principle functions of the Human Resources Department are to improve the recruitment and 
retention of qualified employees and to minimize risk through compliance with all local, state and 
national laws and regulations.

 The Information Technology Department provides implementation and maintenance to network 
services for the County.

Public Safety:
 The District Attorney's Office provides judicial services jointly with other counties with in the district.  
 The Sheriff’s Department, County Jail, Coroner’s Office, Emergency 911 Communication Center, 

Fire Control and the Emergency Management Office provide public safety.  
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Overview of the Financial Statements (continued)

Governmental Funds (continued)

General Fund (continued)

Public Works:
 Moffat County maintains the Craig cemetery grounds.
 The Facilities Department is responsible for the repair and upkeep of the Courthouse, CSU Annex, 

Museum, Public Safety Center, Loudy Simpson Park and Sherman Youth Camp, Housing Authority, 
Human Services, Maybell Community Center, Hamilton Community Center, and the Craig, Maybell, 
and Dinosaur Libraries.

 The Fairgrounds provides gathering facilities for livestock work and many other community and 
family events.

 The Pest Management Department implements the State and County Undesirable Plant 
Management Plan including recommendations, physical assistance and herbicide applications, 
handles mosquito abatement through a comprehensive integrated management plan, and treats 
Mormon crickets and grasshopper infestations for members of the Pest District on a complaint basis.

Health and Human Services:
 The Maybell Ambulance Service serves approximately 2,700 square miles of unincorporated Moffat 

County, which includes the towns of Lay, Maybell, Greystone and the Brown’s Park area.  The 
County assists with purchases and maintains the ambulances and building for the agency.  The 
agencies provide supplies and general operating costs for their ambulance agency. 

 The Maybell Volunteer Fire Department provides emergency services within the Maybell area.
 Moffat County employ’s a part-time Veteran’s Officer to assist residents who served honorably in the 

United States Armed Services or Merchant Marines and their surviving spouses and dependents.  
 The Youth Services Department monitors a continuum of care for youth in crisis in the Juvenile 

Justice System.
Community Development:

 The Development Services Department provides and monitors procurement for improvements and 
capital projects within the County, planning information and direction to the general public and 
developers regarding zoning, subdividing and land use issues and the building inspection of building 
activities in the County.

 The Natural Resources Department researches and implements solutions to issues affecting Moffat 
County’s natural resources.

 Moffat County provides for the Hamilton Community Center and Maybell Community Center, Senior 
Bus, Park, and Women’s Club as well as contributions to many non-profit organizations in Moffat 
County.

 The Moffat County Extension Office and County Fair consist of a partnership of CSU, Moffat County 
and the USDA to promote the informal, non-credit educational system that links education and 
research with the needs of Moffat County citizens.

Special Revenue Funds: The County’s special revenue funds account for specific revenues that are 
legally restricted to expenditure for a particular purpose.  The County’s special revenue funds include the 
Road and Bridge Fund, Human Services Fund, Public Health Fund, Jail Fund, Landfill Fund, Library 
Fund, Senior Citizens Fund, Airport Fund, Conservation Trust Fund, Emergency 911 Fund, and Moffat 
County Tourism Association Fund.

The special revenue funds contained fund balances of $19,218,472 at the end of 2022, as compared to 
$19,804,598 at the end of 2021, an increase of $586,126.
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Overview of the Financial Statements (continued)

Governmental Funds (continued)

Capital Projects Funds: The County’s capital projects funds are used to account for the acquisitions and 
construction of major capital equipment and facilities other than those financed by proprietary funds and 
trust funds.  The County’s capital projects funds include the Capital Projects Fund, the 
Telecommunications Capital Projects Fund, and the Shadow Mountain Village Local Improvement 
District.  The capital projects funds contained a fund balance of $24,361,806 at the beginning of 2022 and 
ended the year with a fund balance of $10,151,741, a decrease of $14,210,065.  The main reason for the 
decrease was for spending down of bond proceeds for the construction of a new county building and 
other capital outlay totaling $18,961,926, offset slightly by a rural federal grant in the amount of 
$4,571,054.

Debt Service Fund: The County’s debt service fund accounts for the resources used to make the lease-
purchase payments on the certificates of participation for the Public Safety Center, and bond issuance for 
the county building. The debt service fund contained a fund balance of $1,233,036 at the beginning of 
2022 and ended the year with a fund balance of $1,245,784, an increase of $12,748.

Fiduciary Funds:

Custodial Funds: The County has assets held as a custodian for other governments and/or other funds.  
The largest custodial fund is the County Treasurer, which holds $2,141,739 on behalf of other 
governments. The County also has a number of other minor custodial funds.

Schedules and Notes to the Financial Statements: 

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in 
the government-wide and fund financial statements.  The Notes to the Financial Statements can be found 
on pages in Section D of this report. 

Schedules:
 The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with non-major governmental funds 

are presented immediately following the required supplementary information.  Combining and 
individual fund statements and schedules can be found in Section E and F of this report.

 The Annual Statement of Receipts and Expenditures for Roads, Bridges and Streets is part of the 
Local Highway Finance Report sent to the State of Colorado (the “State”).

Financial Analysis:

The County uses fund accounting to ensure compliance with finance-related legal requirements.  The 
County adopts an annual appropriated budget for its funds.  Budgetary comparison statements have been 
provided to demonstrate compliance.

Government-wide Financial Analysis:

As previously mentioned, the government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with 
a broad overview and long-term analysis of the County’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector 
business.  
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Government-wide Financial Analysis (continued): An analysis of net position may serve as a useful 
indicator of a government's financial health of the County.  For December 31, 2022 the total assets were 
$144,422,690, total liabilities and deferred inflows were $41,567,608, and the County's net position was 
$102,855,082. The following graph shows the County's net position for 2021 and 2022:

Moffat County’s Net Position:

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

Assets:

Current and other assets 74,901,724$  $79,253,605 142,734$       119,230$       75,044,458$   79,372,835$  

Capital assets 69,162,368     51,773,465    215,864          236,816          69,378,232     52,010,281    

Total Assets 144,064,092  131,027,070  358,598          356,046          144,422,690   131,383,116  

Liabilities:

Other liabilities 4,251,736       2,725,399      89                    86                    4,251,825       2,725,485      

Long-term liabilities 27,931,681     28,181,221    -                       -                       27,931,681     28,181,221    

Total Liabilities 32,183,417     30,906,620    89                    86                    32,183,506     30,906,706    

Deferred Inflow of Resources:

Property tax revenue 9,384,102       8,911,347      -                       -                       9,384,102       8,911,347      

Total Deferred Inflows

of Resources 9,384,102       8,911,347      -                       -                       9,384,102       8,911,347      

Net Position:

Net investment in capital

assets 48,455,732     24,058,516    215,864          236,817          48,671,596     24,295,333    

Restricted 10,926,477     29,859,641    -                       -                       10,926,477     29,859,641    

Unrestricted 43,114,364     37,290,946    142,645          119,143          43,257,009     37,410,089    

Total Net Position 102,496,573$ 91,209,103$  358,509$       355,960$       102,855,082$ 91,565,063$  

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total

Traditionally, the largest portion of any municipality’s investments is in its capital assets.  Land, buildings, 
equipment, machinery, and specialized tools are necessary in order to deliver and/or provide services to 
the County's residents and visitors.  The County's net investment in capital assets account for 47% of its 
net position; these assets are not an available source for payment of future spending.
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Government-wide Financial Analysis (continued):

Moffat County's Statement of Activities:

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

Revenues:

Program revenues:

Charges for services 7,991,731$     7,277,139$    40,140$          38,626$          8,031,871$     7,315,765$    

Operating grants and

contributions 18,039,726     13,920,184    -                       -                       18,039,726     13,920,184    

Capital grants and

contributions 2,338,345       -                       -                       -                       2,338,345       -                       

General revenues:

Property taxes 8,967,716       9,062,960      -                       -                       8,967,716       9,062,960      

Specific ownership taxes 975,454          987,335          -                       -                       975,454           987,335          

Sales taxes 4,812,345       4,316,449      -                       -                       4,812,345       4,316,449      

Investment earnings 539,057          59,304            1,146              141                  540,203           59,445            

General grants and contributions 1,729,072       1,776,521      -                       -                       1,729,072       1,776,521      

CSLRF Funds 2,631,314       -                       -                       -                       2,631,314       -                       

Other 1,334,447       376,624          -                       -                       1,334,447       376,624          

Gain (loss) on disposals -                        136,752          -                       -                       -                        136,752          

Total Revenues 49,359,207     37,913,268    41,286            38,767            49,400,493     37,952,035    

Expenditures:

General government 9,468,896       8,665,183      -                       -                       9,468,896       8,665,183      

Public safety 5,579,208       3,982,929      -                       -                       5,579,208       3,982,929      

Public works 12,714,462     10,824,292    -                       -                       12,714,462     10,824,292    

Health and human services 7,985,005       8,788,072      -                       -                       7,985,005       8,788,072      

Community development 1,589,674       1,447,906      -                       -                       1,589,674       1,447,906      

Interest 734,492          341,713          -                       -                       734,492           341,713          

Sewer -                        -                       38,737            43,623            38,737             43,623            

Total Expenses 38,071,737     34,050,095    38,737            43,623            38,110,474     34,093,718    

Change in net position

after transfers 11,287,470     3,863,173      2,549              (4,856)             11,290,019     3,858,317      

Net position - Jan 1 91,209,103     87,345,930    355,960          360,816          91,565,063     87,706,746    

Net position - Dec 31 102,496,573$ 91,209,103$  358,509$       355,960$       102,855,082$ 91,565,063$  

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total

Governmental Activities:  Governmental activities increased the County's net position by $11,287,470, 
after transfers.  Significantly impacting the 2022 results was a general increase in grant revenues, much 
of which related to COVID-19 grants and a grant to assist the County in the building of their new building.  
In addition, due to the issuance of debt in 2021 which led to high balances in investment and savings 
accounts combined with a higher yield for 2022, the County's net investment income increased 
significantly from 2021.

Business-type Activities:  Business-type activities increased the County's net position by $2,549.
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Overview of the Financial Statements (continued):

The following graph depicts the County’s 2022 expenditures:
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The following graph depicts the County’s 2022 revenues:
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Fund Financial Analysis:

Below shows the County’s total actual fund balances for fiscal years 2013 through 2022.
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Governmental Fund Balances

Governmental fund balances decreased $6,042,592 during 2022 and all governmental funds had positive 
fund balances at December 31, 2022.  Many of the funds have a committed operating reserve equal to 
30% of operating expenditures, excluding capital outlay.

Budget Variances:

The County is required to amend the budgets of various funds for the current fiscal year.  General Fund 
departments received budgetary increases totaling $3,239,944 to cover expenditures.

The General Fund had the following significant variances from the final budget:
Variance

Final Actual Positive

Budget Amounts (Negative)

Revenues:

Taxes:

Sales tax 2,679,475       3,912,652      1,233,177      Conservatively budgeted.

Other 50,000             1,019,348      969,348          Severance taxes higher than expected.

Charges for services 1,361,594       1,607,124      245,530          Higher treasurer, clerk, and recording fees 

Investment earnings 25,385             225,234          199,849          Increase in yield on investments

Expenditures:

General Government:

Other administrative services 1,806,005       1,064,457      741,548          $450,000 contingency budget unspent

Public Works:

Grounds and buildings 951,654          716,502          235,152          Savings in wages due to unfilled positions

Parks and recreation 341,887          201,967          139,920          Deferred anticipated capital outlay to next year

Community Development:

County fair 365,254          217,661          147,593          Operating supplies conservatively budgeted

Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Transfers (out) (2,713,346)      (3,012,854)     (299,508)        Based on actual need

Reason
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Next Year’s Budget:

The County’s General Fund balance at the end of fiscal year 2022 was $27,357,984.  A reserve is 
necessary to start the year and provide a consistent level of basic services to the residents and visitors of 
Moffat County from year to year.  The County is attempting to maintain a reserve in the General Fund of 
30% of operations plus and additional emergency reserve of 10% of operations. At December 31, 2022, 
the County had a General Fund balance of 257% of the 2022 actual expenditures (including transfers).

In 2023, the County is projected to decrease the General Fund Balance by approximately $3,018,749.

Request for Information:  This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the County’s 
finances for all those with an interest.  Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report 
or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Moffat County Finance Office, 
1198 W. Victory Way, Suite 109, Craig, Colorado 81625.
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Governmental Business-type Housing

Activities Activities Total Hospital Authority

Assets:

 Current Assets:

Cash and investments - Unrestricted 56,756,701$ 129,460$      56,886,161$ 12,052,269$ 1,017,930$  

Cash and investments - Restricted 1,245,784     -                    1,245,784     3,893,238     118,619       

Accounts, taxes, and other receivables 10,710,187   13,274          10,723,461   12,024,824   26,034         

Due from other governments 4,644,706     -                    4,644,706     -                    -                  

Prepaid expenses 15,380          -                    15,380          1,353,839     -                  

Inventory 1,528,966     -                    1,528,966     -                    -                  

Other current assets -                    -                    -                    1,390,841     -                  

 Other Assets:

Other assets -                    -                    -                    672,188        -                  

 Capital Assets:

Capital assets 122,955,830 790,676        123,746,506 86,495,459   4,975,295    

Accumulated depreciation (53,793,462)  (574,812)       (54,368,274)  (39,772,861)  (3,340,154)  

Right to use leased assets -                    -                    -                    12,296,390   -                  

Accumulated amortization -                    -                    -                    (3,821,572)    -                  

Total Assets 144,064,092 358,598        144,422,690 86,584,615   2,797,724    

Deferred Outflow of Resources:

Deferred loss on refunding -                    -                    -                    491,381        -                  

          Total deferred outflow of resources -                    -                    -                    491,381        -                  

Liabilities:

 Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable 3,396,935     89                 3,397,024     5,981,885     91,025         

Accrued compensation 854,394        -                    854,394        4,531,836     8,059           

Unearned Revenue - Other 407               -                    407               164,751        10               

 Non-Current Liabilities:

Accrued interest 283,694        -                    283,694        -                    33,860         

Due within one year: 438,248        -                    438,248        2,782,850     8,550           

Due longer than one year: 27,209,739   -                    27,209,739   66,503,160   702,288       

Total Liabilities 32,183,417   89                 32,183,506   79,964,482   843,792       

Deferred Inflow of Resources:

    Property tax revenue 9,384,102     -                    9,384,102     1,366,032     -                  

          Total deferred inflow of resources 9,384,102     -                    9,384,102     1,366,032     -                  

Net Position:

 Net investment in capital assets 48,455,732 215,864        48,671,596   (14,088,594)  924,303       

 Restricted for emergencies 1,005,000     -                    1,005,000     3,893,238     -                  

 Restricted for debt service 1,245,784     -                    1,245,784     -                    -                  

 Restricted for other purposes 8,675,693     -                    8,675,693     -                    -                  

 Unrestricted 43,114,364   142,645        43,257,009   15,940,838   1,029,629    
Total Net Position 102,496,573$ 358,509$      102,855,082$ 5,745,482$   1,953,932    

Primary Government Component Units

Moffat County, Colorado

Statement of Net Position

December 31, 2022

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Program Revenues Primary Government

Operating Capital

Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type Housing

Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total Hospital Authority

Functions/Programs:

Primary Government:

 Governmental Activities:

General government 9,468,896$   5,890,374$   5,357,680$   -$                  1,779,158$    1,779,158$    

Public safety 5,579,208     285,331        545,876        -                    (4,748,001)     (4,748,001)     

Public works 12,714,462   1,427,455     4,635,729     2,338,345     (4,312,933)     (4,312,933)     

Health and human services 7,985,005     216,073        7,336,759     -                    (432,173)        (432,173)        

Community development 1,589,674     172,498        163,682        -                    (1,253,494)     (1,253,494)     

Interest expense 734,492        -                    -                    -                    (734,492)        (734,492)        

     Total Governmental

       Activities 38,071,737   7,991,731     18,039,726   2,338,345     (9,701,935)     (9,701,935)     

   Business-type Activities:

Sewer 38,737          40,140          -                    -                    1,403$          1,403             

    Total Business-type Activities 38,737          40,140          -                    -                    1,403            1,403             

      Total Primary Government 38,110,474$ 8,031,871$   18,039,726$ 2,338,345$   (9,701,935)     1,403            (9,700,532)     

Component Units:

Hospital 71,183,086$ 66,102,314$ 3,268,724$   452,194$      (1,359,854)$  

Housing authority 789,094        443,270        456,796        -                110,972$      
    Total Component Units 71,972,180$ 66,545,584$ 3,725,520$   452,194$      (1,359,854)    110,972        

General Revenues:

Taxes:

Property tax, levied for general purposes 8,967,716      -                    8,967,716      1,286,797     -                    

Specific ownership taxes 975,454         -                    975,454         -                    -                    

Sales taxes 4,812,345      -                    4,812,345      -                    -                    

Lodging taxes 1,153,033      -                    1,153,033      -                    -                    

Other taxes 181,414         -                    181,414         -                    -                    

Investment earnings 539,057         1,146            540,203         223,334        8,816            

Grants and contributions not restricted to a specific purpose 1,729,072      -                    1,729,072      -                    -                    

Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds 2,631,314      -                    2,631,314      -                    -                    

    Total General Revenues 20,989,405    1,146            20,990,551    1,510,131     8,816            

Change in Net Position 11,287,470    2,549            11,290,019    150,277        119,788        

Net Position (as restated) - January 1 91,209,103    355,960        91,565,063    5,595,205     1,834,144     

Net Position - December 31 102,496,573$ 358,509$      102,855,082$ 5,745,482$   1,953,932$   

Moffat County, Colorado
Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

Component Units

Changes in Net Position

Net (Expense) Revenue and

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
C2



FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



Road and Human Lease Capital Non- Total
General Bridge Services Jail Purchase Projects major Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Fund Payment Fund Fund Funds Funds
Assets:
Cash and investments - Unrestricted 27,173,843$  12,049,252$  1,427,673$  588,406$     -$                  7,723,663$   4,593,115$  53,555,952$  
Cash and investments - Restricted -                     -                     -                   -                   1,245,784 -                    -                   1,245,784      
Taxes receivable 8,754,071      -                     467,308       -                   -                    -                    162,723       9,384,102      
Accounts receivable 877,301         32,583           -                   125,708       -                    -                    289,930       1,325,522      
Due from other governments -                     -                     10,929         -                   -                    4,573,875     59,902         4,644,706      
Prepaid items -                     -                     3,610           1,002           -                    -                    10,768         15,380           
Inventories -                     1,528,966      -                   -                   -                    -                    -                   1,528,966      
Due from other funds -                     10,528           -                   -                   -                    -                    10,742         21,270           

Total Assets 36,805,215    13,621,329    1,909,520    715,116       1,245,784     12,297,538   5,127,180    71,721,682    

Liabilities, Deferred Inflow of 
Resources and Fund Balances:
Liabilities:

Accounts/vouchers payable 340,812         137,025         125,151       28,756         -                    2,145,797     271,637       3,049,178      
Accrued salaries and benefits 331,078         241,246         97,241         104,890       -                    -                    79,939         854,394         
Due to other funds 21,270           -                     -                   -                   -                    -                    -                   21,270           
Unavailable revenue - other -                     -                     -                   -                   -                    -                    407              407                

Total Liabilities 693,160         378,271         222,392       133,646       -                    2,145,797     351,983       3,925,249      

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Unavailable property tax revenue 8,754,071      -                     467,308       -                   -                    -                    162,723       9,384,102      

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 8,754,071      -                     467,308       -                   -                    -                    162,723       9,384,102      

Fund Balances:
Non-spendable

Inventory -                     1,528,966      -                   -                   -                    -                    -                   1,528,966      
Prepaid items -                     -                     3,610           1,002           -                    -                    10,768         15,380           

Spendable:
Restricted 6,099,084      -                     1,216,210    -                   1,245,784     -                    2,365,399    10,926,477    
Committed 3,430,591      4,826,568      -                   495,078       -                    10,151,741   794,368       19,698,346    
Assigned -                     6,887,524      -                   85,390         -                    -                    1,441,939    8,414,853      
Unassigned 17,828,309    -                     -                   -                   -                    -                    -                   17,828,309    

      Total Fund Balances 27,357,984    13,243,058    1,219,820    581,470       1,245,784     10,151,741   4,612,474    58,412,331    

      Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows
of Resources and Fund Balances 36,805,215$  13,621,329$  1,909,520$  715,116$     1,245,784$   12,297,538$ 5,127,180$  71,721,682$  

December 31, 2022

Governmental Funds

Moffat County, Colorado

Balance Sheets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Governmental Funds Total Fund Balance 58,412,331$      

Add:
Capital assets, net of depreciation, are used in governmental activities are not 
considered current financial resources and, therefore, not reported in the 
governmental funds. 69,070,289        

Internal service funds are used by the County to charge the costs of the 
employee's health insurance and administrative services to the individual 
funds.  The assets and liabilities of the internal service fund are included with 
governmental activities. 2,945,633          

Less:
Bonded debt payable, is not due and payable in the current period and 
therefore are not reported in the funds.  This is the amount of bonded debt 
payable, net of unamortized premium on issuance. (24,309,671)       

Compensated absences, are not due and payable in the current period and 
therefore are not reported in the funds.  This is the amount of compensated 
absences payable. (1,034,672)         

Capital leases, are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are 
not reported in the funds.  This is the amount of capital leases payable. (294,468)            

Landfill closure and post-closure costs, are not due and payable in the current 
period and therefore are not reported in the funds.  This is the amount of landfill 
closure and post-closure payable. (2,009,175)         

Interest payable on debt is not recorded on the fund statements but rather 
recognized as an expenditure when due.  This is the accrued interest on 
bonded debt that has been incurred but not yet due. (283,694)            

     Governmental Activities Net Position 102,496,573$    

December 31, 2022

Moffat County, Colorado

Reconciliation of Governmental Fund Balances to the Statement of Net Position

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Road and Human Lease Capital Non- Total
General Bridge Services Jail Purchase Projects major Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Fund Payment Fund Fund Funds Funds
Revenues:

Taxes 13,256,245$ 1,415,539$   479,665$      455,574$      -$                  -$                  482,940$      16,089,963$ 
Intergovernmental revenue 6,711,354     5,140,931     6,596,186     456,240        -                    4,571,054     1,156,316     24,632,081   
Charges for services 1,607,124     226,065        798               139,816        -                    2,821            981,726        2,958,350     
Reimbursements 232,604        -                    -                    4,978            -                    -                    6,749            244,331        
Investment income 225,234        109,647        13,545          5,247            12,748          124,373        30,447          521,241        
Other revenue 337,760        5,455            50,876          -                    -                    53,613          24,801          472,505        

Total Revenues 22,370,321   6,897,637     7,141,070     1,061,855     12,748          4,751,861     2,682,979     44,918,471   

Expenditures:
General government 4,937,875     -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    4,937,875     
Public safety 2,962,466     -                    -                    2,352,714     -                    -                    86,996          5,402,176     
Public works 1,717,012     6,924,588     -                    -                    -                    -                    1,094,195     9,735,795     
Health and human services 260,168        -                    7,099,960     -                    -                    -                    606,974        7,967,102     
Community development 759,594        -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    750,155        1,509,749     
Debt service:

Principal -                    -                    -                    -                    180,397        -                    16,296          196,693        
Interest -                    -                    -                    -                    1,077,524     -                    2,303            1,079,827     

Capital outlay -                    968,488 -                    213,138        -                    18,961,926   13,295          20,156,847   
Total Expenditures 10,637,115   7,893,076     7,099,960     2,565,852     1,257,921     18,961,926   2,570,214     50,986,064   

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
  Over Expenditures 11,733,206   (995,439)       41,110          (1,503,997)    (1,245,173)    (14,210,065)  112,765        (6,067,593)    

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in 25,000          -                    -                    1,215,900     1,257,921     -                    566,499        3,065,320     
Transfers (out) (3,012,854)    -                    -                    (27,465)         -                    -                    -                    (3,040,319)    

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (2,987,854)    -                    -                    1,188,435     1,257,921     -                    566,499        25,001          

Net Change in Fund Balances 8,745,352     (995,439)       41,110          (315,562)       12,748          (14,210,065)  679,264        (6,042,592)    

Fund Balances  - January 1 18,612,632   14,238,497   1,178,710     897,032        1,233,036     24,361,806   3,933,210     64,454,923   

Fund Balances - December 31 27,357,984$ 13,243,058$ 1,219,820$   581,470$      1,245,784$   10,151,741$ 4,612,474$   58,412,331$ 

Moffat County, Colorado

Governmental Funds

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds (6,042,592)$       

Adjustments:

The repayment of debt is a use of current available resources but has no effect 
on Net Position because although the County has less current available 
resources, it also has less debt.  This is the amount of principal payments on 
bonded debt during the year. 196,692             

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the cost of health 
insurance and administrative services to individual funds.  This is the amount of 
internal service fund net income during the year. (311,710)            

Long-term liabilities, including compensated absences, are not due and payable 
in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds.  This is the 
change in the amount of compensated absences not currently payable. (62,607)              

Statement of Activities, the costs of those assets is allocated over their 
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.  This is the 
amount by which depreciation expense exceeded capital outlay, including gain 
or loss on disposal. 17,392,232        

Interest payable on debt is not recorded on the fund statements but rather 
recognized as an expenditure when due.  This is the change in accrued interest 
and amortization of premium or discount on bonded debt that has been incurred 
but not yet due. 332,517             

Decreases in long-term payables does not impact current financial resources to 
governmental funds.  This transaction does not however, have any effect on 
Net Position because the County is responsible for future payments of this 
payable.  This is the change in the estimated landfill closure and post-closure 
costs as a result of updating the closure cost study during the year. (217,062)            

   Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities 11,287,470$      

Moffat County, Colorado

Reconciliation of Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Business-type

Activities Governmental

Enterprise Fund Activities

Sewer Internal Service

Fund Funds

Assets:

Current assets:

Cash and investments 129,460$         3,200,749$      

Accounts receivable 13,274             563                  

Total current assets 142,734           3,201,312        

Non-current assets:

Capital assets 790,676           119,937           

Accumulated depreciation (574,812)          (27,859)            

Total non-current assets 215,864           92,078             

Total Assets 358,598           3,293,390        

Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 89                    347,757           

Total Liabilities 89                    347,757           

Net Position:

Net investment in capital assets 215,864           92,078             

Unrestricted 142,645           2,853,555        
Total Net Position 358,509$         2,945,633$      

Moffat County, Colorado

Proprietary Funds

Statement of Net Position

December 31, 2022

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Business-type

Activities Governmental

Enterprise Fund Activities

Sewer Internal Service

Fund Funds

Operating Revenues:

  Charges for services 40,140$           11,631$           

  Contributions -                       3,580,336        

Other -                       842,894           

    Total Operating Revenues 40,140             4,434,861        

Operating Expenses:

Operations and maintenance 17,784             304,038           

Claims and related insurance expenses -                       4,444,526        

Depreciation 20,953             3,328               

    Total Operating Expenses 38,737             4,751,892        

    Operating Income (Loss) 1,403               (317,031)          

Non-operating Revenue:

Investment income 1,146               30,321             

Total Non-operating Revenues 1,146               30,321             

    Income (Loss) Before Transfers 2,549               (286,710)          

Transfers (out) -                       (25,000)            

Change in Net Position 2,549               (311,710)          

Net Position - January 1 355,960           3,257,343        

Net Position - December 31 358,509$         2,945,633$      

Moffat County, Colorado

Proprietary Funds

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Business-type

Activities Governmental

Enterprise Fund Activities

Sewer Internal Service

Fund Funds

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

Cash received from customers 42,443$         3,591,758$    

Other cash receipts -                     842,894         

Cash paid for goods and services (17,781)         (4,770,250)    

    Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 24,662           (335,598)       

Cash Flows From Non-Capital Financing Activities:

Transfer from other fund -                     (25,000)         

Net Cash Provided by Non-Capital Financing Activities -                     (25,000)         

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:

Interest received 1,146             30,321           

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 1,146             30,321           

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 25,808           (330,277)       

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning 103,652         3,531,026      

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Ending 129,460         3,200,749      

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to

 Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:

  Operating income (loss) 1,403             (317,031)       

  Adjustments to reconcile operating income 

    (loss) to net cash provided (used) by

    operating activities:

Depreciation expense 20,953           3,328             

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 2,303             (210)              

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 

  and accrued liabilities 3                    (21,685)         

        Total Adjustments 23,259           (18,567)         

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 24,662$         (335,598)$     

Moffat County, Colorado

Proprietary Funds

Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Custodial

Funds

Assets:

  Cash and investments 2,697,934$      

     Total Assets 2,697,934        

Liabilities

Due to other governments 1,214,801        

     Total Liabilities 1,214,801$      

Net Position

Restricted for:

Individuals, organizations, and other governments 1,483,133        

Total Net Position 1,483,133$      

Moffat County, Colorado

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

Custodial Funds

December 31, 2022

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Custodial

Funds

Additions

Collections for other governments 32,341,528$    

Collections for funds held for others 2,776,701        

Public trustee activity 781,867           

Total Additions 35,900,096      

Deductions

Disbursements to other governments 32,341,528      

Disbursements to funds held for others 2,664,297        

Public trustee activity 779,586           

Total Deductions 35,785,411$    

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fiduciary Net Position 114,685           

Net Position - Beginning 1,368,448        

Net Position - Ending 1,483,133$      

Moffat County, Colorado

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position

Custodial Funds

December 31, 2022

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
C11
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D1 

I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 

Moffat County (the “County”) is located in northern Colorado.  An elected Board of 
Commissioners is responsible for setting policy, appointing administrative personnel and the 
adoption of an annual budget in accordance with state statutes.  The County’s operations include 
health and human services, police protection, road maintenance, community development, landfill 
and general government operations.  The County is also responsible for the operation of the 
County’s jail and the Maybell Waste Water Treatment Facility.  

 
The County’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles (“GAAP”).  The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) is 
responsible for establishing GAAP for state and local governments through its pronouncements 
(Statements and Interpretations).   

 
A. Reporting Entity 

 
The reporting entity consists of (a) the primary government; i.e., the County, and (b) 
organizations for which the County is financially accountable.  The County is considered 
financially accountable for legally separate organizations if it is able to appoint a voting 
majority of an organization's governing body and is either able to impose its will on that 
organization or there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial 
benefits to, or to impose specific financial burdens on, the County.  Consideration is also 
given to other organizations which are fiscally dependent; i.e., unable to adopt a budget, 
levy taxes, or issue debt without approval by the County.  Organizations for which the 
nature and significance of their relationship with the County are such that exclusion would 
cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete are also 
included in the reporting entity. 

 
The accompanying financial statements present the primary government and its 
component units, entities for which the government is considered to be financially 
accountable.  Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are, in 
substance, part of the County’s operations.   
 
The following entities are discretely presented as component units within the reporting 
entity: 

 
The Memorial Hospital 
 
The Memorial Hospital (the “Hospital”) operations are included in these financial 
statements as a component unit due to the positive responses to the majority of the 
reporting entity criteria.  The Hospital was formed to provide services within the County’s 
boundaries.  The Board of Directors is appointed by the County and the County approves 
the mill levy and approves all debt arrangements.  Complete financial statements for the 
Hospital may be obtained directly from their administrative offices: 750 Hospital Loop, 
Craig, Colorado, 81625. 

 
Housing Authority of Moffat County, Colorado 
 
The Housing Authority of Moffat County (the “Housing Authority”) operations are included 
in these financial statements as a component unit due to the positive responses to the 
majority of the reporting entity criteria.  The Authority was formed to provide housing 
within the County boundaries.  The Board of Directors is appointed by the County.  
Complete financial statements for the Housing Authority may be obtained directly from 
their administrative offices: 595 Ledford Street, Craig, Colorado, 81625. 
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I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 

A. Reporting Entity (continued) 
 

The following entities are blended in the County’s statements as governmental funds: 
 

Moffat County Finance Corporation 
 
The Moffat County Finance Corporation (the “Finance Corporation”) operations are 
included in these financial statements as a component unit due to the positive responses 
to the reporting entity criteria.  The Finance Corporation was formed to issue certificates 
of participation to finance the construction of the county public safety center.  The 
financial statements of the Finance Corporation are blended in the County’s statements 
as the Lease Purchase Payment Fund.  
 
Shadow Mountain Village Local Improvement District 
 
The Shadow Mountain Village Local Improvement District (the “Shadow Mountain LID”) 
operations are included in these financial statements as a component unit due to the 
positive responses to the reporting entity criteria.  The Shadow Mountain LID was formed 
to initiate, acquire, construct, maintain, repair and operate certain water resource projects 
and to finance the cost thereof.  The financial statements of the Shadow Mountain LID 
are blended in the County’s statements as the Shadow Mountain LID fund. 
 
Other 
 
The County has entered into various governmental agreements that do not meet the 
criteria for inclusion in these financial statements as component units or as joint ventures.  
The County receives funding from local, state, and federal government sources and must 
comply with all requirements of these funding sources.  However, the County is not 
included in any other governmental reporting entity. 
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I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 

B. Component Unit Condensed Financial Statements 
 

 The Memorial  Housing  Total 
Assets:
  Current assets and other 31,387,199$    1,162,583$      32,549,782$      
  Plant, property, and equipment, net 46,722,598      1,635,141       48,357,739        

Right to use leased assets, net 8,474,818       -                     8,474,818          
    Total Assets 86,584,615      2,797,724       89,382,339        

Deferred Outflow of Resources:
Deferred charges 491,381          -                     491,381            
  Total Deferred Outflow of Resources 491,381          -                     491,381            
  Total Assets and Deferred Outflow of Resources 87,075,996      2,797,724       89,873,720        

Liabilities and Fund Equity:
  Current liabilities 10,678,472      141,504          10,819,976        
  Long-term debt 69,286,010      702,288          69,988,298        
    Total Liabilities 79,964,482      843,792          80,808,274        

Deferred Inflow of Resources:
Unavailable property tax revenue 1,366,032       -                     1,366,032          
Unavailable revenue - Other 164,751          10                  164,761            
  Total Deferred Inflow of Resources 1,530,783       10                  1,530,793          

Fund Equity:
  Net position - Restricted (10,195,356)     924,303          (9,271,053)         
  Net position - Unrestricted 15,940,838      1,029,629       16,970,467        
    Total Fund Equity 5,745,482       1,953,932       7,699,414          
    Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflow of 
    Resources and Fund Equity 87,240,747$    2,797,734$      90,038,481$      

Operating Revenues 69,823,232$    900,066$        70,723,298$      
Expenses:
  Operating and other expenses (67,176,078)     (660,463)         (67,836,541)       
  Depreciation and amortization (4,007,008)      (128,631)         (4,135,639)         
Operating Income (Loss) (1,359,854)      110,972          (1,248,882)         

Net Non-operating Revenues,
  Expenses and Transfers 1,510,131       8,816              1,518,947          

Net Income 150,277          119,788          270,065            

Net Position - January 1 5,595,205       1,834,144       7,429,349          

Net Position - December 31 5,745,482$      1,953,932$      7,699,414$        
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I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 

C. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 
 

The County’s basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the 
County as a whole) and fund financial statements (reporting the County’s major funds).  
Government-wide financial statements report on information of all of the non-fiduciary 
activities of the County and its component units.  Both the government-wide and fund 
financial statements categorize primary activities as either governmental or business-
type.  The County’s public safety, public works, health and human services, community 
development, and administration are classified as governmental activities.  The Maybell 
Waste Water Treatment Facility is reported as a business-type activity. 

 
The government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net cost of each 
of the County’s functions and business-type activities.  The governmental functions are 
also supported by general government revenues (sales taxes, property and specific 
ownership taxes, investment earnings, etc.).  The Statement of Activities reduces gross 
expenses (including depreciation) by related program revenues, operating and capital 
grants.  Program revenues must be directly associated with the governmental function or 
business-type activity.  Operating grants include operating-specific and discretionary 
(either operating or capital) grants while the capital grants column reflects capital-specific 
grants.   

 
The government-wide focus is on the sustainability of the County as an entity and the 
change in the County’s net position resulting from the current year’s activities. 

 
D. Fund Financial Statements 

 
The financial transactions of the County are reported in individual funds in the fund 
financial statements.  Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-
balancing accounts that comprises its assets, liabilities, reserves, fund equity, revenues 
and expenditures/expenses.   

 
The fund focus is on current available resources and budget compliance. 

 
The County reports the following major governmental fund types and funds: 

 
General Fund – The General Fund is the County’s primary operating fund.  It accounts 
for all financial resources of the County, except those required to be accounted for in 
another fund. 
 
Special Revenue Funds - Special revenue funds are used to account for and report the 
proceeds of specific revenue sources that are restricted or committed to expenditure for 
specified purposes other than debt service or capital projects.  The term “proceeds of 
specific revenue sources” establishes that one or more specific restricted or committed 
revenues should be the foundation for a special revenue fund.  The County reports the 
following major special revenue funds: 
 

The Road and Bridge Fund accounts for the County’s share of state revenues 
that are legally restricted for the maintenance of highways and roads within the 
County’s boundaries and to account for property taxes and other revenues 
restricted for highway and road purposes. 

 
The Human Services Fund administers the County’s state and federal revenues 
that are restricted for the providing of health and human services to the residents 
of the County.
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I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 

D. Fund Financial Statements (continued) 
 

The Jail Fund accounts for transactions relating to the operation of the County 
Jail building.  Expenditures are funded by dedicated sales tax revenue.   

 
The Lease Purchase Payment Fund accounts for revenue collected for payment of the 
County’s certificates of participation. 
 
The Capital Projects Fund accounts for capital improvement projects of the County 
used from bond proceeds and other contributions. 

  
Proprietary Funds - Proprietary fund reporting focuses on the determination of operating 
income, changes in net position, financial position and cash flows.   

 
The Sewer Fund accounts for the operations of the Maybell Waste Water 
Treatment Facility, which operates a sewage treatment plant in an 
unincorporated area. 

 
Internal service funds account for the health insurance plan provided to County 
employees and administrative services and maintenance provided to the various 
County departments. 

 
Fiduciary Funds - These funds include custodial funds which account for monies held 
on behalf of other governments and agencies that use the County as a depository or for 
property taxes collected on behalf of the other governments or agencies. Custodial funds 
are excluded from reporting in the government-wide financial statements. No budgets are 
adopted for the County’s custodial funds. 

 
E. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 

 
Measurement focus refers to whether financial statements measure changes in current 
resources only (current financial focus) or changes in both current and long-term 
resources (long-term economic focus).  Basis of accounting refers to the point at which 
revenues, expenditures, or expenses are recognized in the accounts and reported in the 
financial statements.  Financial statement presentation refers to classification of revenues 
by source and expenses by function. 

 
1. Long-term Economic Focus and Accrual Basis 

 
Both the governmental and business-type activities in the government-wide 
financial statements and the proprietary and fiduciary financial statements use 
the long-term economic focus and are presented on the accrual basis of 
accounting.  Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are 
recognized when incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows.  
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I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 

E. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement  
Presentation (continued) 

 
2. Current Financial Focus and Modified Accrual Basis 

 
The governmental fund financial statements use the current financial focus and 
are presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Under the modified 
accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when susceptible to accrual; 
i.e., both measurable and available.  “Available” means collectible within the 
current period or soon enough thereafter (60 days) to be used to pay liabilities of 
the current period.  Expenditures are generally recognized when the related 
liability is incurred.  The exception to this general rule is that principal and interest 
on general long-term debt and compensated absences are recorded only when 
payment is due. 
 

3. Financial Statement Presentation  
 

As a general rule, the effect of Interfund activity has been eliminated from the 
government-wide financial statements.  Exceptions to this general rule are 
payments where the amounts are reasonable equivalent to the value of the 
Interfund services provided and other charges between the County's sanitation 
function and various other functions of the County. Elimination of these charges 
would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the sanitation 
function. 
 
Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers and 
applicants for goods, services or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and 
contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions, including special 
assessments.  Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues 
rather than as program revenues.  Likewise, general revenues include all taxes. 

 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-
operating items.  Operating revenues and expenses generally result from 
providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a 
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.  The principal operating revenues 
of the County’s enterprise fund are charges to customers for services.  Operating 
expenses for the enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, 
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets.  All revenues and 
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and 
expenses. 

 
F. Financial Statement Accounts 

 
1. Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments 

 
The County’s Treasurer is responsible for central cash management for all funds, 
as well as other entities falling under their jurisdiction. The County pools deposits 
and investments of all funds.  Each fund's share of the pool is readily identified by 
the County's internal records.  
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I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 

F. Financial Statement Accounts (continued) 
 

1. Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments (continued) 
 
Except for departmental petty cash, cash held for third parties, and cash held by 
separate legal entities which are included in the reporting entity, all cash is 
deposited with the County Treasurer.  The Treasurer invests this cash to achieve 
the best possible return on the investments.  Interest revenue is allocated to 
funds as designated by the Board of Commissioners. 
 
Cash and cash equivalents include amounts in demand deposits as well as 
short-term investments with a maturity date within 3 months of the date acquired 
by the County. 
 
Investments are stated at fair value, net asset value, or amortized cost.  The 
change in fair value of investments is recognized as an increase or decrease to 
investment assets and investment income.   
 
The County investment policy permits investments in the following type of 
obligations which corresponds with State statutes: 

 
 U.S. Treasury and Agency Obligations (maximum maturity of 24 months) 
 Federal Instrumentality Securities (maximum maturity of 60 months) 
 FDIC-insured Certificates of Deposit (maximum maturity of 60 months) 
 Repurchase Agreements 
 General Obligations and Revenue Obligations 
 Local Government Investment Pools 
 Money Market Mutual Funds 

 
2. Receivables 

 
Receivables are reported net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts. 

 
3. Property Taxes 

 
Property taxes are assessed in one year as a lien on the property, but not 
collected by the governmental unit until the subsequent year.  In accordance with 
GAAP, the assessed but uncollected property taxes have been recorded as a 
receivable and as unavailable revenue on the fund financial statements. 

 
4. Internal Transactions 

 
Interfund services provided and used are accounted for as revenues, 
expenditures, or expenses.  Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a 
fund for expenditures or expenses initially made from it that are properly 
applicable to another fund, are recorded as expenditures or expenses in the 
reimbursing fund and as reductions of expenditures or expenses in the fund that 
is reimbursed. 
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I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 

F. Financial Statement Accounts (continued) 
 

5. Inventories 
 

Inventory consists of fuel, gravel, parts and supplies for the County’s use and is 
carried at cost using the average cost method. The costs of governmental fund 
type inventories are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when 
purchased. 

 
6. Prepaid Expenses  

 
Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond 
December 31, 2022 are recorded as prepaid expenses.  The cost of 
governmental type prepaid expenses are recorded as expenditures when 
consumed rather than when purchased.  
 

7. Capital Assets 
 

Capital assets, which include land, buildings, improvements, equipment, vehicles 
and infrastructure assets, are reported in the applicable governmental or 
business-type activity columns in the government-wide financial statements.  
Capital assets are defined by the County as assets with an initial cost of $5,000 
or more and an estimated useful life in excess of one year.  Such assets are 
recorded at cost where historical records are available and at an estimated 
historical cost where no historical record exists.  Donated capital assets are 
recorded at acquisition value at the date of donation. 

 
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the 
asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized.  Improvements are 
capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related fixed 
assets, as applicable.  Capital outlay for projects is capitalized as projects are 
constructed.  Interest incurred during the construction phase is expensed as 
incurred. 

 
Capital assets (excluding land) are depreciated using the straight-line method, 
over the following estimated lives: 
 

  

Buildings 15 - 50 years
Building improvements 5 - 50 years
Infrastructure 25 - 75 years
Vehicles 5 - 15 years
Equipment 5 - 20 years
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I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 

F. Financial Statement Accounts (continued) 
 

8. Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources 
 

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a 
separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial 
statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of 
net assets that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an 
outflow of resources (expense/ expenditure) until then. The government reports 
deferred and amortized charges over the shorter of the life of the refunded or 
refunding debt, which are deferred and recognized as outflows of resources in 
the period that the amounts become available. 

 
In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a 
separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial 
statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of 
net assetes that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an 
inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The government has three types of 
items that qualify for reporting in this category. Accordingly, the items, 
unavailable property tax revenue, unavailable revenue – other and deferred and 
amortized charges over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt, 
are deferred and recognized as inflows of resources in the period that the 
amounts become available. 

 
9. Compensated Absences 

 
Vested or accumulated vacation leave that is expected to be liquidated with 
expendable available financial resources is reported as an expenditure and a 
fund liability of the governmental fund that will pay it.  Amounts of vested or 
accumulated vacation leave that are not expected to be liquidated with 
expendable available financial resources are reported in the governmental 
activities column in the government-wide financial statements.  Vested or 
accumulated vacation leave of the proprietary fund type is recorded as an 
expense and liability of that fund as the benefits accrue to employees.  In 
accordance with provisions of GASB No.16 Accounting for Compensated 
Absences, no liability is recorded for non-vesting accumulating rights to receive 
sick pay benefits. 
 

10. Premium and Discount on Bonded Debt 
 

The premium and discount on bonded debt is deferred and amortized over the 
life of the debt using the amount of principal outstanding methodology.  The 
unamortized premium at December 31, 2022 was $2,616,644. 

 
11. Interfund Transactions 
 

Quasi-external transactions are accounted for as revenue, expenditures or 
expenses.  Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for 
expenditures or expenses initially made from it that are properly applicable to 
another fund, are recorded as expenditures or expenses in the reimbursing fund 
as a reduction of expenditures or expenses in the fund that is reimbursed.  All 
other interfund transactions, except for quasi-external transactions and 
reimbursements, are reported as transfers. 
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I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 

G. Significant Accounting Policies 
 

1. Use of Estimates 
 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires the 
County’s management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amount of 
revenues and expenditures or expenses during the reporting period.  Actual 
results could differ from those estimates. 

 
2. Credit Risk 

 
Receivables in the County's funds are primarily due from other governments.  
Management believes that the credit risk related to these receivables is minimal. 

 
3. Restricted and Unrestricted Resources 

 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the 
County’s policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as 
they are needed. 
 

4. Net Position and Categories and Classification of Fund Balance 
 

Governmental accounting standards establishes fund balance classifications that 
comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which a government is 
bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resources reported in 
governmental funds.   Fund balance classifications, include Non-spendable, 
Restricted, Committed, Assigned, and Unassigned. These classifications reflect 
not only the nature of funds, but also provide clarity to the level of restriction 
placed upon fund balance.   Fund Balance can have different levels of restraint, 
such as external versus internal compliance requirements. Unassigned fund 
balance is a residual classification within the general fund. The general fund 
should be the only fund that reports a positive unassigned balance. In all other 
funds, unassigned is limited to negative residual fund balance.   For further 
details of the various fund balance classifications refer to Note IV.J. 
 
At December 31, 2022, the County reported $1,245,784 of net position restricted 
for debt service payments, $1,005,000 of net position restricted for emergencies, 
and $8,675,693 of net position restricted for other purposes. 
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II. Reconciliation of Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 
 

A. Explanation of Certain Differences between the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet 
and the Government-wide Statement of Net Position 

 
The governmental fund Balance Sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance of 
the total governmental funds and net position of governmental activities as reported in the 
government-wide Statement of Net Position.  One element of that reconciliation explains 
that “Capital assets, net of depreciation, are used in governmental activities are not 
considered current financial resources, and therefore, are not reported in the 
governmental funds”.  This $69,070,289 difference is related to property, plant and 
equipment of $122,835,893 less accumulated depreciation of $53,765,604. More 
information can be found on page C4. 

 
B. Explanation of Certain Differences between the Governmental Fund Statement of 

Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances and the Government-wide 
Statement of Activities 

 
The governmental fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund 
Balances includes reconciliation between net change in fund balances of governmental 
funds and changes in net position of governmental activities as reported in the 
government-wide Statement of Activities.  One element of that reconciliation explains 
“Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.  However, in the Statement 
of Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as 
depreciation expense”.  The details of this $17,392,232 difference represents capital 
outlay of $20,215,698, less depreciation expense of $2,823,466. More information can be 
found on page C6.  

 
III. Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability 
 

A. Budgetary Information 
 

As required by Colorado Statutes, all funds have legally adoptable budgets and 
appropriations.  The total expenditures for each fund may not exceed the amount 
appropriated.  Appropriations for a fund may be increased if unanticipated revenues 
offset them.  All appropriations lapse at year-end. 

 
Budgets are prepared on the basis of GAAP for all funds except for the Sewer Fund, 
Health Insurance Trust Fund and the Central Duplicating/IT Fund.   

 
The budgets for these funds have been adopted on a non-GAAP basis and are 
reconciled to GAAP on pages F13, F17 and F18. 
  
As required by Colorado Statutes, the County followed the required timetable noted 
below in preparing, approving, and enacting its budget for 2022. 

 
1. For the 2022 budget year, prior to August 25, 2021, the County Assessor sent to 

the County a certified assessed valuation of all taxable property within the 
County’s boundaries.  The County Assessor may change the assessed valuation 
on or before December 10, 2021 only once by a single notification. 

2. On or before October 15, 2021, the County Administrator submitted to the 
County Commissioners a recommended budget which detailed the necessary 
property taxes needed along with other available revenues to meet the County’s 
operating requirements.
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III. Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability (continued) 
 

A. Budgetary Information (continued) 
 

3. Prior to December 15, 2021, the County computed and certified to the County 
Commissioners a rate of levy that derived the necessary property taxes as 
computed in the proposed budget. 

4. After a required publication of “Notice of Proposed Budget” and a public hearing, 
the County adopted the proposed budget and an appropriating resolution, which 
legally appropriated expenditures for the upcoming year. 

5. After adoption of the budget resolution, the County may make the following 
changes:  a) it may transfer appropriated money between funds; b) approve 
supplemental appropriations to the extent of revenues in excess of estimated 
revenues in the budget; c) approve emergency appropriations; and d) reduce 
appropriations for which originally estimated revenues are insufficient. 

 
Taxes levied in one year are collected in the succeeding year.  Thus, taxes certified in 
2021 were collected in 2022 and taxes certified in 2022 will be collected in 2023.  Taxes 
are due on January 1st in the year of collection; however, they may be paid in either one 
installment (no later than April 30th) or two equal installments (not later than February 
28th and June 15th) without interest or penalty.  Taxes that are not paid within the 
prescribed time bear interest at the rate of one percent (1%) per month until paid.  Unpaid 
amounts and the accrued interest thereon become delinquent on June 16th. 
 

During the year, supplemental appropriations were necessary.  The budgetary 
comparison statements reflect the original budget and the final budget after legally 
authorized revisions were made.  
 
The Capital Projects Fund had expenditures in excess of budget appropriations, which 
may be a violation of state statute. 
 

B. TABOR Amendment 
 

In November 1992, Colorado voters amended Article X of the Colorado Constitution by 
adding Section 20, commonly known as the Taxpayer's Bill of Rights (“TABOR”).  TABOR 
contains revenue, spending, tax and debt limitations that apply to the State of Colorado 
and local governments.  TABOR requires, with certain exceptions, advance voter 
approval for any new tax, tax rate increase, mill levy above that for the prior year, 
extension of any expiring tax, or tax policy change directly causing a net tax revenue gain 
to any local government. 

 
Except for refinancing bonded debt at a lower interest rate or adding new employees to 
existing pension plans, TABOR requires advance voter approval for the creation of any 
multiple-fiscal year debt or other obligation unless adequate present cash reserves are 
pledged irrevocably and held for payments in all future fiscal years. 

 
TABOR also requires local governments to establish emergency reserves to be used for 
declared emergencies only.  Emergencies, as defined by TABOR, exclude economic 
conditions, revenue shortfalls, or salary or fringe benefit increases.  These reserves are 
required to be 3% or more of fiscal year spending for fiscal years ending after December 
31, 1995.  Fiscal year spending excludes bonded debt service and enterprise spending.  
The County has restricted a portion of the December 31, 2022 year-end fund balance in 
the General Fund for this purpose in the amount of $1,005,000, which is the approximate 
required reserve.
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III. Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability (continued) 
 

B. TABOR Amendment (continued) 
 

On November 5, 1996, the County’s electorate approved the following ballot question: 
 

”Shall Moffat County, Colorado be authorized and permitted to collect, retain and expend 
all revenues and other funds collected during 1995 and each subsequent year from any 
source; notwithstanding the limitations of Article X, Section 20 of the Colorado 
Constitution, effective January 1, 1995, provided, however, that no sales tax, use tax or 
property tax mill levy shall increase at any time nor shall any new tax be imposed without 
the prior approval of the voters of Moffat County?” 

 
In November 2016, the County’s electorate approved the following ballot question: 

 
“Without increasing the current property tax rate, shall Moffat County, Colorado, be 
permitted to collect, retain and spend the full amount of property tax revenues it receives 
in 2017 and in subsequent years notwithstanding and limitations on revenue contained in 
section 29-1-301, Colorado Revised Statutes?” 

 
The County's management believes it is in compliance with the financial provisions of 
TABOR.  However, TABOR is complex and subject to interpretation.  Many of its 
provisions, including the interpretation of how to calculate fiscal year spending limits, will 
require judicial interpretation. 

 
IV. Detailed Notes on All Funds 
 

A. Deposits and Investments 
 

The County's deposits are entirely covered by federal depository insurance ("FDIC") or by 
collateral held under Colorado's Public Deposit Protection Act ("PDPA").  Amounts on 
deposit in excess of federal insurance levels must be collateralized.  The eligible 
collateral is determined by the PDPA.  The PDPA allows the institution to create a single 
collateral pool for all public funds.  The collateral pool is to be maintained by another 
institution or held in trust for all the uninsured public as a group.  The market value of the 
collateral must equal or exceed 102% of the uninsured deposits.  At December 31, 2022, 
the carrying value of the County's deposits was $60,829,879. The bank balances of these 
accounts were $61,199,589.  

 
Fair Value of Investments 
 
The County measures and records its investments using fair value measurement 
guidelines established by generally accepted accounting principles.  These guidelines 
recognize a three-tiered fair value hierarchy, as follows: 
 

 Level 1:  Quoted prices for identical investments in active markets; 
 Level 2:  Observable inputs other than quoted market prices; and, 
 Level 3:  Unobservable inputs. 
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IV. Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued) 
 
A. Deposits and Investments (continued 

 
At December 31, 2022, the County had the following recurring fair value measurements: 

Investments Measured at Fair Value Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
U.S. Treasuries 7,279,323$    -                   7,279,323      -                   
Repurchase Agreements 40,379,433    -                   40,379,433    -                   
Certificates of Deposit 2,448,000      -                   2,448,000      -                   

50,106,756$  -                   50,106,756    -                   

Investments Measured at Net Asset Value Total
Colotrust 6,310,288$    

Investments Measured at Amortized Cost Total
C-Safe 2,001,989$    

Fair Value Measurements Using

Debt and equity securities classified in Level 1 are valued using prices quoted in active 
markets for those securities.  Debt and equity securities classified in Level 2 are valued 
using the following: 
 

 U.S. Treasuries and U.S. Agencies: quoted prices for identical securities in 
markets that are not active. 

 Repurchase Agreements and Negotiable Certificates of Deposit: matrix pricing 
based on the securities’ relationship to benchmark quoted prices; 

 
The Investment Pool represents investments in COLOTRUST and C-SAFE.  The fair 
value of the pool is determined by the pool’s share price.  The County has no regulatory 
oversight for the pool.  At December 31, 2022, the County’s investments in COLOTRUST 
were 11% of the County’s investment portfolio.  Investments in C-SAFE were 3% of the 
investment portfolio. 
 
Interest Rate Risk. As a means of limiting its exposure to interest rate risk, the County 
diversifies its investments by security type and institution, and limits holdings in any one 
type of investment with any one issuer and type of issuer.  The County coordinates its 
investment maturities to closely match cash flow needs and restricts the maximum 
investment term to less than five years (less in some cases) from the purchase date.  As 
a result of the limited length of maturities the County has limited its interest rate risk.   
 
Credit Risk. County investment policy limits investments to those authorized by State 
statutes as listed in Note I.F.1. The County’s general investment policy is to apply the 
prudent-person rule: investments are made as a prudent person would be expected to 
act, with discretion and intelligence, to seek reasonable income, preserve capital, and, in 
general, avoid speculative investments. 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk. The County diversifies its investments by security type and 
institution.  Financial institutions holding County funds must provide the County a copy of 
the certificate from the Banking Authority that states that the institution is an eligible 
public depository.  
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IV. Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued) 
 
A. Deposits and Investments (continued) 

 
The County has a standard "Master Repurchase Agreement" that requires that the 
securities underlying the repurchase agreement have market values equal to or 
exceeding the aggregate "Buyers Margin Amount".  Percentages for calculating the 
"Buyers Margin Amount" are 100% for cash and 103% for FNMA mortgage backed 
securities. 
 
At December 31, 2022, the County had $0 in unrealized gains and losses, which reflects 
the changes in fair market value of the investments. The County held deposits and 
investments with the following maturities: 

Rating  Carrying  Less Than  One to Five 

Deposits:
Petty Cash Not Rated 20,704$          20,704$           $                  - 
Checking Accounts Not Rated 2,241,778       2,241,778                          -   
Savings Accounts Not Rated 95,757            95,757                               -   
Money Market Not Rated 52,607            52,607                               -   

Investments:
Investment Pools AAAm 8,312,277       8,312,277                          -   
Repurchase Agreement Not Rated 40,379,433      40,379,433                         -   
Certificates of Deposit Not Rated 2,448,000       2,448,000                          -   
U.S. Treasuries AA+ 7,279,323              7,279,323 -                     

60,829,879$    60,829,879$    -$                   

Type:
Maturities

The Moffat County Housing Authority, a discretely presented component unit, held 
deposits and investments with the following maturities:  

 

Rating  Carrying  Less Than  One to Five 

 Deposits: 
Checking Accounts Not Rated 921,480$        921,480$         $                  - 
Savings Accounts Not Rated 118,619          118,619                             -   
Money Market Not Rated 96,450            96,450                               -   

1,136,549$      1,136,549$      -$                   

Type:
Maturities
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IV. Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued) 
 
A. Deposits and Investments (continued) 

 
The bank balance value of deposits for the Hospital, a discretely presented component 
unit, was $15,945,507. At December 31, 2022 all of the Hospital’s bank balances were 
either insured by FDIC or collateralized by securities held by the pledging financial 
institution’s trust department in the Hospital’s name.  

 
At December 31, 2022, the Hospital, held the following cash and investments: 

 
Cash and cash equivalents 15,945,507$    

    Total 15,945,507$    

 
B. Receivables 

 
Receivables as of year-end for the County’s governmental funds, including applicable 
allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows: 

Road and Human  Capital  Non-major Total
General Bridge Services Jail Projects Funds & Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund ISF Funds Funds
Receivables:

Accounts 877,301$      32,583$        -$                 125,708$      -$                 290,493$      1,326,085$   
Taxes 8,754,071     -                  467,308        -                  -                  162,723        9,384,102     
Intergovernmental -                  -                  10,929          -                  4,573,875     59,902          4,644,706     
  Gross receivables 9,631,372     32,583          478,237        125,708        4,573,875     513,118        15,354,893   
Less: allowance for
  uncollectible -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

Net receivables 9,631,372$   32,583$        478,237$      125,708$      4,573,875$   513,118$      15,354,893$  

 
Governmental funds report unearned revenue in connection with receivables for 
revenues that are not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current 
period.  The $9,384,102 of unearned revenue is property taxes levied in 2022 but not 
available until 2023.  Additionally, grants and fees totaling $407 were collected in 2022, 
but will not be available for use until 2023. 
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IV. Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued) 
 
C. Capital Assets 

 
Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2022 was as follows: 
 

Beginning Transfers and Ending

Balance Additions Deletions Balance

Governmental activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land 1,572,564$        -$                         -$                         1,572,564$        

Construction in progress 1,834,162          18,285,077        -                           20,119,239        

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 3,406,726          18,285,077        -                           21,691,803        

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Infrastructure 44,992,181 -                           -                           44,992,181        

Improvements 6,055,006 470,817              (14,341)               6,511,482

Buildings 28,651,587 73,708                (29,854)               28,695,441

Equipment 20,126,972 1,386,095          (448,144)            21,064,923        

Total capital assets being depreciated 99,825,746        1,930,620          (492,339)            101,264,027      

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Infrastructure (16,802,896) (850,548)            -                           (17,653,444)       

Improvements (4,636,888) (116,570)            14,341                (4,739,117)         

Buildings (14,144,525) (705,047)            29,854                (14,819,718)

Equipment (15,874,698) (1,154,629)         448,144              (16,581,183)       

Total accumulated depreciation (51,459,007)       (2,826,794)         492,339              (53,793,462)       

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 48,366,739        (896,174)            -                           47,470,565        
Governmental Activities - Capital

Assets, Net 51,773,465$      17,388,903$      -$                         69,162,368$      

Beginning Transfers and Ending

Balance Increases Deletions Balance

Business-type activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land 37,000$              -$                         -$                         37,000$              

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 37,000                -                           -                           37,000                

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Improvements 577,193              -                           -                           577,193              

Buildings 37,278                -                           -                           37,278                

Equipment 139,205              -                           -                           139,205              

Total capital assets being depreciated 753,676              -                           -                           753,676              

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Improvements (433,634)            (14,430)               -                           (448,064)            

Buildings (35,155)               (932)                    -                           (36,087)               

Equipment (85,070)               (5,591)                 -                           (90,661)               

Total accumulated depreciation (553,859)            (20,953)               -                           (574,812)            

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 199,817              (20,953)               -                           178,864              
Business-type Activities - Capital 

Assets, Net 236,817$           (20,953)$            -$                         215,864$           
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IV. Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued) 
 
C. Capital Assets (continued) 
 

The County had the following capital outlay and depreciation expense for the following 
functions: 

Capital
 Outlay Depreciation
Governmental Activities:

General government 17,952,669$    260,347$        
Public safety 226,477          191,263          
Public works 2,036,551       2,305,293       
Health and human services -                     8,895              
Community development -                     60,996            
 Total Governmental Activities 20,215,697$    2,826,794$      

Business-type Activities:
Sanitation -$                   20,953$          
 Total Business-type Activities -$                   20,953$          

 
D. Capital Assets – Component Units 
 

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2022 was as follows: 
Beginning Increases Decreases Ending
Balance and transfers and transfers Balance

Moffat County Housing Authority:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land 258,532$        -$                   -$                   258,532
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 258,532          -                     -                     258,532          
Capital assets, being depreciated:

Land improvements 246,072          -                     -                     246,072          
Building and fixed equipment 3,894,277       -                     -                     3,894,277       
Major movable equipment and furniture 576,414          -                     -                     576,414          

Total capital assets being depreciated 4,716,763       -                     -                     4,716,763       

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements (196,328)         (7,226)             -                     (203,554)         
Building and fixed equipment (2,516,465)      (99,962)           -                     (2,616,427)      
Major movable equipment and furniture (498,730)         (21,443)           -                     (520,173)         

Total accumulated depreciation (3,211,523)      (128,631)         -                     (3,340,154)      

Capital assets being depreciated, net 1,505,240       (128,631)         -                     1,376,609       

Capital assets, net 1,763,772$      (128,631)$       -$                   1,635,141$      
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IV. Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued) 
 

D. Capital Assets – Component Units (continued) 
 

Beginning Transfers Ending
Balance Additions and deletions Balance

The Memorial Hospital:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land 1,248,370$      -$                   -$                   1,248,370       
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 1,248,370       -                     -                     1,248,370       
Capital assets, being depreciated:

Land improvements 6,146,370       -                     (130,169)         6,016,201       
Building and fixed equipment 66,611,378      184,100          (3,904,481)      62,890,997      
Major movable equipment 19,648,307      1,224,670       (4,533,086)      16,339,891      

Total capital assets being depreciated 92,406,055      1,408,770       (8,567,736)      85,247,089      

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements (4,847,301)      (239,469)         130,169          (4,956,601)      
Building and fixed equipment (22,787,691)     (2,556,343)      2,788,760       (22,555,274)     
Major movable equipment (12,696,534)     (1,590,907)      2,026,455       (12,260,986)     

Total accumulated depreciation (40,331,526)     (4,386,719)      4,945,384       (39,772,861)     

Capital assets, net 53,322,899      (2,977,949)      (3,622,352)      46,722,598      

Beginning Transfers Ending
Balance Additions and deletions Balance

The Memorial Hospital:
Right-to-use leased assets being amortized

Buildings 6,046,489       -                     (31,068)           6,015,421       
Equipment 5,391,822       963,385          (74,238)           6,280,969       

Total capital assets being depreciated 11,438,311      963,385          (105,306)         12,296,390      

Less accumulated amortization for:
Buildings (1,703,868)      (353,497)         325,366          (1,731,999)      
Equipment (1,716,589)      (545,155)         172,171          (2,089,573)      

Total accumulated depreciation (3,420,457)      (898,652)         497,537          (3,821,572)      
Right-to-use leased assets, net 8,017,854$      64,733$          392,231$        8,474,818$      

Capital assets and right-to-use
leased assets, net 61,340,753$    (2,913,216)$     (3,230,121)$     55,197,416$    
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IV. Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued) 
 

E. Interfund Transfers 
 

Transfers for 2022 were as follows: 
 

Transfer In Transfer out Amount

Airport General 51,509$          
Lease Purchase General 1,230,456       
Jail General 1,215,900       
Library General 360,857          
General Fund Health & Welfare 25,000            
Lease Purchase Jail 27,465            
Senior Citizens General 154,133          

  Total 3,065,320$      

 
All transfers were made to supplement funds available for operations or to make debt 
service payments. 

 
F. Interfund Receivables and Payables 

 
Internal balances at December 31, 2022 were comprised of the following: 

Due (to) from: Receivable Payable
General Fund -$               (21,270)$         
Special Revenue Funds:
  Road and Bridge 10,528            -                     
  Non-Major Funds 10,742            -                     

21,270$          (21,270)$         

 
These balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods 
and services were provided or reimbursable expenditures occurred, (2) transactions were 
recorded in the accounting system, and (3) payments between funds were made. 

 
G. Long-term Liabilities – Governmental Activities 

 
1. Special Assessment Loan with Governmental Commitment 
  

In 2015, the County received loan proceeds of $430,704 through the Water 
Pollution Control Revolving Fund, carrying an interest rate of 1%. Principal and 
interest payments are due on November 1 and May 1, beginning on November 1, 
2015 and ending on May 1, 2035. The proceeds will be used for the replacement 
of sewer mains, collection lines, and services lines in the Shadow Mountain 
Villages.  This loan will be repaid from amounts levied against the property 
owners benefited by this construction.  In the event that a deficiency exists 
because of unpaid or delinquent special assessments at the time a debt service 
payment is due, the government must provide the resources to cover the 
deficiency until other resources are received.   
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IV.        Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)  
 

G. Long-term Liabilities – Governmental Activities (continued) 
 

2. Certificates of Participation, Series 2021 
  
 In March 2021, the County issued the $21,635,000 Certificates of Participation, 

Series 2021 for the purposes of purchase and renovation of a new county 
building.  Payments are due semiannually on March 1 and September 1 
beginning March 1, 2022 through March 1, 2051 and bearing a variable interest 
rate ranging from 2.125% to 5.0%.   

 
3.  Master Lease Purchase Agreement 
 

On April 8, 2021, the County entered into a lease purchase agreement with 
Signature Public Funding Corporation in the amount of $314,864 for a ground 
mounted Solar PV system.  Payments are due annually on April 8 from 2021 to 
2033 and bearing interest at a rate of 2.245%.  

 
4. Compensated Absences 

 
The County has a policy allowing the accumulation of paid vacation and sick 
leave, subject to certain maximum limits.  In accordance with GAAP, the 
County’s approximate liability for vacation pay earned by employees at 
December 31, 2022 has been reflected in the governmental activities column of 
the government-wide financial statements. 

 
5. Landfill Closure Costs – Contingent Liability  

 
State and federal laws and regulations require that the County place a final cover 
on its landfill when closed and perform certain maintenance and monitoring 
functions at the landfill site for thirty years after closure.  In addition to operating 
expenses relating to current activities of the landfill, a liability provision is being 
recognized based on the future closure and post closure care.  Closure and post 
closure care costs are being recognized based on the amount of the landfill used 
during the year.  The County is appropriating amounts from the Landfill 
Operations Fund to meet landfill closure costs.  The estimated liability is 
calculated as follows: 

 Total Costs  Used 
Regional - Closure 1,996,519$      76.10%
Regional - Post closure 540,276          76.10%
Closed - Post closure 337,179          23.33%
  Total 2,873,974$      

Landfill

 
The County has stopped accepting waste and has substantially completed 
closure of one landfill (noted as closed above) in 1997.  The post closure costs 
relating to the closed landfill are anticipated to be paid out over thirty years from 
the date closed.  The regional landfill, which is now accepting waste, is estimated 
to be filled to 76.10% of capacity as of year-end.  It is estimated that another 
$606,294 will be recognized between the balance sheet date and the date the 
landfill is expected to reach capacity in 2041.  The actual costs of closure and 
post closure care may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology, or 
changes in landfill laws and regulations.  
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IV.        Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued) 
 

G. Long-term Liabilities – Governmental Activities (continued) 
 

6. Schedule of Changes in Long-Term Debt 
 

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Reductions Balance

Governmental Activities:
2021 COPs 21,635,000$    -$                   (160,000)$       21,475,000$    
Capital finance lease 314,864          -                     (20,396)           294,468          

 Special 234,323          -                     (16,297)           218,026          
Landfill post closure 1,792,114       217,062          -                     2,009,176       
Compensated absences 972,065          -                     62,608            1,034,673       
Premium (Discount) on debt 2,766,583       -                     (149,939)         2,616,644       
  Total Governmental Activities

      Long-term 27,714,949$    217,062$        (284,024)$       27,647,987$    

7. Schedule of Future Payments 
 

The County’s annual debt service is as follows: 

Year ? Interest Total

2023 438,248$        841,750$        1,279,998$      
2024 454,463          820,721          1,275,184       
2025 481,557          798,667          1,280,224       
2026 502,890          775,442          1,278,332       
2027 529,433          751,065          1,280,498       

2028-2032 3,059,065       3,352,598       6,411,663       
2033-2037 3,337,720       2,873,566       6,211,286       
2038-2042 3,885,000       2,261,100       6,146,100       
2043-2047 4,750,000       1,400,400       6,150,400       
2048-2052 4,549,118       373,000          4,922,118       

Total 21,987,494$    14,248,309$    36,235,803$    

H. General Long-term Debt – Component Units 
 

At December 31, 2022, the Hospital has note payable obligations of $69,286,010. The 
Hospital also has a capital lease obligation of $648,734. 

 
The Housing Authority has $710,838 of mortgages outstanding. The mortgages included 
in the Housing Authority liability are: 
 

 CHFA Primary Mortgage (6.5%) $126,831 
 HUD Restructuring Note (1%) $434,985 
 HUD Contingent Note (1%) $149,022 
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IV.        Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued) 
 

H. General Long-term Debt – Component Units 
 

The following is a schedule of future annual debt payments for all component units: 
 

Year Principal Interest Principal Interest
Mortgages and Notes

2023 2,782,850$      2,329,111$      8,550$            13,832$          
2024 2,583,284       2,276,805       9,123              13,260            
2025 2,575,658       2,225,156       9,734              12,649            
2026 2,117,162       2,178,750       10,386            11,997            
2027 1,906,396       2,017,358       11,081            11,301            

2028-2032 8,694,269       8,665,774       67,584            48,572            
2033-2037 9,069,184       9,682,063       594,380          6,495              
2038-2042 10,093,437      8,789,165       -                     -                     
2043-2047 11,789,586      7,745,147       -                     -                     
2048-2052 10,698,152      6,083,413       -                     -                     
2053-2057 4,193,046       4,450,931       
2058-2062 2,782,986       2,967,703       -                     -                     

Total - Notes and 
Mortgages 69,286,010$    59,411,376$    710,838$        118,106$        

Year Principal Interest
Leases:

2023 1,461,218$      83,005$          
2024 1,226,522       54,413            
2025 1,177,703       27,248            
2026 678,812          6,125              
2027 426,315          981                

Thereafter 2,330,241       -                     
Total - Leases 7,300,811$      171,772$        
Total - Long Term 

Debt 76,586,821$    59,583,148$    710,838$        118,106$        

Hospital Housing Authority

Hospital
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IV.        Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued) 
 

I. Fund Balance Disclosure 
 

The County classifies governmental fund balances as follows: 
 
Non-spendable - includes fund balance amounts that cannot be spent either because it is 
not in spendable form or because of legal or contractual requirements. 
 
Spendable Fund Balance: 
 

Restricted – includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific 
purposes which are externally imposed by providers, such as creditors or amounts 
constrained due to constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 
 
Committed – includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific 
purposes that are internally imposed by the government through formal action of the 
highest level of decision making authority which is the Board of County 
Commissioners.  The County’s original budget legislation begins with combining 
historical data, assessment of needs for the upcoming year and the Board’s platform 
to review, and/or make changes to each department’s budget.   Before year end, a 
budgetary committee will meet again with each department for final review and 
approval of preliminary budget.  The Budget is then formally presented to the Board 
via an advertised public process for their review, revisions and final approval by year 
end.  All subsequent budget requests made during the year, after Board approval, 
must be presented via a public process and again approval by the Board. 
 
Assigned – includes spendable fund balance amounts that are intended to be used 
for specific purposes that are neither considered restricted or committed.  Fund 
Balance may be assigned by the Board or its management designee.   
 
Unassigned - includes residual positive fund balance within the General Fund which 
has not been classified within the other above-mentioned categories.  Unassigned 
fund balance may also include negative balances for any governmental fund if 
expenditures exceed amounts restricted, committed, or assigned for those specific 
purposes. 
 

The County uses restricted amounts to be spent first when both restricted and 
unrestricted fund balance is available unless there are legal documents/contracts that 
prohibit doing this, such as in grant agreements requiring dollar for dollar spending.   
Additionally, the County would first use committed, then assigned, and lastly unassigned 
amounts of unrestricted fund balance when expenditures are made. 
 
The County does not have a formal minimum fund balance policy. However, the County’s 
budget includes a calculation of a targeted reserve positions and the Administration 
calculates targets and report them annually to the Board.
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IV.        Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued) 
 

I. Fund Balance Disclosure (continued) 
 

At December 31, 2022, the County had restricted fund balances for the following 
purposes: 

 
Restricted For:  Balance 

 General Fund 
TABOR reserve 1,005,000
Electronic recording 175,278
Information security 48,826
Federal grant expenditures 4,855,348
Natural resources 14,632

 Human Services 1,216,210       
 Lease Purchase 1,245,784       
 Non-major 

Landfill post-closure 247,248          
Conservation trust recreation projects 173,173          
E-911 593,667          

 Tourism 175,300          
Telecommunications 256,607          
Shadow Mountain capital projects 181,743          
Public Health 737,661          

10,926,477$    

 
At December 31, 2022, the County had committed fund balances for these purposes: 

 
Committed For:  Balance 

General Fund:
30% operating reserve 3,191,132$      
Capital projects 232,773          
Browns Park School 6,686              

Road and Bridge
30% operating reserve 2,367,923       
Capital projects 2,458,645       

Jail - 30% operating reserve 495,078          
Capital projects:

Courthouse improvements 8,823,472       
Fairground improvements 775,957          
Senior Housing improvements 493,882          
Other county-wide improvements 58,430            

Non-major funds:
Landfill - 30% operating reserve 172,021          
Landfill - capital projects 304,217          
Library - Memorial 52,607            
Library - 30% operating reserve 112,734          
Airport 30% operating reserve 152,789          

19,698,346$    
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V. Other Information 
 

A. Pension Plans 
 

1. Deferred Compensation Plan (457) 
 

The County offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in 
accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457.  The Plan is administered 
by AIG Retirement Services.  The plan, available to all employees, permits them 
to defer a portion of their salary until future years.  The deferred compensation is 
not available to employees until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable 
emergency. 
 
All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, all property and rights 
purchased with those amounts, and all income attributable to those amounts, 
property, or rights are to be held in trust for the exclusive benefit of the plan 
participants and their beneficiaries. 

 
Plan investment purchases are determined by the plan participant and therefore, 
the plan’s investment concentration varies between participants. 

 
2. Money Savings Plan 

 
The County also offers its employees a money savings plan.  The plan requires 
all employees to contribute a minimum of 6% of their salary.  Additional 
contributions in excess of 6% are not allowed.  The County contributes an 
additional 6% of the employee’s salary.  Vesting in the plan occurs at a rate of 
25% per annum, with 100% vesting after four years.  Taxes on the employee 
contribution, the County’s match, and any investment earnings are deferred until 
distribution. The County paid $466,558, net of 2022 forfeitures totaling $6,819 on 
behalf of employees for the year ended December 31, 2022. The County had no 
outstanding liabilities at December 31, 2022. The plan is administered by Valic 
and investment decisions are determined by the employees. 

 
B. County’s Employee’s Health Insurance Trust Fund 

 
The County established a fund to account for the monies accumulated to offset the costs 
of a health and dental plan for County employees.  The resources accumulated in this 
fund can only be used to offset the cost of the County employees’ health and dental 
insurance program.  The County accounts for the fund as an internal service fund.  The 
County carried commercial reinsurance to pay for any individual claims greater than 
$90,000 and total claims greater than $3,797,624. 
 
Liabilities for retained risk claims are reported when it is probable that a loss has 
occurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.  Liabilities include an 
amount for claims that have been incurred but not reported (“IBNR”). 
 
The following is a summary of the changes in the balances of claims liabilities during 
2022: 

Claims liability, beginning of year 175,585$        
Claims incurred (4,370,015)      
Claims paid 4,444,526

Claims liability, end of year 250,096$        

 



Moffat County, Colorado 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 2022 
(Continued) 

 
 

D27 

V. Other Information (continued) 
 
C. Commitments and Contingencies 

 
Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and 
adjustment by grantor agencies, principally the federal government.  Any disallowed 
claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the 
applicable funds.  The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by 
the grantor cannot be determined at this time although the County expects such 
amounts, if any, to be immaterial. 

 
During the normal course of business, the County incurs claims and other assertions 
against it from various agencies and individuals.  Management of the County and 
their legal representatives feel none of these claims or assertions are significant 
enough that they would materially affect the fairness of the presentation of the 
financial statements at December 31, 2022. 
 
In 1994 the County issued $42,855,000 of Pollution Control Revenue Refunding 
Bonds PACIFIC CORP Project Series 1995 of Moffat County.  During 2009, the 
County issued $46,800,000 of Pollution Control Refunding Revenue Bonds for the 
purpose of refunding the 1994 revenue bonds.  The bonds were authorized by the 
State of Colorado to promote industry and develop trade or other economic activity 
within the State of Colorado.  The bonds are not a debt of the County.  The bonds will 
be payable and secured only by the revenues arising from the pledge and 
assignment under the indentures of the amounts due under the loan agreement.   

 
D. Risk Management 

 
The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and 
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; workers compensation; and natural 
disasters.  The County carries commercial insurance to provide coverage for the risks 
noted.  Losses are not expected to exceed the commercial limits. 

 
E. Federal Seizure Funds 

 
Funds received by the County Sheriff from seizures are accounted for in the General 
Fund.  These funds are to be used only for the specific purpose of law enforcement 
activities.
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V. Other Information (continued) 
 

F. Significant Taxpayers 
 
Sixty percent (60%) of all County property taxes were paid by ten taxpayers.  The 
following are the top ten taxpayers in the County: 
 

 Name  Assessed 

TRI-STATE GENERATION & TRANSMISSION ASSC.  $ 103,719,400 
COLOWYO/AXIAL BASIN COMPANY, LP       30,824,484 
PUBLIC SERVICE CO (XCEL)       20,456,600 
WEXPRO COMPANY       21,638,766 
PACIFIC CORP       16,987,800 
TRAPPER MINING, INC       13,255,750 
ROCKIES EXPRESS PIPELINE, LLC       13,673,000 
WYOMING INTERSTATE COMPANY       13,436,300 
SALT RIVER PROJECT        8,395,200 
OVERLAND PASS PIPELINE        6,396,000 

 TOTALS  $ 248,783,300 

 
G. Expenditures in Excess of Budget 
 

The following fund had actual expenditures in excess of budgeted expenditures, which 
may be a violation of Colorado budget law.   
 

Fund Budget Actual Over Budget
Airport 306,520$             509,298$        202,778$        
Capital Projects 4,979,500            18,961,927      13,982,427      
Health and Welfare 4,493,419            4,739,522       246,103          
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2021

Final Budget 

Variance

Original Final Actual Positive

Budget Budget Amounts (Negative) Actual

Revenues:

    Taxes:

        Property taxes 8,272,374$    8,272,374$    8,320,894$    48,520$         8,404,551$    

     Sales tax 2,679,475      2,679,475      3,912,652      1,233,177      2,679,731      

     Cigarette tax 3,000             3,000             3,351             351                5,004             

     Other 50,000           50,000           1,019,348      969,348         52,836           

    Intergovernmental:

     Federal 529,163         6,173,196      6,465,026      291,830         1,287,798      

     State and local 113,017         252,216         246,328         (5,888)            172,480         

    Charges for services 1,316,373      1,361,594      1,607,124      245,530         1,593,375      

    Investment earnings 25,385           25,385           225,234         199,849         27,152           

    Other 306,800         494,809         570,364         75,555           541,836         

Total Revenues 13,295,587    19,312,049    22,370,321    3,058,272      14,764,763    

Expenditures:

 General Government:

Commissioners 545,520         579,338         548,158         31,180           493,583         

Clerk and Recorder 636,747         644,347         607,629         36,718           555,166         

Elections 103,195         103,195         88,961           14,234           60,796           

Treasurer 405,687         405,687         386,219         19,468           398,191         

Public Trustee 18,270           18,270           20,505           (2,235)            17,015           

Assessor 532,739         532,539         469,485         63,054           431,921         

Accounting 310,599         368,093         342,086         26,007           293,964         

Human resources 309,727         309,727         277,296         32,431           305,330         

Information services 530,504         531,983         501,666         30,317           465,244         

County Attorney 243,361         243,361         219,537         23,824           215,322         

Surveyor 28,864           28,864           28,611           253                29,249           

Other administrative services 1,994,461      1,806,005      1,064,457      741,548         1,078,335      

Coronavirus relief fund -                     2,575,563      383,265         2,192,298      39,862           

Total - General Government 5,659,674      8,146,972      4,937,875      3,209,097      4,384,218      

Public Safety:

District Attorney 463,988         463,988         463,988         -                     425,066         

Sheriff 1,937,412      2,108,340      1,928,573      179,767         1,793,335      

Emergency management 202,087         205,876         168,320         37,556           120,155         

Fire control 111,546         193,946         193,502         444                198,100         

Coroner 136,199         136,199         134,734         1,465             125,795         

Community safety 76,666           76,666           73,349           3,317             61,198           

Total -  Public Safety 2,927,898      3,185,015      2,962,466      222,549         2,723,649      

Public Works:

Grounds and buildings 932,547         951,654         716,502         235,152         732,783         

Fairgrounds 434,873         472,781         377,117         95,664           268,934         

Parks and recreation 338,696         341,887         201,967         139,920         178,805         

Cemetery 139,949         139,949         128,481         11,468           145,790         

Sherman youth camp 49,571           49,571           13,992           35,579           15,138           

Pest and weed control 366,168         366,168         278,953         87,215           266,346         

Total - Public Works 2,261,804$    2,322,010$    1,717,012$    604,998$       1,607,796$    

2022

Moffat County, Colorado

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual (GAAP Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

(With Comparative Actual Amounts For the Year Ended December 31, 2021)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
E1



2021
Final Budget 

Variance
Original Final Actual Positive
Budget Budget Amounts (Negative) Actual

Expenditures (continued):
 Health and Human Services:

Ambulance service 35,175$         47,941$         54,258$         (6,317)$         37,436$         
Maybell fire 24,942           56,912           15,946           40,966           21,339           
Allotments - Health 2,000             2,000             2,000             -                    2,000             
Veterans office 25,591           25,591           25,199           392                24,381           
Community evaluation team 178,320         188,138         162,765         25,373           151,773         

Total - Health and Human Services 266,028         320,582         260,168         60,414           236,929         
Community Development:

Natural resources 182,745         182,745         178,935         3,810             163,774         
Hamilton community center 6,725             6,725             3,413             3,312             2,703             
Maybell center 23,877           143,176         50,934           92,242           62,317           
County fair 103,784         365,254         217,661         147,593         143,512         
Extension service 96,427           96,427           86,232           10,195           87,488           
Contributions 47,000           47,000           43,942           3,058             48,300           
Development services 238,965         238,965         178,477         60,488           256,032         

Total Community Development 699,523         1,080,292      759,594         320,698         764,126         

Total Expenditures 11,814,927    15,054,871    10,637,115    4,417,756      9,716,718      

Excess (Deficiency) of 
  Revenues Over Expenditures 1,480,660      4,257,178      11,733,206    7,476,028      5,048,045      

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
    Transfers in 25,000           25,000           25,000           -                    -                    
    Transfers (out) (2,713,346)    (2,713,346)    (3,012,854)    (299,508)       (2,957,640)    

Total Other Financing (Uses) (2,688,346)    (2,688,346)    (2,987,854)    (299,508)       (2,957,640)    

Net Change in Fund Balances (1,207,686)    1,568,832      8,745,352      7,176,520      2,090,405      

Fund Balances - January 1 18,612,630    18,612,630    18,612,632    2                    16,522,227

Fund Balances - December  31 17,404,944$  20,181,462$  27,357,984$  7,176,522$    18,612,632$  

2022

Moffat County, Colorado

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual (GAAP Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

(With Comparative Actual Amounts For the Year Ended December 31, 2021)

(Continued)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
E2



2021
Final Budget

Variance
Original Final Actual Positive
Budget Budget Amounts (Negative) Actual

Revenues:
    Taxes:

    Property taxes -$                   -$                   79$                79$                -$                   
    Delinquent taxes & interest -                     -                     6                    6                    -                     
    Sales tax 440,000         440,000         440,000         -                     440,000         
    Specific ownership 800,000         800,000         975,454         175,454         987,335         

    Intergovernmental:
     Federal 627,000         627,000         659,528         32,528           660,441         
     State and local 4,326,847      4,760,252      4,481,403      (278,849)        4,680,254      

    Charges for services 363,358         373,577         226,065         (147,512)        100,856         
    Investment income 18,285           18,285           109,647         91,362           17,737           
    Other 515                515                5,455             4,940             24,059           

Total Revenues 6,576,005      7,019,629      6,897,637      (121,992)        6,910,682      

Expenditures:
Highways:

Personnel 3,361,610      3,361,610      3,186,992      174,618         3,240,503      
Operating 868,100         1,033,888      1,183,762      (149,874)        422,881         

Maintenance and equipment:
Personnel 553,872         553,872         497,634         56,238           477,134         
Operating 1,485,200      1,531,824      1,459,637      72,187           1,058,758      

Administration:
Personnel 263,960         263,960         275,177         (11,217)          257,291         
Operating 198,263         201,263         208,508         (7,245)            193,161         

Other:
Fuel & other 166,600         166,600         68,837           97,763           83,854           
Intergovernmental revenue sharing 40,000           40,000           44,041           (4,041)            46,316           

 Capital outlay 1,187,758      2,320,679      968,488         1,352,191      270,529         

Total Expenditures 8,125,363      9,473,696      7,893,076      1,580,620      6,050,427      

Net Change in Fund Balances (1,549,358)     (2,454,067)     (995,439)        1,458,628      860,255         

Fund Balances - January 1 12,062,021 14,238,497 14,238,497    -                     13,378,242

Fund Balances - December 31 10,512,663$  11,784,430$  13,243,058$  1,458,628$    14,238,497$  

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

2022

(With Comparative Actual Amounts For the Year Ended December 31, 2021)

Moffat County, Colorado

Special Revenue Funds

Road and Bridge Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual (GAAP Basis)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2021
Final Budget

Variance
Original Final Actual Positive
Budget Budget Amounts (Negative) Actual

Revenues:
    Taxes:

    Property taxes 477,797$       477,797$       479,109$       1,312$           481,429$       
    Delinquent taxes & interest 600                600                556                (44)                 4,082             

    Intergovernmental 7,331,187      7,324,186      6,596,186      (728,000)        7,422,946      
    Charges for services 2,500             2,500             798                (1,702)            954                
    Investment income 1,925             1,925             13,545           11,620           1,925             
    Other 62,550           62,550           50,876           (11,674)          49,550           

Total Revenues 7,876,559      7,869,558      7,141,070      (728,488)        7,960,886      

Expenditures:
Health & Welfare:

APS 55,682           55,682           88,261           (32,579)          57,290           
Child Welfare 90/10 48,101           48,101           8,739             39,362           68,339           
Home Based treatment 3,334             3,334             7                    3,327             3,805             
Life skills 49,717           49,717           17,685           32,032           9,351             
Day treatment 3,797             3,797             58                  3,739             4,162             
Sexual abuse 8,334             8,334             199                8,135             4,376             
Mental health & sub abuse 87,500           87,500           71,690           15,810           73,280           
Spec. economic assistance 3,100             3,100             239                2,861             1,151             
Child care 333,989         333,989         186,586         147,403         178,113         

Child welfare 80/20 1,088,354      1,027,256      696,893         330,363         655,334         
Child welfare 100 61,382           61,382           95,810           (34,428)          93,661           
Child welfare program 618,747         618,747         237,230         381,517         271,778         
Enhanced medicaid 69,984           69,984           146,494         (76,510)          148,258         
Colorado works 395,016         395,016         207,596         187,420         229,827         
Medicaid claims -                     -                     457                (457)               -                     
Aid to Needy Disabled 56,127           56,127           35,589           20,538           34,516           
LEAP Administration 300,000         300,000         142,176         157,824         207,176         
LEAP Outreach 2,468             2,468             3,591             (1,123)            3,022             
Food stamps employment one 3,952,000      3,952,000      4,237,534      (285,534)        5,055,858      
Regular administration 396,423         396,423         496,799         (100,376)        435,998         
Non allocated administration 2,745             2,745             3,336             (591)               2,566             
OAP administration 207,228         207,228         172,706         34,522           155,642         
Child support 314,292         314,292         208,861         105,431         155,225         
IVD Federal incentives -                     -                     12,928           (12,928)          19,598           
IVD State incentives 36,300           36,300           -                     36,300           -                     
AFDC RTND - CO portion of collection (35,000)          (35,000)          (13,442)          (21,558)          (45,980)          
Foster care retention 100                100                -                     100                -                     
GA / WF 4,500             4,500             2,627             1,873             1,206             
Family engagement 91,973           91,973           (1,223)            93,196           3,805             
Other 200                200                3,550             (3,350)            106,118         
Public health emergency planning -                     41,878           2,888             38,990           -                     
Rio Blanco shared expenses 61,800           61,800           34,096           27,704           71,392           

Total Expenditures 8,218,193      8,198,973      7,099,960      1,099,013      8,004,867      

Net Change in Fund Balances (341,634)        (329,415)        41,110           370,525         (43,981)          

Fund Balances - January 1 853,732         1,178,710      1,178,710      -                 1,222,691

Fund Balances - December 31 512,098$       849,295$       1,219,820$    370,525$       1,178,710$    

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

2022

(With Comparative Actual Amounts For the Year Ended December 31, 2021)

Moffat County, Colorado

Special Revenue Funds

Human Services Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual (GAAP Basis)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2021

Final Budget  

Variance

Original Final Positive

Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual

Revenues:

Taxes:

Sales tax 589,431$      589,431$      455,574$      (133,857)$     1,194,442$   

Intergovernmental

Federal 770,800        637,876        456,240        (181,636)       444,679        

State 5,000            5,000            -                    (5,000)           1,267            

Charges for services 151,000        151,400        139,816        (11,584)         91,635          

Investment Income 1,451            1,451            5,247            3,796            1,010            

Reimbursements -                    -                    4,978            4,978            3,208            

                Total Revenues 1,517,682     1,385,158     1,061,855     (323,303)       1,736,241     

Expenditures:

Personnel 1,918,062     1,918,062     1,772,940     145,122        1,680,564     

Operating 910,382        1,092,085     792,912        299,173        922,378        

                Total Expenditures 2,828,444     3,010,147     2,565,852     444,295        2,602,942     

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

  Over Expenditures (1,310,762)    (1,624,989)    (1,503,997)    120,992        (866,701)       

Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Transfers in 915,900        915,900        1,215,900     300,000        1,270,795     

Transfers (out) (54,930)         (54,930)         (27,465)         27,465          (718,863)       

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 860,970        860,970        1,188,435     327,465        551,932        

Net Change in Fund Balances (449,792)       (764,019)       (315,562)       448,457        (314,769)       

Fund Balances - January 1 871,617        897,032        897,032        897,030        1,211,801

Fund Balances - December 31 421,825$      133,013$      581,470$      1,345,487$   897,032$      

(With Comparative Actual Amounts For the Year Ended December 31, 2021)

2022

Moffat County, Colorado

Special Revenue Funds

Jail Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual (GAAP Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2021
Variance

Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual

Revenues:
    Investment income -$                  -$                  12,748$         12,748$         44$                

Total Revenues -                    -                    12,748           12,748           44                  

Expenditures:
    Principal 207,861         180,396         180,397         (1)                  2,485,000      
    Interest and other 1,076,275      1,076,275      1,077,524      (1,249)           34,128           
    Debt issuance costs -                    -                    -                    -                    2,000             

Total Expenditures 1,284,136      1,256,671      1,257,921      (1,250)           2,521,128      

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
  Over Expenditures (1,284,136)    (1,256,671)    (1,245,173)    11,498           (2,521,084)    

Other Financing Sources:
    Transfers in 1,284,136      1,256,671      1,257,921      1,250             3,194,109      

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 1,284,136      1,256,671      1,257,921      1,250             3,194,109      

Net Change in Fund Balances -                    -                    12,748           12,748           673,025         

Fund Balances - January 1 16,444,497    1,233,036      1,233,036      -                    560,011

Fund Balances - December 31 16,444,497$  1,233,036$    1,245,784$    12,748$         1,233,036$    

2022

Moffat County, Colorado

Lease Purchase Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

 Budget and Actual (GAAP Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

(With Comparative Actual Amounts For the Year Ended December 31, 2021)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2021
Final Budget

Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual

Revenues:
Intergovernmental -$               4,650,000$    4,571,054$    (78,946)$        284,400$       
Interest 3,280             3,280             124,373         121,093         3,585             
Other 50,000           50,000           56,434           6,434             16,851           

Total Revenues 53,280           4,703,280      4,751,861      48,581           304,836         

Expenditures:
Other capital projects 329,500         4,979,500      18,961,926    (13,982,426)   1,559,532      

Total Expenditures  329,500         4,979,500      18,961,926    (13,982,426)   1,559,532      

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
  Over Expenditures (276,220)        (276,220)        (14,210,065)   (13,933,845)   (1,254,696)     

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Proceeds from bonds -                     -                     -                     -                     21,635,000    
Premium on bond issuance -                     -                     -                     -                     2,916,522      
Bond issuance costs -                     -                     -                     -                     (307,125)        
Proceeds from capital lease -                     -                     -                     -                     314,864         
Transfers (out) -                     -                     -                     -                     (1,280,666)     

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) -                     -                     -                     -                     23,278,595    

Net Change in Fund Balances (276,220)        (276,220)        (14,210,065)   (13,933,845)   22,023,899    

Fund Balances - January 1 1,603,674      24,361,807    24,361,806    (1)                   2,337,907      

Fund Balances  - December 31 1,327,454$    24,085,587$  10,151,741$  (13,933,846)$ 24,361,806$  

2022

Moffat County, Colorado

Capital Projects Funds

Capital Project Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

 Budget and Actual (GAAP Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

(With Comparative Actual Amounts For the Year Ended December 31, 2021)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Total

Senior Conservation Tourism Public Telecomm- Shadow Non-major

Landfill Library Citizens Airport Trust E-911 Promotion Health unications Mountain Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund LID Funds

Assets:

Cash and investments - Unrestricted 1,756,608$ 413,481$    90,097$      242,050$    173,173$    590,632$    180,626$    707,672$    256,607$    182,169$    4,593,115$      

Taxes receivable -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  162,723 -                  -                  162,723           

Accounts receivable 47,599        -                  -                  224,642      -                  17,428        -                  -                  -                  261             289,930           

Due from other governments -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  59,902        -                  -                  59,902             

Prepaid items -                  626             5,267          -                  -                  -                  4,282          593             -                  -                  10,768             

Due from other funds -                  -                  -                  10,742        -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  10,742             
Total Assets 1,804,207   414,107      95,364        477,434      173,173      608,060      184,908      930,890      256,607      182,430      5,127,180        

Liabilities and Fund Balances:

Accounts/vouchers payable 11,538        5,177          6,602          230,216      -                  14,393        46               2,978          -                  687             271,637           

Accrued salaries and benefits 20,796        13,790        11,011        2,534          -                  -                  4,873          26,935        -                  -                  79,939             

Unavailable revenue - other -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  407             -                  -                  -                  407                  

Total Liabilities 32,334        18,967        17,613        232,750      -                  14,393        5,326          29,913        -                  687             351,983           

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Unavailable property tax revenue -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  162,723      -                  -                  162,723           

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  162,723      -                  -                  162,723           

Fund Balances:

Non-spendable -                  626             5,267          -                  -                  -                  4,282          593             -                  -                  10,768             

Spendable:

Restricted 247,248      -                  -                  -                  173,173      593,667      175,300      737,661      256,607      181,743      2,365,399        

Committed 476,238      165,341      -                  152,789      -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  794,368           

Assigned 1,048,387   229,173      72,484        91,895        -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  1,441,939        

Total Fund Balances 1,771,873   395,140      77,751        244,684      173,173      593,667      179,582      738,254      256,607      181,743      4,612,474        

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows
of Resources and Fund Balances 1,804,207$ 414,107$    95,364$      477,434$    173,173$    608,060$    184,908$    930,890$    256,607$    182,430$    5,127,180$      

Moffat County, Colorado

 Special Revenue Funds

Non-major Governmental Funds
December 31, 2022

Combining Balance Sheet

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Total

Senior Conservation ` Tourism ` Public Telecomm- Shadow Non-major

Landfill Library Citizens Airport Trust E-911 Promotion Health unications Mountain Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund LID Funds

Revenues:

    Taxes -$                69$             -$                11,116$      -$                171,067$    133,685$    167,003$     -$                -$                482,940$      

    Intergovernmental -                  13,311        40,514        398,604      51,068        7,560          -                  645,259       -                  -                  1,156,316     

    Charges for services 852,196      3,490          34,118        68,732        -                  -                  -                  -                   -                  23,190        981,726        

    Investment income 12,818        3,546          1,189          2,527          1,435          5,160          1,369          -                   2,403          -                  30,447          

    Reimbursements -                  -                  -                  28               -                  -                  -                  6,721           -                  -                  6,749            

    Other 2,645          20,722        1,334          100             -                  -                  -                  -                   -                  -                  24,801          

Total Revenues 867,659      41,138        77,155        481,107      52,503        183,787      135,054      818,983       2,403          23,190        2,682,979     

Expenditures:

    Public safety -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  86,996        -                  -                   -                  -                  86,996          

    Public works 573,402      -                  -                  509,298      -                  -                  -                  -                   11,381        114             1,094,195     

    Health & Welfare -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  606,974       -                  -                  606,974        

    Community development -                  375,780      212,692      -                  9,164          -                  152,519      -                   -                  -                  750,155        

    Capital outlay -                  -                  -                  -                  13,295        -                  -                  -                   -                  -                  13,295          

    Debt service:

    Principal -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                   -                  16,296        16,296          

    Interest -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                   -                  2,303          2,303            

Total Expenditures 573,402      375,780      212,692      509,298      22,459        86,996        152,519      606,974       11,381        18,713        2,570,214     

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

  Over Expenditures 294,257      (334,642)     (135,537)     (28,191)       30,044        96,791        (17,465)       212,009       (8,978)         4,477          112,765        

Other Financing Sources (Uses):

    Transfers in -                  360,857      154,133      51,509        -                  -                  -                  -                   -                  -                  566,499        

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) -                  360,857      154,133      51,509        -                  -                  -                  -                   -                  -                  566,499        

Net Change in Fund Balances 294,257      26,215        18,596        23,318        30,044        96,791        (17,465)       212,009       (8,978)         4,477          679,264        

Fund Balances - January 1 1,477,616   368,925      59,155        221,366      143,129      496,876      197,047      526,245       265,585      177,266      3,933,210     

Fund Balances - December 31 1,771,873$ 395,140$    77,751$      244,684$    173,173$    593,667$    179,582$    738,254$     256,607$    181,743$    4,612,474$   

 Special Revenue Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Non-major Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2021

Final Budget
Variance

Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual

Revenues:
    Charges for services 616,500$       616,500$       852,196$       235,696$       823,891$       

    Investment income 1,506             1,506             12,818           11,312           1,512             

    Reimbursements -                    -                    -                    -                    35                  
    Other revenue 1,400             1,400             2,645             1,245             3,033             

Total Revenues 619,406         619,406         867,659         248,253         828,471         

Expenditures:
Public Works:

Personnel 370,081         370,081         370,842         (761)              358,612         

Operating 292,450         292,450         202,560         89,890           189,269         
Capital outlay 416,275         -                    -                    -                    -                    

Total Expenditures 1,078,806      662,531         573,402         89,129           547,881         

Net Change in Fund Balances (459,400)       (43,125)         294,257         337,382         280,590         

Fund Balances - January 1 1,226,875 1,477,616 1,477,616      -                    1,197,026      

Fund Balances - December 31 767,475$       1,434,491$    1,771,873$    337,382$       1,477,616$    

2022

Moffat County, Colorado

Special Revenue Funds

Landfill Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual (GAAP Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

(With Comparative Actual Amounts For the Year Ended December 31, 2021)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2021
Final Budget

Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual

Revenues:
Charges for services 5,500             5,500             3,490             (2,010)            3,326             
Investment income 557                557                3,546             2,989             529                
Intergovernmental 5,000             18,311           13,380           (4,931)            5,182             
Other 19,400           20,688           20,722           34                  19,486           

Total Revenues 30,457           45,056           41,138           (3,918)            28,523           

Expenditures:
Personnel 263,382         195,071         184,311         10,760           232,778         
Operating 115,370         129,970         106,555         23,415           115,855         
Maybell library 8,090             58,893           59,779           (886)               7,471             
Dinosaur library 7,800             25,308           25,135           173                7,228             

Total Expenditures 394,642         409,242         375,780         33,462           363,332         

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
  Over Expenditures (364,185)        (364,186)        (334,642)        29,544           (334,809)        

Other Financing Sources:

 Transfers in 360,857         360,857         360,857         -                     345,857         

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 360,857         360,857         360,857         -                     345,857         

Net Change in Fund Balances (3,328)            (3,329)            26,215           29,544           11,048           

Fund Balances - January 1 383,448 368,925 368,925         -                 357,877

Fund Balances - December 31 380,120$       365,596$       395,140$       29,544$         368,925$       

Moffat County, Colorado

Library Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

 Budget and Actual (GAAP Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

(With Comparative Actual Amounts For the Year Ended December 31, 2021)

2022

Special Revenue Funds

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2021
Final Budget

Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual

Revenues:
Taxes:
Intergovernmental 39,744$         39,744$         40,514$         770$              57,992$         
Charges for services 37,750           37,750           34,118           (3,632)            36,235           
Investment income 100                100                1,189             1,089             155                
Other 1,500             1,500             1,334             (166)               1,715             

Total Revenues 79,094           79,094           77,155           (1,939)            96,097           

Expenditures:
Administration 15,794           15,794           14,495           1,299             15,935           
Transportation 88,251           88,251           81,310           6,941             84,324           
Meal program 133,754         133,754         116,887         16,867           106,672         
Capital outlay -                     -                     -                     -                     22,224           

Total Expenditures 237,799         237,799         212,692         25,107           229,155         

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
  Over Expenditures (158,705)        (158,705)        (135,537)        23,168           (133,058)        

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in 154,133         154,133         154,133         -                     106,292         

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 154,133         154,133         154,133         -                     106,292         

Net Change in Fund Balances (4,572)            (4,572)            18,596           23,168           (26,766)          

Fund Balances - January 1 52,131 59,155 59,155           -                     85,921

Fund Balances - December 31 47,559$         54,583$         77,751$         23,168$         59,155$         

2022

Moffat County, Colorado

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

(With Comparative Actual Amounts For the Year Ended December 31, 2021)

Special Revenue Funds

Senior Citizens Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

 Budget and Actual (GAAP Basis)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2021
Final Budget

Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual

Revenues:
Taxes:

Taxes - Aircraft tax 6,500$           6,500$           11,116$         4,616$           6,687$           
Rents 70,250           70,250           68,732           (1,518)            56,999           
Intergovernmental -                     184,777         398,604         213,827         -                     
Investment income 284                284                2,527             2,243             274                
Reimbursements -                     -                     28                  28                  234                
Other -                     10,243           100                (10,143)          300                

Total Revenues 77,034           272,054         481,107         209,053         64,494           

Expenditures:
Personnel 50,757           61,000           57,917           3,083             50,605           
Operations 55,743           55,743           38,118           17,625           29,776           
Capital outlay 5,000             189,777         413,263         (223,486)        -                     

Total Expenditures  111,500         306,520         509,298         (202,778)        80,381           

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
  Over Expenditures (34,466)          (34,466)          (28,191)          6,275             (15,887)          

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in 53,250           53,250           51,509           (1,741)            40,116           

  Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 53,250           53,250           51,509           (1,741)            40,116           

Net Change in Fund Balances 18,784           18,784           23,318           4,534             24,229           

Fund Balances - January 1 216,915 221,366 221,366         -                     197,137         

Fund Balances - December 31 235,699$       240,150$       244,684$       4,534$           221,366$       

2022

Moffat County, Colorado

Special Revenue Funds

(With Comparative Actual Amounts For the Year Ended December 31, 2021)

Airport Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

 Budget and Actual (GAAP Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2021
Final Budget

Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual

Revenues:
Lottery proceeds 36,000$         36,000$         51,068$         15,068$         57,610$         

   Investment income 186               186               1,435             1,249             292               

Total Revenues 36,186           36,186           52,503           16,317           57,902           

Expenditures:
Recreation 18,000           18,000           8,639             9,361             9,078             
Treasurer's fees 450               450               525               (75)                1,027             
Capital outlay 66,000           66,000           13,295           52,705           35,532           

Total Expenditures  84,450           84,450           22,459           61,991           45,637           

Net Change in Fund Balances (48,264)         (48,264)         30,044           78,308           12,265           

Fund Balances - January 1 120,330 143,129 143,129         -                    130,864

Fund Balances - December 31 72,066$         94,865$         173,173$       78,308$         143,129$       

 Budget and Actual (GAAP Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

(With Comparative Actual Amounts For the Year Ended December 31, 2021)

2022

Moffat County, Colorado

Special Revenue Funds

Conservation Trust Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2021
Final Budget

Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual

Revenues:
Taxes:

Phone tax 100,000$       100,000$       171,067$       71,067$         145,161$       
Interest income 6,000             6,000             5,160             (840)               607                
Charges for services -                     -                     -                     -                     40                  
Other -                     -                     7,560             7,560             51,146           

Total Revenues 106,000         106,000         183,787         77,787           196,954         

Expenditures:
Operations 30,550           30,550           17,775           12,775           10,277           
Special projects 75,000           75,000           69,221           5,779             68,956           

Total Expenditures  105,550         105,550         86,996           18,554           79,233           

Net Change in Fund Balances 450                450                96,791           96,341           117,721         

Fund Balances - January 1 379,605         496,876         496,876         -$                   379,155

Fund Balances - December 31 380,055$       497,326$       593,667$       96,341$         496,876$       

 Budget and Actual (GAAP Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022
(With Comparative Actual Amounts For the Year Ended December 31, 2021)

2022

Moffat County, Colorado
Special Revenue Funds

E-911 Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2021

Final Budget
Variance

Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual

Revenues:
Taxes:

Lodging tax 144,502$       144,502$       133,685$       (10,817)$        169,211$       
Other revenue -                     16,000           -                     (16,000)          17,996           
Investment income 165                165                1,369             1,204             162                

Total Revenues 144,667         160,667         135,054         (25,613)          187,369         

Expenditures:
Personnel 70,355           86,355           83,250           3,105             70,832           
Advertising 40,000           40,000           39,835           165                27,875           
Operations 33,700           33,700           29,434           4,266             34,279           

Total Expenditures  144,055         160,055         152,519         7,536             132,986         

Net Change in Fund Balances 612                612                (17,465)          (18,077)          54,383           

Fund Balances - January 1 151,361         197,045         197,047         2                    142,664

Fund Balances - December 31 151,973$       197,657$       179,582$       (18,075)$        197,047$       

 Budget and Actual (GAAP Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

(With Comparative Actual Amounts For the Year Ended December 31, 2021)

2022

Moffat County, Colorado

Special Revenue Funds

Tourism Promotion Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2021

Final Budget

Variance

Original Final Positive

Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual

Revenues:

Taxes:

Property taxes 166,476$       166,476$       167,003$       527$              172,894$       

Intergovernmental 725,771         885,868         645,259         (240,609)        499,721         

Other revenue -                     -                     6,721             6,721             1,628             

Total Revenues 892,247         1,052,344      818,983         (233,361)        674,243         

Expenditures:

Public health 44,200           44,200           10,372           33,828           18,066           

Local Emergency 20,830           20,830           16,233           4,597             26,816           

Local Planning 28,576           28,576           44,272           (15,696)          36,249           

Maternal Child Health 65,869           78,011           70,037           7,974             27,311           

Child Fatality 6,505             6,505             3,568             2,937             4,469             

Immunizations 170,052         170,052         116,514         53,538           154,426         

CARES expenses 398,024         494,579         293,209         201,370         104,021         

Workforce Funding -                     41,400           29,607           11,793           -                     

Vulnerable Populations -                     -                     -                     -                     60,000           

Other 6,000             27,025           23,162           3,863             49,999           

Total Expenditures  740,056         911,178         606,974         304,204         481,357         

Net Change in Fund Balances 152,191         141,166         212,009         70,843           192,886         

Fund Balances - January 1 524,670         526,245         526,245         -                     333,359         

Fund Balances - December 31 676,861$       667,411$       738,254$       70,843$         526,245$       

(With Comparative Actual Amounts For the Year Ended December 31, 2021)

2022

Moffat County, Colorado

Special Revenue Funds

Public Health Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

 Budget and Actual (GAAP Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

F10



2021
Final Budget

Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual

Revenues:
Investment income -$                   -$                   2,403$           2,403$           400$              

Total Revenues -                     -                     2,403             2,403             400                

Expenditures:
Telecommunication expenses 26,650           26,650           11,381           15,269           10,971           

Total Expenditures  26,650           26,650           11,381           15,269           10,971           

Net Change in Fund Balances (26,650)          (26,650)          (8,978)            17,672           (10,571)          

Fund Balances - January 1 249,506         265,585         265,585         -                 276,156         

Fund Balances - December 31 222,856$       238,935$       256,607$       17,672$         265,585$       

(With Comparative Actual Amounts For the Year Ended December 31, 2021)

2022

Moffat County, Colorado

Capital Projects Funds

Telecommunications 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

 Budget and Actual (GAAP Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2021
Final Budget

Original and Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual

Revenues:
Charges for services 31,000$         31,000$         23,190$         (7,810)$          28,650$         

Total Revenues 31,000           31,000           23,190           (7,810)            28,650           

Expenditures:
Public Works:

Miscellaneous 1,223             1,223             114                1,109             156                
Debt Service:

Principal 22,790           22,790           16,296           6,494             16,135           
Interest 3,793             3,793             2,303             1,490             2,464             

Total Expenditures  27,806           27,806           18,713           9,093             18,755           

Net Change in Fund Balances 3,194             3,194             4,477             1,283             9,895             

Fund Balances - January 1 170,565         177,265         177,266         1                    167,371         

Fund Balances - December 31 173,759$       180,459$       181,743$       1,284$           177,266$       

(With Comparative Actual Amounts For the Year Ended December 31, 2021)

2022

Moffat County, Colorado

Capital Projects Funds

Shadow Mountain Village Local Improvement District

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

 Budget and Actual (GAAP Basis)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2021

Original and Variance

Final Positive

Budget Actual (Negative) Actual

Operating Revenues:

Charges for services 36,960$         40,140$         3,180$           38,969$         

Other -                     -                     -                     (343)              

Total Operating Revenues 36,960           40,140           3,180             38,626           

Operating Expenses:

Operations and maintenance 50,213           17,784           32,429           22,671           

Capital outlay 5,000             -                     5,000             -                     

Total Operating Expenses 55,213           17,784           37,429           22,671           

Operating Income (Loss) (18,253)         22,356           40,609           15,955           

Non-Operating Revenues:

Investment income 142                1,146             1,004             141                

Change in Net Position - Budget Basis: (18,111)$       23,502           41,613$         16,096           

Reconciliation to GAAP Basis:

Adjustments:

Capital outlay -                     -                     

Depreciation (20,953)         (20,952)         

Change in Net Position - GAAP Basis 2,549             (4,856)           

Net Position - January 1 355,960         360,816         

Net Position - December 31 358,509$       355,960$       

(With Comparative Actual Amounts For the Year Ended December 31, 2021)

2022

Moffat County, Colorado

Enterprise Fund

Sewer Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position

 Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual with Reconciliation to GAAP Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Total

Health Central Internal

Insurance Trust Duplicating/ Service

Fund IT Fund Funds

Assets:

Current Assets:

Cash and investments 3,106,243$    94,506$         3,200,749$    

Accounts receivable -                     563                563                

Total Current Assets 3,106,243      95,069           3,201,312      

Non-current Assets:

Capital assets 119,937         -                     119,937         

Accumulated depreciation (27,859)         -                     (27,859)         

Total Non-current Assets 92,078           -                     92,078           

Total Assets 3,198,321      95,069           3,293,390      

Liabilities:

    Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 347,757         -                     347,757         

Total Liabilities 347,757         -                     347,757         

Net Position:

    Net investment in capital assets 92,078           -                     92,078           

    Restricted 214,970         -                     214,970         

    Unrestricted 2,543,516      95,069           2,638,585      
    Total Net Position 2,850,564$    95,069$         2,945,633$    

December 31, 2022

Moffat County, Colorado

Internal Service Funds

Combining Statement of Net Position

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Total

Health Central Internal

Insurance Trust Duplicating/ Service

Fund IT Fund Funds

Operating Revenues:

Charges for services -$                   11,631$         11,631$         

Contributions 3,580,336      -                     3,580,336      

Other 842,894         -                     842,894         

Total Operating Revenues 4,423,230      11,631           4,434,861      

Expenditures:

Operations and maintenance 294,996         9,042             304,038         

Claims and related insurance expenses 4,444,526      -                     4,444,526      

Depreciation 3,328             -                     3,328             

Total Operating Expenses 4,742,850      9,042             4,751,892      

Operating Income (Loss) (319,620)       2,589             (317,031)       

Non-operating Revenues:

Interest 30,321           -                     30,321           

Income (Loss) Before Transfers (289,299)       2,589             (286,710)       

Transfers (out) (25,000)         -                     (25,000)         

Change in Net Position (314,299)       2,589             (311,710)       

Net Position - January 1 3,164,863      92,480           3,257,343      

Net Position - December 31 2,850,564$    95,069$         2,945,633$    

Moffat County, Colorado

Internal Service Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

and Changes in Fund Net Position

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Health Central

Insurance Trust Duplicating/

Fund IT Fund Total

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

Cash received from other funds 3,580,428$    11,330$         3,591,758$    

Other cash receipts 842,894         -                     842,894         

Cash paid for goods and services (4,761,208)    (9,042)           (4,770,250)    

    Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities (337,886)       2,288             (335,598)       

Cash Flows From Capital Financing Activities:

Acquisition of capital assets -                     -                     -                     

    Net Cash Provided (Used) by Non-Capital 

      Financing Activities -                     -                     -                     

Cash Flows From Non-Capital Financing Activities:

Transfer (to) from other fund (25,000)         -                     (25,000)         

    Net Cash Provided (Used) by Non-Capital 

      Financing Activities (25,000)         -                     (25,000)         

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:

   Interest received 30,321           -                     30,321           

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 30,321           -                     30,321           

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (332,565)       2,288             (330,277)       

Cash and Cash Equivalents - January 1 3,438,808      92,218           3,531,026      

Cash and Cash Equivalents - December 31 3,106,243      94,506           3,200,749      

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to

 Net Cash Provided (Used)  by Operating Activities:

  Operating income (loss) (319,620)       2,589             (317,031)       

  Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net

   cash provided (used) by operating activities:

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 91                  (301)              (210)              

(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses -                     -                     -                     

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities (21,685)         -                     (21,685)         

Increase (decrease) in accrued salaries and benefits -                     -                     -                     

Increase (decrease) in deferred revenues -                     -                     -                     

Depreciation 3,328             -                     3,328             

      Total Adjustments (18,266)         (301)              (18,567)         

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities (337,886)$     2,288$           (335,598)$     

Moffat County, Colorado
Internal Service Funds

Combining Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2021

Final Budget

Original Variance

and Final Positive

Budget Actual (Negative) Actual

Operating Revenues:

Contributions 3,823,924$    3,580,336$    (243,588)$     3,645,742$    

Other 220,000         842,894         622,894         299,352         

Total Operating Revenues 4,043,924      4,423,230      379,306         3,945,094      

Operating Expenses:

Claims and related insurance expenses 4,304,543      4,444,526      (139,983)       3,067,383      

Operations 186,208         294,996         (108,788)       213,186         

Depreciation 2,668             -                     2,668             -                     

Total Operating Expenses 4,493,419      4,739,522      (246,103)       3,280,569      

Operating Income (Loss) (449,495)       (316,292)       133,203         664,525         

Non-operating Revenues:

Interest 4,048             30,321           26,273           4,255             

Income (Loss) Before Transfers (445,447)       (285,971)       159,476         668,780         

Transfers in (out) (25,000)         (25,000)         -                     -                     

Change in Net Position - Budget Basis (470,447)$     (310,971)       159,476$       668,780         

Reconciliation to GAAP Basis:

Adjustments:

Depreciation (3,328)           (3,329)           

(3,328)           (3,329)           

Change in Net Position - GAAP Basis (314,299)       665,451         

Net Position - January 1 3,164,863      2,499,412

Net Position - December 31 2,850,564$    3,164,863$    

Moffat County, Colorado

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

(With Comparative Actual Amounts For the Year Ended December 31, 2021)

Internal Service Funds

Health Insurance Trust Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position

 Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual with Reconciliation to GAAP Basis

2022

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2021

Final Budget

Original Variance

and Final Positive

Budget Actual (Negative) Actual

Revenues:

Charges for services 10,350$         11,631$         1,281$           10,953$         

Total Revenues 10,350           11,631           1,281             10,953           

Expenses:

Operations and maintenance 12,100           9,042             3,058             10,846           

Total Expenses 12,100           9,042             3,058             10,846           

Operating Income (Loss) (1,750)           2,589             4,339             107                

Net Position - January 1 92,480           92,373           

Net Position - December 31 95,069$         92,480$         

2022

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

(With Comparative Actual Amounts For the Year Ended December 31, 2021)

Moffat County, Colorado

Internal Service Funds

Central Duplicating/IT Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position

 Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual with Reconciliation to GAAP Basis

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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All Crimes All Crimes
County Public Inmate Inmate Sheriff Shop with Search and Enforcement Enforcement Senior Community Maybell

Treasurer Trustee Commissary Welfare Scholarship Extension a Cop Rescue Forfeitures Funds Citizens Center Park Total

Assets:
  Cash and investments 2,141,739$      66,729$           59,108$           86,080$           2,151$             94,275$           18,022$           3,828$             24,945$           196,138$         3,679$             740$                500$                2,697,934$      

     Total Assets 2,141,739        66,729             59,108             86,080             2,151               94,275             18,022             3,828               24,945             196,138           3,679               740                  500                  2,697,934        

Liabilities
Due to other governments 1,214,801$      -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 1,214,801$      

     Total Liabilities 1,214,801$      -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 1,214,801$      

Net Position
Restricted for:

Individuals, organizations, and other governments 926,938           66,729             59,108             86,080             2,151               94,275             18,022             3,828               24,945             196,138           3,679               740                  500                  1,483,133        

Total Net Position 926,938$         66,729$           59,108$           86,080$           2,151$             94,275$           18,022$           3,828$             24,945$           196,138$         3,679$             740$                500$                1,483,133$      

Moffat County, Colorado
Agency Funds

Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
December 31, 2022

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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All Crimes All Crimes
County Public Inmate Inmate Sheriff Shop with Search and Enforcement Enforcement Senior Community Maybell 

Treasurer Trustee Commissary Welfare Scholarship Extension a Cop Rescue Forfeiture Funds Citizens Center Park Total

Additions
Collections for other governments 32,341,528$    -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     32,341,528$    
Collections for funds held for others 2,598,684        -                       57,457             17,799             200                  9,372               5,100               1,246               -                       84,569 1,719               155                  400                  2,776,701        
Public trustee activity -                       781,867           -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       781,867           

Total Additions 34,940,212      781,867           57,457             17,799             200                  9,372               5,100               1,246               -                       84,569             1,719               155                  400                  35,900,096      

Deductions
Disbursements to other governments 32,341,528      -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       32,341,528      
Disbursements to funds held for others 2,573,341        -                       46,757             2,087               2,000               5,218               1,947               1,635               -                       29,999 1,313               -                       -                       2,664,297        
Public trustee activity -                       779,586           -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       779,586           

Total Deductions 34,914,869$    779,586$         46,757$           2,087$             2,000$             5,218$             1,947$             1,635$             -$                     29,999$           1,313$             -$                     -$                     35,785,411$    

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fiduciary Net Position 25,343             2,281               10,700             15,712             (1,800)              4,154               3,153               (389)                 -                       54,570             406                  155                  400                  114,685           

Net Position - Beginning 901,595 64,448             48,408 70,368 3,951 90,121 14,869 4,217 24,945             141,568 3,273 585 100 1,368,448        

Net Position - Ending 926,938$         66,729$           59,108$           86,080$           2,151$             94,275$           18,022$           3,828$             24,945$           196,138$         3,679$             740$                500$                1,483,133$      

Moffat County, Colorado
Agency Funds

Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
December 31, 2022

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATE:
COLORADO
YEAR ENDING (mm/yy)
12t22

LOCAL HIGHWAY FINANCE REPORT

This lnformation From The Records Of:
NTOFFAT COUNIY

Prepared By:
CATHERINE NIELSON 970-824.91 06

I, DISPOSITION OF HIGHWAY-USER REVENUES AVAILABLE FOR LOCAL GOVERNMENT EXPENDITURE

ITEM
A. Local

Motor-Fuel
Taxes

B. Local
Motor.Vehicle

Taxes

C. Receipts from
State Highway-

Uaer Taxes

D. Receipts from
Federal Highway
Administration

1. Total receipts available
2. Minus amount used for collection exDenses
3. Minus amount used for nonhiqhwav purposes
4. Minus amount used for mass transit
5. Remainder used for hiahwav purooses

II. RECEIPTS FOR ROAD AND STREET PURPOSES III. EXPENDITURES FOR ROAD AND STREET PURPOSES

ITEM A[,1OUNT ITEM AMOUNT
A. Local hiqhway exDenditures:A. Receapts from local sources

1. Local hiohwav-user taxes 1 Capital outlav lfrom paqe 2)
a. Motor Fuel (from ltem 14.5.) 2 Marntenance 5,838,487 00s
b. Motor Vehicle (from ltem 18.5.) 3 Road and street services
c. Total (a.+b.) a. Traffic control ooerations 4 695 00S

428 385.00s2. Generalfund appropriations 289.186.00$ b. Snow and ice removal
3. Other local imposts (from oaqe 2) 1.415.454.00$ c Other 968 488.00s

1,401 .568.00S4. lv'liscellaneous local receipts (from paqe 2) 294.257 .OA$ d. Total (a. throuqh c.)
5. Transfers from toll facilities 4. General administration & miscellaneous 576 505.00$
6. Proceeds of sale of bonds and notes 5. Hiohway law enforcement and safetv 289,186.00$

a. Bonds - Oriqinal lssues 6 Total (1 throuqh 5) 8,105,746.00$
b. Bonds - Refundinq lssues B. Debt service on local obliqations:
c. Notes 1 Bonds:
d. Total (a. + b. + c.) $ a lnterest

7. Total ('1 throuqh 6) 1,998,897 00$ b. Redemption
,. Private Contributions c. Total (a. + b.) $

2. NotesC. Receipts from State government
(from paqe 2) 4,460,637.00$ a lnterest

b RedemptionD. Receipts from Federal Government
(from paqe 2) 620,058 00$ c. Total (a. + b.) $

E. Total receiots (4.7 + B + C + D) 7,079,592 00S 3. Total (1.c + 2.c) $
C. Payments to State for hiqhways
D. Payments to tollfacilities
E. Total expenditures (A,6 + 8.3 + C + D) 8,105,746.00$

IV. LOCAL HIGHWAY DEBT STATUS
(Show a enlries al par)

Ooenino Debt Amount lssued Redemotions Closinq Debt
A. Bonds (Total) $

1. Bonds (Refundinq Portion) $
B. Notes (Total) $

V. LOCAL ROAD AND STREET FUND BALANCE (RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS ONLY)

A BeqinninO Balance B. Total Receipls C Total Disbursements D. Endinq Balance E. Reconciliation
$ 14 238,498.00 7 .079.592 0u$ 8,105,746.00$ 13,212 344.00$ $

Notes and Comments

Th . this information collection is estimated to avera 380 hours annual

PREVIOUS EDITIONS OBSOLETE
page 1

Form Approved
OMB No.2125-0032

FORM FHWA.536 (Rev.06/2000) Exce (Next Page)
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STATE:
COLORADO
YEAR ENDING (mm/yy)
12t22

LOCAL HIGHWAY FINANCE REPORT

II. RECEIPTS FOR ROAD AND STREET PURPOSES - DETAIL

tTEtvl AMOUNTITEM AI\,,1OUNT
A.3. Other local imposts: A.4. Miscellaneous local receipts:

109,647.00$a. Properlv Taxes and Assesments a. lnterest on investments
b. Other local imposts b. Traffic Fines & Penalties
1. Sales Taxes 440,000.00$ c. Parkinq Garage Fees
2. lnfrastructure & lmpact Fees d. Parkinq lvleter Fees
3. Liens e. Sale of Surplus Propertv

61,946.00$4. Licenses r ServicesS

5. Specific Ownership &/or Other 975,454.00$ q. Other Misc. Receipts 122,664.O0$
6. Total (1. throuqh 5.) $ 1 .415.454.00 h. Other
c. Total (a. + b.) $ 1 ,415.454.00 i. Total (a. throuqh h.) 294,257.00$

to(Carry forward to page 1)

AMOUNTtTEt,l AI\,IOUNT ITEI\,4

C. Receipts from State Government D. Receipts from Federal Government
m ltem 1.C.5

n BEIreE
1. Hi user taxes $ 4,403,700.00 5

ES
a orest

EII
m ltem I

m
erv

,I, FHWA

a. State bond proceeds
b. Proiect lvtatch c. HUD
c. lvlotor Vehicle Reqistrations 37,525.00$ d. Federal Transit Administration
d. DOLA Grant e. U.S. CorDs of Enoineers
e. Other 19.412.00$ f. Other Federal
f. Total (a. throuqh e.) 56,937.00$

4. Total (1. + 2. + 3.f) $ 4,460,637.00 3. Total (1. + 2.q)

III. EXPENDITURES FOR ROAD AND STREET PURPOSES. DETAIL

ON NATIONAL
HIGHWAY
SYSTE|\il

(a)

OFF NATIONAL
H IGHWAY
SYSTEM

(b) (c)

TOTAL

a. Riqht-of-Way Costs
b. Enqineerinq Costs

(1). New Facilities
(2). Capacity lmprovements
(3). Svstem Preservation
(4). System Enhancement And Operation
(5). Total Construction ('l )+(2)+(3)+(4) $

nes '1.a. + 1.b. + 1.c.4utiaId. Total S $

Notes and Comments:

620 058.00

HW
page 2

E ls 2005800

T
I s 600 ooo oo

ll $

c. Construction:

rc-
l$ ll $

I$
paqa 1,
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REPORTS AND SCHEDULES FOR REPORTING REQUIREMENTS
OF UNIFORM GUIDANCE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of County Commissioners
Moffat County, Colorado

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of  
Moffat County, Colorado (the “County”) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2022, and the related 
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements and 
have issued our report thereon dated August 25, 2023.  

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit on the financial statements, we considered the County’s internal 
control over financial reporting to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control.  Accordingly, we 
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the County’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe 
that a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.  



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Board of County Commissioners
Moffat County, Colorado

G2

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County’s financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal 
control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Governmental Auditing Standards in considering the County’s internal control and compliance.  
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

McMahan and Associates, L.L.C.
August 25, 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM, 
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of County Commissioners
Moffat County, Colorado

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited the compliance of Moffat County, Colorado (the “County”) with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect 
on each of the County’s major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2022.  The County’s 
major federal programs are identified in the Summary of Auditor’s Results section of the accompanying 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.  

In our opinion, the County complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the 
year ended December 31, 2022.  

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America (U.S. GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and the audit 
requirements of Title 2, U.S. Code of Federal Regulations, Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (the “Uniform Guidance”).  
Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report. 

We are required to be independent of the County and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit.  We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each 
major federal program.  Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the County’s compliance with 
the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of 
laws, statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the 
County’s federal programs.
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To the Board of County Commissioners
Moffat County, Colorado
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an 
opinion on the County’s compliance based on our audit.  Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with U.S. GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always 
detect material noncompliance when it exists.  The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting 
from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  Noncompliance with the compliance 
requirements referred to above is considered material, if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually 
or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on 
compliance about the County’s compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a 
whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with U.S. GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform 
Guidance, we:

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
 Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and 

design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.  Such procedures include 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the County’s compliance with the compliance 
requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered 
necessary in the circumstances.

 Obtain an understanding of the County’s internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report 
on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control over 
compliance.  Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in 
internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program or on a timely basis.  A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency in 
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material 
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal 
control over compliance.  Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.
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The purpose of this report in internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing 
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of Uniform 
Guidance.  Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

McMahan and Associates, L.L.C.
August 25, 2023



Moffat County, Colorado
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022
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Part I – Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements:

Type of auditor’s report issued Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness identified None noted
Significant deficiency identified None noted
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted None noted

Federal Awards:

Internal control over major programs:

Material weakness identified None noted
Significant deficiency identified None noted
Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major programs Unmodified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with Title 2, U.S. Code of Federal Regulations, Part 200 No

Major programs:

Community Facilities Loans and Grants Cluster ALN 10.766
Section 221 (d)(3) Mortgage Insurance ALN 14.135
Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds ALN 21.027

Dollar threshold used to identify Type A from Type B programs: $750,000

Identified as low-risk auditee No

Part II – Findings Related to Financial Statements

Findings related to financial statements as 
  required by Government Auditing Standards No

Auditor-assigned reference number Not applicable

Part III – Findings Related to Federal Awards

Internal control findings None noted

Compliance findings None noted

Questioned costs None noted

Auditor-assigned reference number Not applicable



Moffat County, Colorado
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022
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There were no findings for the year ended December 31, 2021.



Amounts
Federal Local Agency passed 

Assistance Identifying through to
Program Title Listing Number Number  Expenditures Subrecipients

Department of Agriculture:
Community Facilities Loans and Grants 10.766 75473 4,571,054     F

Passed through Colorado Department of Treasury:
 Schools and Roads - Grants to Counties 10.666 N/A 40,115$        C 20,058$        

Passed through Colorado Department of Human Services:
Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP) 10.551 DHS - FFA 2,378            D
State Administrative Matching Grants for the
Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program 10.561 DHS - FFA 137,235        D

Total Department of Agriculture 4,750,782     

Department of Human Services:
Passed through Colorado Department of Health Care Policy and Financing:

Medical Assistance Program 93.778 DHS - FFA 167,178        B
Passed through Colorado Department of Human Services:

Guardianship Assistance 93.090 DHS - FFA 1,466            
Promoting Safe and Stable Families 93.556 DHS - FFA 4,327            
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 93.558 DHS - FFA 192,054        
Child Support Enforcement 93.563 DHS - FFA 191,955        
Low-income Energy Assistance 93.568 DHS - FFA 152,218        
Child Care and Development Block Grant 93.575 DHS - FFA 62,820          A
Child Care Mandatory and Matching Funds of the Child Care 

and Development Fund 93.596 DHS - FFA 53,869          A
Stephanie Tubbs Jones Child Welfare Services Program 93.645 DHS - FFA 566               
Foster Care Title IV-E 93.658 DHS - FFA 144,430        
Adoption Assistance 93.659 DHS - FFA 69,644          
Social Services Block Grant 93.667 DHS - FFA 57,911          

Passed through Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment:
Emergency Planning Funds 93.069 EMPG-22EM-23-37 17,010          
Immunization Cooperative Agreements 93.268 N/A 48,468          
Emergency Homeowner Loan Program 93.323 N/A 252,083        
Credit Enhancement for Charter School Facilities 93.354 N/A 94,316          
Preventative Health and Health Services Block Grant 93.991 N/A 4,500            
Maternal and Child Health Block Grant 93.944 N/A 15,180          

Total Department of Human Services 1,529,995     

Department of Transportation:
Airport Improvement Program 20.106 3-08-0012-020-2022 341,890        
COVID-19 - Airport Improvement Program 20.106 3-08-0012-018-2021 13,000          
COVID-19 - Airport Improvement Program 20.106 N/A 32,000          

Subtotal - Airport Improvement Program 386,890        
Total Department of Transportation 386,890        

United States Environmental Protection Agency:
Passed through Colorado Water and Power Development Authority

Voluntary School and Child Care Lead Testing 66.444 N/A 783               
       Total United States Environmental Protection Agency 783               

Department of Housing and Urban Development:
Passed through Colorado Housing and Finance Authority:

Section 221 (d)(3) Mortgage Insurance 14.135 101-35347 845,986        
Section 8 Housing Assistance Payments Program 14.195 101-35347 454,824        E

Total Department of Housing and Urban Development 1,300,810     

Department of the Interior:
Indian Law Enforcement 15.030 A19AC00010-05 130,000        

Total Department of the Interior 130,000        

SUBTOTAL 8,099,260     20,058          

Moffat County, Colorado

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Amounts
Federal Local Agency passed 

Assistance Identifying through to
Program Title Listing Number Number  Expenditures Subrecipients

Department of Treasury:
COVID-19 - Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds 21.027 175ARP_1 2,580,067     
Passed through Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment:

COVID-19 - Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds 21.027 N/A 44,055          
Passed through Colorado Department of Human Services:

COVID-19 - Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds 21.027 DHS - FFA 7,192            
Subtotal - Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds 2,631,314     
COVID-19 - Coronavirus Relief Fund 21.019 DHS - FFA (164)              

Total Department of Treasury 2,631,150     

    Total Expenditures 10,730,410$ 20,058$        

Additional Information for Clusters: Amount
A  - CCDF Cluster 116,689          
B  - Medical Assistance Program 167,178          
C  - Forest Service Schools and Roads Cluster 40,115            
D  - SNAP Cluster 139,613          
E  - Section 8 Project-Based Cluster 454,824          
F  - Community Facilities Loans and Grants Cluster 4,571,054       

Note 1.  Basis of Presentation:
The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant activity of Moffat County and is presented on the modified accrual
basis of accounting.  The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards  ("Uniform Guidance").  
Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule or used in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in or used in the preparation of the
general purpose financial statements.

Note 2.  Determining the Value of Non-cash Awards Expended:

Food assistance:  Fair market value of food assistance at the time of receipt, or the assessed value provided by the federal agency.
Commodities:  Fair market value of commodities at the time of receipt, or the assessed value provided by the federal agency.

Note 3.  Indirect Facilities and Administration costs 
The county does not use the 10% de minimis cost rate allowed in Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) part 200.414, 
Indirect (F & A) costs. Instead, the County prepares an annual cost allocation plan to allocate indirect costs.  

Note 4.  Loans Outstanding
The County had the following direct loan balances outstanding at December 31, 2022:

Federal
Assistance Balance of 

Program Title Listing Number Direct Loans
Section 221 Insured Loan Program 14.135 584,007$          

Note 5.  Expenditure Credits
Negative amounts shown on the Schedule of Federal Awards represent adjustments made in the normal course of business to amounts
reported as expenditures in prior years.

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

Moffat County, Colorado

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

(continued)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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